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Financial Summary

SRS

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

BE+T-A=+-BHLEE

Year ended 31 December
—E--f —%——§ ZT-TF ZZTNF ZEZTN\F
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

W25 Revenue 21,405,723 16,931,929 12,590,784 9,108,610 9,241,571
EF Gross profit 7,401,844 4,942,612 4,043,057 3,616,667 3,155,718
BRETEHAIESR  Profit before income tax 1,076,929 396,391 682,465 896,471 442,148
EHEY Income tax expense (221,041) (84,451) (163,397) (191,589) (98,307)
FEERA Profit for the year 855,888 311,940 519,068 704,882 343,841
/NI o Profit attributable to equity holders

BEAEMEER  of the Company 855,888 311,940 519,068 704,882 343,841
B8 Dividends 171,178 93,582 155,712 352,458 171,909

AR¥S ARED ARED ARERD ARERD
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents

SRERZF Basic earnings per share 23.78 8.67 14.42 19.58 9.56

R+=A=t+-H
As at 31 December
—E--f —%——§ ZT-TF ZZTNF ZZTN\F
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
AR®TR ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000

BEE Total assets 16,539,813 13,737,392 9,580,685 8,153,803 7,124,981
BEE Total liabilities 8,868,745 6,926,497 2,921,148 1,699,977 1,382,439
mieE Total equity 7,671,068 6,810,895 6,659,537 6,453,826 5,742,542
RBeRBLEEY Cashand cash equivalents 2,290,809 2,369,050 2,427,362 3,359,788 3,272,859
e (BE)/ Net current (Liabilities)/

BEFE assets (30,930) (469,559) 1,497,772 2,812,972 2,825,641

B—EPBEERBERAR —E——FFHK
4 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2012, the global economy was yet to recover. The US economy
remained weak, whereas the European debt crisis saw temporary
relief. Export trading in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) performed poorly, with growth of only 6.2%, which
was far below 22.5% in 2011. All these have shown that the
global economic landscape remained in doldrums. Accordingly,
the domestic economic was inevitably affected. However, as the
PRC government implemented effective supporting measures and
made changes to industry structure. Despite that various economic
figures slowed down as compared with 2011, the GDP in 2012
grew by 7.8% on a year-on-year basis and the total consumable
retail sales increased by 14.3% on a year-on-year basis. The
market remained prudent and optimistic about the domestic
economy with improvement in people’s livelihood and growing
consumption demand.

In the face of intensifying industry competition, Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company” and, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) endeavored to focus on its operating strategy to
enhance brand value. With a practical, progressive and effective
implementation of such strategy, in 2012, the Group achieved
a record high of RMB20 billion in revenue, grew by 26.4% to
RMB21,405.7 million. In only two years after hitting the threshold
of RMB10 billion revenue in 2010, and at the 20th year of our
establishment in the PRC, we achieved the second revenue record
of more than RMB10 billion with exponential growth. A number of
products have set new sales records. Our key tea drink products,
Uni Ice Tea (8 —7k41%%) and Uni Green Tea (5t —4%2%) generated a
record revenue of RMBS5 billion. Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef
Flavoured Noodles (EEEZ4A4E) generated a revenue of over
RMB4 billion. Assam Milk Tea (FEETIZL) generated a revenue
of over RMB3 billion. It is expected that more products will achieve
record setting results in 2013.

The solid operating foundation, the sound financial position,
the core competitiveness and efficient operating management
allowed us to expand our market share and accomplish the
operating targets set by the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company through organisational advancement
and increased marketing. In order to achieve the corporate goals,
we have stepped up the modification of our internal structure,
improved our product mix and enhanced our management. The
continual improvement of product portfolio and profitability was
the most important element in assessing segment performance.
Through better control over operating expenses and overheads and

Bm—EEREERARIRE —FE-ZFFK
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streamlining operation, our overall competitiveness was enhanced
with higher organisational efficiency. We have also prepared for
any future market opportunities by speeding up the construction of
production base and increasing investments. The highlights of our
work in 2012 are summarised as follows:

STAY FOCUSED IN BUSINESS STRATEGY
AND STREAMLINE OPERATIONS

It is crucial to have a progressive operating plan in order to
get ahead in the vast Chinese market. We opted to begin with
building our advantages in selected regions by adapting our
market strategies to local features. First, we set foot in selected
cities where we can excel ourselves and gain competitive edges
over industry peers, and our network stretched from such urban
footholds to outer peripheral areas and other cities to allow
consumers to purchase our products in major cities and nearby
towns and rural areas. In the long run, market focus would also be
placed on county-level cities with a population over 1 million with a
view to centralising our resources input.

In 2012, we pursued the strategy of developing the mid-to-high
end instant noodles market. Since the second half of 2008, we
have adjusted the product mix by retaining only products which
are well-performed and in line with our development strategies.
Such approaches were proven effective as our key product, Lao
Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles (Z1&8E 4
#H), became the second favourite flavoured noodles in the PRC.
Overall operating income from instant noodles grew by 22.5% to
RMB7,269.6 million compared to the corresponding period last
year and hit its peak. We also introduced the second key product
at the right time, Braised Meat Flavoured Noodles (JBIPI%H),
which is hoped to be another driving force of the instant noodles
business. The enhancement in the product mix of the instant
noodles business has led to another record high in profit amounting
to RMB225.3 million in 2012, and created a healthier product
structure. Looking forward, we will make further investments in
brand building so as to work towards corporate goals and achieve
better results.

—FEFHR
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Chairman’s Statement

For the beverage business, our revenue increased by 30.2%
compared with the corresponding period last year to RMB13,913.6
million in 2012, significantly outperformed the growth in the major
beverage peers. Tea drinks business showed strong growth
despite the market downturn, whereas juice drinks and milk tea
businesses both performed satisfactorily. In particular, our new
juice drink product, Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (7#EZ23Y) achieved
exponential growth. Milk tea business continued to record strong
growth and maintain its leading market position with a market share
of over 60.0%.

The Group will adhere to its key product strategy and develop
products which are well-liked by consumers and with high value
for money to achieve better operations with an aim to offer quality
products and acquire greater profits.

VIGOROUSLY EXPAND PRODUCTION
CAPABILITY AND SET UP NEW PRODUCTION
BASE

The Group has implemented its plant expansion plan, in which
new production bases will be set up in various locations and
new production lines will be added to existing production bases
to replace obsolete ones. The objective of the plan is to boost
overall productivity and it is anticipated that the Group will enter
into a stage of rapid capacity expansion in 2012 and 2013. The
introduction of new production lines with advanced technology will
relieve the problem of capacity shortage, long transport distance
and delivery time control.

Bm—EEREERARIRE —FE-ZFFK
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Even with the uncertainties of the global economy, it is expected
that the economy of the PRC will be able to sustain a steady
growth under the national policy of stimulating internal demand. The
PRC government’s constant efforts in narrowing the gap between
urban and rural areas will bring about structural changes to the
consumption market, and the rising disposal income per capita will
offer tremendous development opportunities for the fast-moving
consumer goods, food, beverages and retailing industries.

Under the guidance of the “Twelve Five-Year Plan”, the “four
East-West corridors and four North-South corridors” of the high-
speed rail network will significantly reduce travel distance and time,
thereby expanding the “one-day living circle”. The top six special
economic zones will steer the PRC economic development by
spreading their economic influence over other developing areas.

By taking a pragmatic attitude towards its development, the Group
will observe the direction of government policies in the PRC and
focus on developing its target markets. It is believed that with a
progressive development of our market presence, together with
our popular products and excellent product mix, we will be able to
generate higher revenue and profit.

GOALS AND STRATEGIES

The operating goals of the Group are to bring shareholders’ value
to a maximum and constantly offer healthy and pleasant products
to consumers. We will adhere to the following key principles in our
long-term growth strategies:

1. To become a leading global enterprise by showing care and
concern:

We aim at integrating into local communities by paying
extra attention in localising our operations and showing
our care and concern about enhancing the prosperity and
development of local economies.

B—EPBEERBERAR —E——FFHK
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Chairman’s Statement

To please our customers and stay ahead of the industry:

We emphasise on adapting to local operating environments
with high flexibility and establishing an effective system
for handling customer feedbacks. By bearing the idea of
putting customers first in our marketing objectives, we
devote considerable resources to satisfy the demand of end
consumers.

To inherit and maintain the core values of the corporation:

We believe that some important virtues are necessary in
our acts: be honest, work hard, be innovative, dare to
change, be optimistic and positive, have a good attitude and
be harmonious. We also treasure our following corporate
values: be strong, be fair, think positive, stay humble, be
considerate, think well, be upright, respect what we do,
share happiness and be thankful for the society.

To recruit local talents to form operation teams with a global
perspective:

We hire local talents and cultivate them to exhibit their
edges for contributing to the Group. We require our
operation teams to possess global perspectives and visions
and the expertise in global operations.

To establish an operating and management system which
stresses product quality and safety:

The first priority in our operating focus is to provide
consumers with quality and safe products by closely
monitoring our production and supply chain.
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2012, although the European debt crisis saw temporary relief,
there were still fundamental problems unresolved, and the global
economy did not significantly improve. The United States continued
to pursue quantitative easing monetary policy in order to boost
the economy amid the economic downturn. The PRC government
implemented macroeconomic control and made changes to
the industrial structure through a series of effective supporting
measures. Despite that various economic figures slowed down as
compared with 2011, the GDP in 2012 grew by 7.8% on a year-
on-year basis and the total consumable retail sales increased by
14.3% on a year-on-year basis. The market remained prudent
and optimistic about the domestic economy with improvement in
people’s livelihood and growing consumer demand.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group accomplished another milestone and recorded more
than RMB20 billion in revenue in 2012. In only two years after
hitting the threshold of RMB10 billion revenue in 2010, we achieved
another revenue record of more than RMB10 billion upon the 20th
year of our presence in the PRC market with exponential growth
and ushered in another period of peak growth.

In face of intensifying competition in the consumer market of the
PRC, the Group endeavoured to focus on its business strategies
and streamline operations. Under the concerted efforts of our
diligent employees, we recorded continuous rapid growth in our
instant noodles and beverage businesses, outpacing average
industry growth rate. The market share of all main products
increased steadily. The annual profit increased due to the effective
utilisation of marketing resources which successfully enhanced
brand value. Production cost reduced significantly because of
decreasing raw material costs, optimised product portfolio and
enhancement of efficiency during production process. With
capacity expansion due to new plant and continuous development
of distribution channels, the Group’s operating profit in 2012
reached new record high and rose substantially by 237.4% as
compared with 2011. The principal activities of the Group are set
out below.

B—EPBEERAERAR —E——FFH
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB21,405.7 million, representing
an increase of 26.4% from RMB16,931.9 million for the
corresponding period of last year.
noodles and beverages products increased by 22.5% and 30.2%
to RMB7,269.6 million and RMB13,913.6 million respectively,
accounting for 34.0% and 65.0% respectively of the Group’s

Revenue from the instant

total revenue. During the Year, gross profit increased by 49.8%
from RMB4,942.6 million to RMB7,401.8 million while gross profit
margin increased by 5.4 percentage points from 29.2% for the
corresponding period of last year to 34.6%.

During the Year, due to growth in earnings and continuous
improvement of the product mix and production process, the
proportion of high profit margin products increased. In addition, the
prices of major raw materials dropped during the Year compared
with the corresponding period of last year, therefore gross profit
and gross profit margin rose substantially. During the Year, in light
of the proactive efforts of the Group in brand building to create
brand value, development of sales network to stabilise and expand
its customer base, the selling and marketing expenses for the Year
increased by 40.8% to RMB6,043.0 million (2011: RMB4,292.4
million). During the Year, administrative expenses amounted to
RMB722.9 million (2011:
attributable to increase in urban construction tax and education

RMB548.2 million), which was mainly

surcharge and corresponding increase in expenses from new
production base construction and capacity expansion. During the
Year, share of results of jointly controlled entities and associates
surged by 228.3% to RMB131.6 million (2011: RMB40.1 million)
due to the increase in earnings of Jinmailang Beverage Corporate
Limited during the Year.

During the Year, profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company was RMB855.9 million, representing an increase of
174.4% as compared with RMB311.9 million of the corresponding
period last year, and earnings per share were RMB23.78 cents
(2011: RMB8.67 cents).

—EPERERBRAT —E-ZFFH
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Instant Noodles Business

Following the rapid growth in 2011, the Group’s instant noodles
business continued its growth momentum in 2012, and recorded
an annual revenue of RMB7,269.6 million, representing a growth
rate of 22.5% compared to the corresponding period last year,
which exceeded the growth rate of the instant noodles industry
in general. ACNielsen’s research reported an increase of 2.5
percentage points in the market share of the Group’s instant
noodles, from 13.3% in 2011 to 15.8% in 2012. The Group has
achieved the highest growth in the industry for three consecutive
years.

ACNielsen’s 2012 data showed that the total sales volume of the
instant noodles industry only grew by 4.8% over the corresponding
period last year but the sales amount grew by 14.6%, reflecting
the change in instant noodles consumption trend. The pattern
of sales amount outperforming sales volume in 2011 continued,
clearly demonstrating the upgrade of instant noodles industry.
The Group has launched the strategy of focusing on mid-to-high
priced instant noodles operation since the second half of 2008. We
focused on “value marketing” and strived to provide differentiated
and high value-added products to consumers. Our key product,
“Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles (Z1E
FAEAHM)” continued to grow rapidly, further driving the change in
overall market flavour and remained the second favourite flavoured
instant noodles in the PRC. According to ACNielsen, market share

of pickled cabbage flavoured noodles increased by 4.3 percentage
points from 10.4% to 14.7% in 2012, hence securing a leading

TRPEERERAR —F—=
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position in the spicy flavour market, ahead of spicy beef flavoured
noodles and ranked second in the overall noodles market. Among
the 14.7% market share attributable to pickled cabbage flavoured
noodles, the Group’s Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage series accounted
for 8.8 percentage points, maintaining the leading market position
in the industry under intensifying peer competition in the market.
The new product, “Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles (% RI%H)”,
launched by the Group, was well-received by consumers since its
nationwide launch in 2012, with a growth rate exceeding Lao Tan
Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles at its initial launch.
It became another instant noodles product of the Group with high
growth momentum.

In 2012, prices of the major raw materials of instant noodles
dropped and cost pressure eased. As various manufacturers
enhanced marketing efforts, the market competition was intense.
The Group continued to focus on the operations of Lao Tan
Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles, adhering to
the concept of “authenticity of Lao Tan” (IE5R#E18) in face of
increasing more competitive followers and high homogenisation
in the market. On the product side, we continued to improve the
flavour and maintained leading position in terms of consumer
preference, brand building and publicity, to differentiate Lao Tan
Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles from other brands’
pickled cabbage flavoured products. The Group strengthened
in-depth communication with consumers through endorsement
for the product by Mr. Wang Han, a famous TV show host, and
emphasised the authenticity of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and
Beef Flavoured Noodles by promoting concepts such as “Made

B—EPBEERAERAR —E——FFH
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by 81-day Double Fermentation with Traditional Pickling Jars ({&
| BEEE - LU+ —X)” through various media. It
developed the concept that “Uni-President represented authenticity
of Lao Tan pickled cabbage (IFREBEEFHIES—)” and further
consolidated the leading position of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and
Beef Flavoured Noodles in the spicy flavoured noodles market.
The Group endeavoured to develop the new product, Braised
Beef Flavoured Noodles, which was the second nationwide
product focused by the Group with a concept being “Braised
Beef Flavoured Noodles is the instant noodles for new generation
consumers (RPAREE T —R AT (E4E)” and proactively captured
the non-spicy flavoured market share. Braised Meat Flavoured
Noodles continued its marketing campaign under the theme of
“Enjoy the Perfect Taste of Braised Meat (5EEHKEB2E)” and
promoted the concept of “Long-Pickled and Slow-Braised with 18
Selected Pickling Ingredients, Delivering Rich Aroma and Taste (5
B4 \RRE - 2L HFEALK)”. The Group also held free
tasting activities called “Invitation to a Feast Full of Braised Flavours
(RERE » BEHLZ) and exhibited the “Box of 18 Pickling
Ingredients (T AEHAE)” to give full demonstration of the
product’s quality and a vivid image to consumers. For the second
half of 2012, we invited renowned TV programme host Mr. He
Jiong as pitchman, who introduced the “unbelievably divine taste
of such unique product (—BZ&X )" to consumers and enhanced
our popularity and promoted our second popular product.

In respect of sales network construction, we continued to adopt
the strategy of “celebrity products driving development of sales
channels (A 2 ZE M BRI ZR)” and targeted at enhancing sales
channels by allocating resources to expand new customers. The
Group basically completed its dealership or distribution network
from first-tier cities to prefecture-level cities, counties and rural
towns. We also expanded into township markets through township
exhibitions and bazaar vehicle sales. Regarding development of
new and special channels, the Group devoted great efforts to
develop railway, highway, airport, factory, mine, construction site
and chain hotel channels. With these added new type of sales
channels, the Group was exposed to sales opportunities to different
consumer groups.

—FEFHR
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In 2012, the major raw materials cost of instant noodles (such as
flour and palm oil) showed a decreasing trend, which greatly eased
the cost pressure on instant noodles segment. The Group also
improved and adjusted its nationwide production lines, replacing
part of its obsolete production lines and upgrading to high-
speed ones to further enhance production efficiency. In addition,
after conversion of production base layout, Changsha factory
commenced production in 2012. The demand for business growth
was achieved by capacity expansion, and the profitability of instant
noodles segment was further enhanced.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to focus on the operations
of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles
and Braised Meat Flavoured Noodles in 2013. The Group will
strengthen the stable growth of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef
Flavoured Noodles business, and enhance the product flavour of
Braised Meat Flavoured Noodles by secret ingredients and greatly
increased promotional efforts. At the same time, capitalising on the
R&D and product innovation, the Group prepares to develop high-
end products and further expands its share in high-end and non-
spicy flavour markets. In respect of channel construction, we will
devote great efforts to launch the “focused channel development
CBREEFE#N” to strengthen network construction between dealers
and sales points to continuously inject momentum in sustainable
sales growth. Regarding production base layout, new production

bases will commence production as planned to further satisfy the
demand due to rapid growth in production scale.
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Beverage Business
Tea Drinks

In 2012, the sales amount and sales volume of tea drinks industry
(excluding milk tea) as a whole recorded negative growth.
According to ACNielsen, general sales of milk beverages went
up by 14.4%, compared with the corresponding period last year.
However, sales of tea drinks market (excluding milk tea) decreased
by 4.7%. There was noticeable shift in consumer preference to milk
tea and functional drinks which became more popular.

Although the general tea drink market was lacklustre in 2012, the
Group’s tea drinks business recorded promising results with a
revenue of RMB5,597.1 million, substantially outperforming the
industry in 2012. It grew by 12.2% as compared to corresponding
period last year. Its market share increased by 3.3 percentage
points from 19.4% in 2011 to 22.7% in 2012, representing the
highest growth rate in the industry. The Group’s featured products,
Uni lce Tea (—7k4LZ%) and Uni Green Tea (£t —#k2%) performed
remarkably. The two brands recorded a combined revenue growth
of 17.5% compared with the corresponding period last year.

In 2012, the Group’s tea drinks business grew amid industry
downturn, and its market share also attained remarkable growth,
mainly attributable to the focused operational strategy and success
in brand building. The tea drinks business recorded high growth
rate in 2009 and 2010 attributable to the large-scale promotion
plans but entered a period of nil growth and recession in 2011 and
2012, respectively. The Group would like to take this opportunity
to adjust its tea beverage business, focusing on operations of Uni
Ice Tea and Uni Green Tea, investing marketing resources in brand
building and upgrading product flavour and packaging. For Uni
Ice Tea, the Group joined hands with China X-game in organising
the nationwide event “Skateboarding Unlimited (B&3T/8 R EEGRR)”,
which was in line with the core brand theme of “Youth Unlimited
(FBEL4Ef5RBR)”. For Uni Green Tea, its main promotional campaign
themed “Experience Lake Kanas and feel the nature (Fi1E %%
BREAIR4ANHT)” was launched in over 20 major cities nationwide.
As the outstanding performance of these two major brands was
recognised by consumers, the revenue of the Group’s tea drinks
greatly outperformed the industry in 2012. The results were
promising despite the industry downtown.

B—EPBEERBERAR —E——FFHK
16 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



EEERNWR DN

Management Discussion & Analysis

ZE—=F[HEKAR R FE—HZ BT
BREFNERBY HERAMRBEREE
MR - [H—IKAFE]BEXMARRER
EE ¥ #H5% h4ER Avil Lavigne) B E
A BT REBRRIBIRZEZIN - &6 [ 5RR
P BERBGEINEEETE  EHeZER
AR - AEFE - ERE T ARE
NEAERE - WO FERE - [ 45 AE
BEABREROR  BEINEE EoBER
BREITEREIFRIEA RERBTIH2E
FREY  UHEEeRKTsIENE  BAEE
AR o

BMOWBRTNEGNER T =A%

B EEG R mE  HYTRNEER K

RBARMEDRR  ToRERNKEOH
e KA ERBE S RET - RIBUR
E SHEBAKHNER-

Z T = FERKE N0 AL 5H R 2 B E R
B HEMHEEPERAKENTR
EREGER BRAERBEX -RE_T
—ZHEAREXRBHAKFEEBRELE
RARBRER EEHEEBELEE £~
FRATIZEAEE -

In 2013, capitalising on the favourable development trend, for Uni
lce Tea and Uni Green Tea, the Group will continue to invest in
brand development and product upgrade. The Group will invite,
for the first time, an international rock star, Avril Lavigne, for her
endorsement for Uni Ice Tea. Apart from continuing the event of
“Skateboarding Unlimited”, together with the thematic activity of
“In Pursuit of Unlimited, Dare to Reach Target (1R8I =EI&F
Bi&)”, the Group would like to attract young consumers through
organising skateboarding party and creating trendy and cool
publicity topics. For Uni Green Tea, we will continue to upgrade
product flavour and improve packaging, and launch nationwide
annual event of “Experience the nature with my own tracks (¥tiT
B AR for brand building and publicity. We would like
to take the lead in the green ride trend and enhance promotional
effects.

In 2013, the Group will endeavour to develop its featured products.
The Group will also proactively launch new products, such as
pure tea and plant tea products, to satisfy the demand of different
consumers. Leverage on its R&D capability, the Group will stimulate
consumption and drive the overall development of tea drinks
through innovative product concepts and formula.

In 2013, the Group will enhance the dealer’s network construction
and channel streamlining. We will place refrigerators in key sales
outlets to proactively capture sales channels and increase product
distribution rate. Looking ahead, capitalising on consumption
trends and dynamics, the Group’s tea drink business will pursue its
focused operations and invest in brand development, and further
expand market share.
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Juice Drinks

In 2012, the Group’s juice drinks business continued to grow,
with a revenue of RMB3,996.4 million, representing an increase
of 24.2% as compared with the same period last year, while the
general juice drinks market rose by 16.0% in 2012. Growth in our
juice drinks revenue outperformed the general juice drinks market
by 8.2 percentage points, with an increased market share of 1.2
percentage points (according to ACNielson). The growth in revenue
from juice drinks in 2012 was mainly attributable to the significant
growth of Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (7kK#Z %) under “Seasonal
Drinks (BXx&IUZ)” series, being Chinese health drinks, and the
success of the innovative brand image and product packaging of
the “More Juice Series (t—%%71)”, which successfully attracted
the young consumers. In 2012, the Group constantly improved the
product mix of the juice drinks business and gradually increased
the ratio of high profit margin products to total sales. In addition,
due to the general decline of major raw materials prices in 2012,
the juice drinks business recorded remarkable growth in profit.

In 2012, the Group invited Asian famous artists namely Jang
Keunsuk and Park Min Young to endorse its products, the “More
Juice Series” featuring “More” Orange Juice (£f1&%) with new
packaging to target at young consumers born after the 1990s. The
Group kicked off its revamp programme involving “new positioning,
images, packaging, endorsements, experience and publicity (377
i~ R $BE - FIRTF - FER - FEHE) and it was well
received by general consumers. It revitalised the brand assets of
“Boosting Your Beauty with Vitamin C (%C%/£5%)” to present a
youthful brand image. In addition to placing advertisements on
traditional media such as television and outdoor media, the Group
also utilised platforms that are most attractive to young people,
such as blogs, social networks and online videos. With innovative
consumer-oriented marketing campaign, the Group differentiated
itself from its juice drinks peers. In 2012, the growth of “More” Juice
series substantially surpassed the general juice drinks industry after
changing to a smaller packaging.

Since its launch in 2011, Crystal Sugar Pear Drink has become
widely popular with its unique flavour and nourishing values. Crystal
Sugar Pear Drink became the new favourite beverage and a growth
driver in 2012. The Group invited Ms. Fish Leong, a famous love
song singer, to endorse Crystal Sugar Pear Drink, and organised
various meetings nationwide to draw consumers, spokesperson
and the brand closer. The Seasonal Drinks series is intended to

B—EPBEERBERAR —E——FFHK
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associate with the sense of quenching and soothing (—HJEL
M) to differentiate from the competing products and received
excellent consumer response through the micro-fim and MV of the
spokesperson. For Crystal Sugar Pear Drink, the Group performed
well in operational efficiency, market development and consumer
recognition. In 2012, the revenue from Crystal Sugar Pear Drink
soared by 306.8% as compared to the corresponding period last
year, setting a new industry landscape of Chinese traditional health
drinks.

The core task of “More” Orange Juice in 2013 is to promote the
brand by leveraging the marketing effects of spokesperson. The
Group will accumulate sustainable brand assets of “More” Orange
Juice by meeting with spokesperson, new MV broadcasting,
interactive network contact, real experience of “Beauty Inn (25 &
8)”, new TVC and network investment to accomplish three wins
in brand building, performance boost and consumer preference by
sculpturing the unique character of being beautiful and confident.
In 2013, the Group will increase the general sales volume of Crystal
Sugar Pear Drink, and launch new flavour drinks to enhance the
brand of Seasonal Drinks series. We will work with major media
bodies in the PRC by continuously leveraging on the spokesperson
resources to enhance the brand of the sense of quenching and
soothing, transforming the brand and spokesperson’s preference
into favourable assets and expanding the market share of the
brand.
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Milk Tea

Revenue from the Group’s milk tea business for 2012 rose by
82.6% as compared to 2011. Uni Milk Tea (£ —#3%%) maintained
its leading market position with a market share of 61.4%, increased
by 0.9 percentage point compared with 2011. The ready-to-drink
milk tea market accounted for 18.6% of the overall ready-to-drink
tea market in 2012 as compared to 9.6% in 2011 due to the rapid
growth of ready-to-drink milk tea. Driven by the Group’s milk tea
products, the ready-to-drink milk tea market in Guangdong and
Hunan provinces took over red tea and green tea to become the
largest type of tea beverages (according to ACNielson).

In 2012, the Group’s milk tea segment continued to focus on its
superior product, Assam Milk Tea (FIEEMZIZ). In addition, the
Group endeavoured to develop British Earl Grey Milk Tea (Z£z\1H
B as its second key product under milk tea business. Ms.
Charlene Choi, a Hong Kong artist acted as spokesperson for our
commercials for Assam Milk Tea — cheerful mood and British Earl
Grey Milk Tea — good mood in England, which were aired on CCTV
and regional satellite channels. In addition, the Group launched
an integrated marketing campaign themed “Joyful Tea (FE1&4F
L3B)” and through a series of marketing activities tailored for its
target customers including the cheerful mood interactive experience
offered at the user-end stores, internet and weibo interactive
marketing, sales of Uni Milk Tea continued to grow steadily. Under
the strategy of “value marketing (B1E7T73H)” of the Group, the
ready-to-drink milk tea business continued to record promising
results and created a high-end brand image among its target
consumers, which overcame the challenge from price competition
and consolidated its leading market position.

BG—EPEERERAR —E——FFK
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In 2013, the Group will continue the value marketing strategy
for Uni Milk Tea and will insist on not to participate in price
competition but create a value brand to differentiate its products.
Expanding the market size of ready-to-drink milk tea will be its top
priority. Capitalising on the comparative advantage of the 500ml
packaging, our featured product, Assam Milk Tea will satisfy
the demand at parties and catering functions by combining with
large packaging product series, and guiding the sales channels
to penetrate to county and township markets. For British Earl
Grey Milk Tea, the Group will continue to develop the theme of
good mood in England and promote the product through placing
commercials and promoting ultimate consumer experience so
as to build Uni Milk Tea as the preferred product among target
consumers.

Coffee

The ready-to-drink coffee market in the PRC maintained steady
growth in 2012. According to the market research carried out
by ACNielsen in four major cities in the PRC, namely, Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen, the sales growth of ready-to-
drink coffee for 2012 was 30.0%. Leverage on the growth trends
of consumer preference over rich and high unit price coffee, the
Group timely launched 280ml A-Ha Aromatic Latte (HMWBEEZE 24#)
in rich flavour. As it suited the taste of Chinese consumers, coupled
with the touching commercials targeted at young consumers, it
successfully drove the growth in results. Revenue in 2012 rose
by 117.7% as compared with the corresponding period last year,
which became the major growth driver in the ready-to-make coffee
market and promoted the rapid growth of the Group’s coffee
business. The annual revenue in 2012 increased by 42.7% as
compared with the corresponding period last year, higher than the
market average.

In 2012, the Group increased its resources in media commercials
for A-Ha (#13) coffee concentrating on the first-tier cities including
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. The high frequency
commercials targeted at media accessible to the specific consumer
groups. The commercial series successfully promoted the theme of
“Relax by drinking A-Ha coffee (Jife— T &% —T)". The brand
recognition increased remarkably and the relaxation philosophy of
A-Ha was recognised, which enhanced the brand value of A-Ha.
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At the end of 2012, we studied on ltalian espresso coffee process
for A-Ha coffee, and launched A-Ha ltalian Classic Coffee (JfM
Z R4 H) under a more differentiated Italian Moka Pot (&34 EE
+35) series. Together with the newly packaged A-Ha Aromatic
Latte series, they became two featured products of the Group.
We have obtained patent for the new innovative octagonal bottle
packaging which presented look of the traditional Moka pot, and
adopted ltalian people and landscape as the design theme to
demonstrate ltalian romantic atmosphere. It has been accepted
and recognised by customers since its launch. Along with two new
commercials, we expressed in-depth interpretation of the aesthetic
mood of ltalian coffee by demonstrating relaxing and romantic
ltalian style through the originality of creative presentation, coupled
with classical music background, and gained high recognition from
consumers and the industry.

In 2013, A-Ha coffee will continue to adhere to the development
direction of high-value and differentiation so as to promote
the ready-to-drink coffee market in the PRC, enhance brand
awareness and reputation. The Group will strive to promote in-
depth development of the ltalian Moka Pot series, and enhance
development into capital cities and second-tier cities outside first-
tier cities.
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Bottled water

In 2012, the growth of total revenue from bottled water business
was mainly attributable to the sale of mid-to-high-priced natural
water and spring water. After continuous product portfolio
restructuring, the proportion of Uni Mineralised Water (4t —#&%)
& 7K) to total sales significantly dropped to below 20%, while that
of mid-to-high-priced natural water and spring water increased to
over 80% of the total revenue. The Group will continue its product
portfolio restructuring, which began in 2011 and gradually terminate
the production of the low-priced Uni Mineralised Water in 2013,
and focus on mid-to-high-priced natural spring water.

The Group’s bottled water brand, ALKAQUA, recorded a 92.6%
growth in revenue as compared to the corresponding period
last year, significantly surpassing the overall growth of 18.8% of
the general bottled water market according to ACNielson. The
improvement in results of ALKAQUA was due to the noticeable
differentiation from similar products in terms of outlook and
positioning which was widely accepted by the target consumers.
With the continuous improvement in the standard of living,
consumers have higher health awareness on water. In order to
satisfy the pursuit of healthy and quality lifestyle of the affluent
consumers, we launched “Bama Spring Mineral Water” (255 %)
from Bama, Guangxi (a famous longevity town) in early 2013.

As the Group is committed to providing consumers with more
natural and healthier bottled water, it is actively looking for high-
quality mineral water sources in the PRC, and will gradually
establish garden mineral water production base throughout the
country. Leverage on the nationwide sales network, it will expand
sales scale and synergies in order to achieve the goal of becoming
one of the leading brands of mid-to-high-priced spring water in the
PRC within three years.
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Research and Development

The research and development team of the Group is dedicated
to develop safe, innovative and delicious healthy food products,
establish leading technology and satisfy customers’ growing
needs. In order to enhance product development efficiency and
enhance successful rate of launching the products, the Group has
established the New Product Promotion Committee to coordinate
all resources. It assesses and reviews the operation procedures
including demand, development and launching of new products. It
formulates new product development process through a series of
quantitative criteria to ensure the orderly and procedural launch of
new products and successful rate of new product promotion.

In order to increase the understanding of consumers’ needs,
the Group conducts research studies on consumer behaviour,
preferences and attitudes regularly, to understand the changes
in consumers’ needs and spending habits, so as to develop
consumers’ favourite products. In recent years, along with rising
consumer spending power and growing health consciousness, the
Group has successively developed a series of new products such
as Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles — spicy beef flavour, British Earl
Grey Milk Tea, A-Ha Italian Classic Coffee, Corn Kernels (F K#i:8E)
and Grass Jelly Xianshuang (flIE &) in 2012, leading the market
to shift from price competition to value competition.

The Group continuously monitors product quality and makes
improvement to products. In 2012, in order to further strengthen
the Group’s leading position in tea drinks industry, we made
improvement to our featured products, Uni Ice Tea and Uni Green
Tea, and insisted on using higher quality tea leaves and other
raw materials to produce fresher and more delicious tea drinks.
Regarding Crystal Sugar Pear Drink, the Group collaborated with
Hefei University of Technology to collect a variety of pear species
across the country together to complete the fresh fruit flavour
tasting and analysis on domestic pear aroma components, the
main component indicators and characteristic components, to
ensure the food safety of raw materials at the fundamental level
and also identify the key components of the pear aroma and taste
contribution. The results were applied to optimise the Group’s
products so that Crystal Sugar Pear Drink will be the market
benchmark as always.
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Regarding instant noodles, the Group adopted specific innovative
process to develop “secret braised beef ingredients (MELKZE
)" and applied to Braised Beef Flavoured Noodles to increase its
product value. As the scale of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef
Flavoured Noodles expands, to regulate the product development
of pickled cabbage flavoured noodles, the Group is also actively
involved in the formulation of pickled vegetables and pickles
industry standards. Through close communication and interaction
with industry experts, we jointly promoted the safety and health
standard in product development. In December 2012, the Group
jointly held the China Pickle Industry Innovation and Safety Seminar
(P ER S EZEAIF % 2T 5] €) with the Chinese Institute of Food
Science and Technology (Bl R mEHEH{ITE®), and joined China
Condiment Industries Association (FF B8k @17 2) to participate in
drafting the pickle national standards.

Food Safety

In adherence to the motto of “three goods and one fairness: good
quality, good credit, good service and fair price (Z#F— 238 : h'E
i~ EREF - RIGHT « BIRAE)”, the Group offers safe, healthy
and delicious food products to consumers. To enhance the level of
food safety management system of the Group, a food safety and
health committee and a food safety centre have been established.
The committee and the centre focus their efforts on the deployment
and establishment of a food safety protection system, the
formulation of food safety policies, the promotion of food safety risk
assessment, precaution and control so as to ensure food safety.
They are responsible for the management of quality assurance as
well as the formulation and implementation of quality assurance
policies, ensuring product quality.
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The Group perfected the control mechanism of supply chain of
raw materials with special focus on the food safety management
of supply chain source and the food safety control of finished
products. The Group implemented the food safety qualification
audit on suppliers, food safety site appraisal of suppliers and
established an inspection system on raw materials food safety
projects to ensure the implementation of food quality safety
control at the source of supply chain. The Group conducted
qualification inspection on production plants and implemented an
on-site assessment and appraisal system. To ensure food safety,
all finished products must pass inspections strictly according to
regulations before putting on the market and, further, were subject
to three strict annual controls on every food safety check. During
which the Group closely monitored various food safety incidents
and conducted timely risk assessments, carried out inspections
on similar raw materials and finished products and improved the
food safety management system to ensure food safety. The Group
actively participated in formulating related national standards,
collecting and issuing food regulations and domestic and overseas
information on food safety to boost awareness of food safety,
coordinating and facilitating the thorough implementation of food
regulations and safety standards with an aim to safeguard the
interests of consumers.

Since 2005, the Group’s food safety testing centre has passed the
annual expert evaluation organised by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS Accreditation) and until
now 148 assessments have been granted approval. Possessing
equipments including GC/MSMS (gas chromatography/multi-
stage mass spectrometry), UPLC-MSMS (ultra performance
liquid chromatography/multi stage mass spectrometry), ICP/MS
(inductively coupled plasma atomic emission spectroscopy/mass
spectrometry), UPLC (ultra performance liquid chromatography),
AFS (atomic fluorescence spectrometry), ICS (ion chromatography
system), GPC (gel permeation chromatography) and mycotoxin
testing equipment, the Group has commenced 185 assessments.
The assessed items included, in respect of food safety
assessments, pesticide residues, veterinary drug residues,
heavy metals, 17 rare earth elements, 6 toxins, plasticizers,
preservatives, artificial pigments, bromate and fluoride and, in
respect of regular assessments, trace elements, amino acids, lipids
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and food nutrient analysis. The Group was equipped to conduct
assessments on food safety items of 450 residual pesticides, 14
veterinary drug residues, 70 edible synthetic pigments and 60
antibiotics. Combining with the laboratories of the subsidiaries and
external assessment units, the Group can meet the assessment
requirements on the food safety items concerned, providing the
Group with professional and recognised assessment services to
ensure safety of the Group’s food products.

By the end of 2012, 15 subsidiaries of the Group obtained the
certification of ISO9001 international standard management system
and 14 subsidiaries obtained 1SO22000 food safety management
system. Those certifications and awards require enterprises to
keep improving their food safety and quality control systems
and enhancing their capabilities in ensuring food safety. The
certifications also show that the Group offers not only delicious
products, but also healthy and safe food products to consumers.

STRATEGY

The solid operating foundation, the sound financial position, the
core competitiveness and efficient operating management will
continue to allow us to expand our market share and accomplish
the operating targets set by the Board through organisational
advancement and increasing marketing. In order to achieve the
corporate goal, we will continue to modify our internal structure,
improve our product mix and enhance our management. We will
continue to focus on the continual improvement of our product
portfolio and to enhance our overall competiveness through better
control over operating expenses and overheads and streamlining
operation. We have prepared for any future market opportunities
by speeding up the construction of production base and increasing
investment.

As a parallel strategy to expand the Group’s production capacity,
the Group, where appropriate, pursues strategic alliance and
operations outsourcing by shifting certain of its manufacturing
process across reliable and specialised service providers so as to
enable the Group to use more efficiently its recourses for brand
promotion, sales channel development, product research and other
development of the Group’s business in the PRC.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total cash and cash
equivalents of RMB2,290.8 million (2011: RMB2,369.1 million),
among which 92.2% were denominated in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2012, the Group had pledged bank deposit of RMB4.7
million (2011: RMB17.6 million). Current assets of the Group
amounted to RMB4,917.3 million (2011: RMB4,617.0 million) with
current liabilities of RMB4,948.2 million (2011: RMB5,086.6 million).
Net current liabilities were RMB30.9 million (2011: RMB469.6
million). The Group mainly finances its working capital and capital
expenditure by internally generated cash flows and credit facilities
from principal bankers. As at 31 December 2012. The Group’s total
borrowings increased by RMB874.8 million to RMB3,970.9 million
(2011: RMB3,096.1 million), at floating interest rates, among which
89.7% were repayable over one year and 76.8% were denominated
in United States dollar. As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not
have any secured bank borrowing (2011: RMB69 million). Due to
the surge in profit for the Year, most of the capital expenditure was
funded by cash inflow from the Group’s operating activities.
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The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2011
were as follows:

—E——fF —EF—%F

2012 2011

AR¥T R ARBFIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

wigsE Total borrowings 3,970,879 3,096,132

B ReRReEED Less: cash and cash equivalents (2,290,809) (2,369,050)

BIEHH Net debt 1,680,070 727,082

B Total equity 7,671,068 6,810,895

BE AR Total capital 9,351,138 7,537,977

BERBENLE Gearing ratio 17.97% 9.65%
RERBEEARLT H Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure
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During the Year, the Group recorded a net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents of RMB78.2 million, mainly comprising net cash
inflow from operating activities of RMB2,541.0 million, net cash
inflow from financing activities of RMB786.2 million, and net cash
outflow from investing activities of RMB3,405.2 million. The net
cash outflow from investing activities was mainly applied to the
expansion in scale of production, establishment of new production
base, and purchasing machinery and equipment for instant noodles
business and beverage business for enhancing the production
capacity to satisfy demand due to consumption market expansion
and the Group’s business growth. During the Year, the Group had
capital expenditure of RMB3,578.0 million (2011: RMB4,162.1
million).
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Analysis of Operating Efficiency

Sales to most customers are made on a delivery on payment
basis. The Group’s trade receivables are generated from credit
sales to credit customers from modern channels with credit terms
normally ranging from 30 to 60 days. For the Year, trade receivables
decreased by RMBO0.7 million to RMB512.6 milion. The Group’s
inventories mainly comprised raw and packaging materials, finished
goods and low value consumables. The inventories turnover days
decreased by 4 days as compared with 2011 as the finished
products continuously sold well through the sales channels. As of
31 December 2012, the inventories balance increased by RMB10.8
million as compared to the beginning of the year. The Group’s
trade payables mainly arise from credit purchases of raw materials.
For the Year, the Group recorded an increase in trade payables
of RMB246.2 million, mainly due to the increase in purchase of

e raw materials and increase in accounts payable resulting from the
substantial growth in sales performance for the Year.

BEr —F——Ff - H=+—HIFEF

For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E--F —E——4%F

2012 2011

JEUE 5 R EE RS Trade receivables turnover days 9 10

GFERAEXHK Inventories turnover days 33 37

ETE 5 R A E RE Trade payables turnover days 34 34
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Financial Management and Policy

In the face of slightly eased global economic crisis, stabilised
economic situation of the PRC and the continuous growth of the
Group’s results, the Group adheres to the principle of financial
prudence. We responded to risk factors and moved forward in
a steady pace by moderate increase in capital expenditures and
expansion of infrastructure.

The Group’s financial department formulates financial risk
management policies based on the policies and programmes
approved by the Board and guided by the executive Director which
were reviewed by the Group’s internal audit department regularly.
The Group’s financial policy aims at reducing the impact of interest
rate and exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial
position, as well as minimising the Group’s financial risk exposure.
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The Group’s financial department provides centralised financial
risk (including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash
flow management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and
its members. Most of the Group’s functional currency is Renminbi
since majority of the revenues of it are derived from operations
in the PRC. Foreign exchange risk may arise from the future
borrowings from overseas and recognised assets or liabilities,
such as cash and cash equivalents and borrowings, part of which
are denominated in United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar.
The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts outside the
PRC for risk management and control of the Group’s assets and
liabilities in due course. Our policy is not to engage in speculative
derivative financial transactions and not to invest the current capital
in financial products with significant underlying leverage or risk,
including hedge funds or similar instruments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2012.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMOLUMENT
POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 36,802 employees.
In view of the huge market opportunities for dairy beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is actively expanding
its foothold on a large scale, thus fuelling a huge demand for
talents. It aims at fulfiling the human resources demand arising
from the rapid business and production expansion by adopting a
more prudent and effective approach in the selection and hiring
process. In respect of the new grass roots staff, the Company
devotes considerable resources in staff training and monitoring their
development and progress in a timely manner in order to familiarise
them with the working environment and build up team spirit.
Meanwhile, the Company recognises the value of its key personnel
in maintaining team morale and competitiveness. Both internal
promotion and external recruitment are applied to select and
promote top employees for vacant positions and attract qualified
candidates to join the Company. On the other hand, the Group
ensures the continuity of the senior management by grooming
management talents with various measures, such as continuous
internal training and appropriate job rotation as well as external on-
the-job training.
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The emolument policy of the Group is to reward its employees and
Directors based on their performance, qualifications, competence
displayed, market comparables and the performance of the Group.
With regard to the Group’s emolument policy, the Group have
entered into separate employment contracts with its employees
regarding the terms on wages and salaries, national allowances,
social security benefits, employee benefits, work place safety and
hygiene environment, confidentiality of commercial secrets and
termination conditions. Upon and after the listing of the Company’s
shares, the remuneration package may extend to include share
options which may be granted under the share option scheme of
the Company adopted pursuant to the written resolution passed
on 23 November 2007. Apart from those with middle and senior
management officers, the term of the employment contracts
ranges from one to three years. New employees are subject to a
probationary period of two months.

For the Year, the total staff costs (including Directors’” emoluments)
were RMB2,5083.1 million (2011: RMB1,877.4 million).
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Report of the Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to present its report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 76 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB4.756 cents per share for the Year amounting to a total
dividend of RMB171,178,000 in total. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details are
set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. There
was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 21
to the consolidated financial statements. There is no movement in
the share capital of the Company during the Year.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB4,524,753,000.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB182,952 (2011: RMB444,650).
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== DIRECTORS
RRRRAFEENEENT The directors of the Company during the Year were:
HITES Executive Directors

BEERE(E/E) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)

LRI St (HEAEHE) Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)

FHITES Non-executive Directors

=EBLE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen

MEERE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng

WEELE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi

BRI AL Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

BAUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
PR BB 1 % A Mr. Chen Sun-Te

SBIESLAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony

5 TR 7 A Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu

BREiE Mr. Lo Peter

BIERAATEGESIE ([H&Z72]) 130 In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of

& MEFEEE 228 %k4E  BERESE  the Company (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Lin Lung-Yi,

EBREEEEBRENGERITZREBASE RS Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu and Mr. Lo Peter will retire

FwmERE UHEERAREZEEMT- by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

AATEEBERHENFRFEISEZEE52E - The biographies of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 48 to 52 of the annual report.

BMEAENBEHORTAFAS FHETEER  None of the directors who are being proposed for re-election at

E2x mEEAQNTHEWBATEISZEM  the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with

TAR—ERNTTEE CEEEERIN) ML the Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of

IERRTEE 4] o its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of associated corporation

BROHAE
Number of shares

R-B-Z=F

+=A

185% =+—-H2

UFFzsk FRES K

ZEEERA BEzERE Percentage of

HERR 2SR Interest shareholding

Name of corporation AR of child DA EE as at

and name of its Personal under 18 Corporate #%t 31 December

relevant shareholder Interest  or spouse Interest Total 2012
H—ERD Uni-President Enterprises

BRAR Corporation

25R Kao Chin-Yen 110,075 112,024 - 222,099 0.00%

HEE Lin Chang-Sheng 42,874,498 2,811,166 - 45,685,664 0.94%

wEE Lin Lung-Yi 1,595,044 1,271,433 - 2,866,477 0.06%

BEE Lo Chih-Hsien 3,473,635 79,742,756 - 83,216,391 1.71%

B EXHimEEN R-_FT— -4+ —-HFH Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of

ZST—H BEARFEFHEIETHRAR
REEEE2BEAL  HHEMIHENAK
NERBE LM EERIIFEI2ERERF2E
At RIRBFRE TR AN G AR B KB
R WA DB HEEMEEEE (E& L&
7 KB GROIEXVER) (D - R IE
HZEBIKRR °

the directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract/letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years and may be re-elected upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts with the Company, during the
Year, no other contracts of significance to which the Company,
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the directors of the
Company and directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their
respective associates had interests in businesses, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and their
respective associates, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and
its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules.
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Name

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial shareholders

maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
showed that the following shareholders had notified the Company
of their relevant interests in the issued share capital of the

Company:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

B EntE
Capacity/
Nature of interest

FREDH

KB B Percentage of

Number of shares

shareholding

Cayman President Holdings Ltd.

Uni-President Enterprises Corporation*
(Note 1)
m—ERBROER QR (HaL1)

Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited

Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited

Arisaig Partners (Holdings) Ltd (Note 2)
Arisaig Partners (Holdings) Ltd (#/3£2)

Skye Partners Limited (Note 2)
Skye Partners Limited (#7572)

Lindsay William Ernest Cooper (Note 3)
Lindsay William Ernest Cooper (#77£3)

Beneficial owner
EnlEAA

Interest of a
controlled corporation

SR K B 3

Beneficial owner

BB A

Investment manager
REKE

Interest of a
controlled corporation
REHEE R

Interest of a
controlled corporation
EEGEE R

Interest of a
controlled corporation

S 12 5% A 25

BG—EPEERERAR —E——FFK
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2,537,090,000

2,537,090,000

197,086,000

197,086,000
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197,086,000

197,086,000

70.49%
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5.48%

5.48%

5.48%

5.48%

5.48%
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Notes:

(1)  Cayman President Holdings Ltd. is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®. Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation is, therefore, deemed or taken to be interested in the
2,537,090,000 shares of the Company which are beneficially owned
by Cayman President Holdings Ltd. by virtue of the SFO.

(2)  Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Arisaig Partners (Holdings) Ltd which is in turn wholly-owned by Skye
Partners Limited. Arisaig Partners (Holdings) Ltd and Skye Partners
Limited are, therefore, deemed to be interested in the 197,086,000
shares of the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(©)] Lindsay William Ernest Cooper owns 33.33% interests in Skye
Partners Limited. Lindsay William Ernest Cooper is, therefore,
deemed to be interested in the 197,086,000 shares of the Company
which are held by Arisaig Partners (Mauritius) Limited on his behalf by
virtue of the SFO.

(4)  Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no other
person had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Uni-President Enterprises Corporation* (“Uni-President”) is the
holding company of Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (“Cayman

President”) which in turn is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. As Cayman President is a connected person of the
Company and Uni-President is an associate of Cayman President,
Uni-President is also a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group with Uni-President and its associates during the Year and
which are not exempt under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are
set out below:
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FRAMEWORK SALES AGREEMENT

On 13 November 2009, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement with Uni-President pursuant to which the
Company agreed to sell beverage and instant noodle products and
bakery products to Uni-President and its subsidiaries (excluding
the Company and its subsidiaries) (the “Uni-President Group”)
and its associates at prices no less than the market price at
which the Company sell to independent third parties for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring on
31 December 2012 (the “2009 Framework Sales Agreement”).

Forseeing the increasing demand in sales, on 30 March 2012, the
Company entered into a new framework sales agreement with
Uni-President for a term commencing from 17 May 2012 and
expiring on 31 December 2014 on substantially the same terms
as the 2009 Framework Sales Agreement (the “2012 Framework
Sales Agreement”). Upon the 2012 Framework Sales Agreement
becoming effective, the 2009 Framework Sales Agreement was
terminated by mutual agreement with no further effect.

FRAMEWORK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 13 November 2009, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement with Uni-President for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2012
pursuant to which the Company agrees to purchase and procure
the purchase of, on a non-exclusive basis, certain raw materials,
packaging materials and commercial goods from the Uni-President
Group and its associates (the “2009 Framework Purchase
Agreement”). Under the 2009 Framework Purchase Agreement, the
price of the materials supplied to the Company must not exceed
the market price.

Forseeing the increasing demand in the purchase, on 30 March 2012,
the Company entered into a new framework purchase agreement
with Uni-President for a term commencing from 17 May 2012 and
expiring on 31 December 2014 on substantially the same terms as
the 2009 Framework Purchase Agreement (the “2012 Framework
Purchase Agreement”).
Agreement becoming effective, the 2009 Framework Purchase
Agreement was terminated by mutual agreement with no further

Upon the 2012 Framework Purchase

effect.
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FRAMEWORK LOGISTICS SERVICE
AGREEMENT

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement with Uni-President in connection with
the provision by the Uni-President Group and its associates of,
on a non-exclusive basis, transportation and logistics service to
the Group (the “2012 Framework Logistics Service Agreement”).
Under the 2012 Framework Logistics Service Agreement, the
prices and terms with respect to the provision of transportation and
logistics service should be no less favourable than prices and terms
available to or from independent third parties to the Group.

The maximum aggregate annual value (“Annual Cap”) permitted
by the Stock Exchange or proposed by the Company (as the case
may be) and the aggregate annual value actually occurred for each
of the above mentioned continuing connected transactions for the
Year are set out below:

BEREH FELR
Actual amount  Annual Cap
(AREBETT)(ARBEET)

(RMB million)  (RMB million)

HE SR 38 & W ik Framework Sales Agreement

BIHEE A Total sales value 85.5 110
ERFE W Framework Purchase Agreement

B (EE Total purchase value 1,274.5 2,450
HEZR Y AR 755 190 2 Framework Logistics Service Agreement

B 5EE Total transaction value 9.0 9.3

ARTBLFNTEERS - LR ST
AREZAREREBBRTEEREE
BRI HaEBRATHE HEREA
FARYFARRERARVRE 2 ERF

.

m °

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, the above transactions were carried out in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, on normal commercial
terms and were in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them and on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Group and the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group as above in
accordance with the Listing Rules 14A.38.

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them believe the above transactions
were not:

o been approved by the Board;

° in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

° entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

o not exceeded their respective caps as disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 30 March 2012.

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the other connected transaction entered into by the
Group with Uni-President and its associates during the Year and
which are not exempt under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules are
set out below:
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Report of the Directors

On 30 March 2012, Taizhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd* (&&=
Mg —EFRARF) (“Taizhou President”) (a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and purchase
BhX

agreement with Taizhou Ton Vi Industrial Co., Ltd.* (Z=IN %2
BBRAT]) (“Taizhou Ton Yi") pursuant to which Tazhou President,

as vendor has disposed of, and Taizhou Ton Yi, as purchaser has
acquired the machinery and equipment, including, but not limited
to, certain production lines, ancillary office and storage support
facilities at the consideration of RMB220,000,000. As Uni-President
is interested in 30% or more of the voting power of Taizhou Ton i,
Taizhou Ton Yi is an associate of Uni-President and a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the disposal constitutes a

connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
subsidiaries or associates of Uni-President during the Year as
disclosed in Note 39(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
during the Year as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements do not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the case

may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received written confirmation from Uni-President
confirming that the Uni-President Group have not breached the
terms of the non-competition deed entered between the Company

and Uni-President on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total

purchases.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a written resolution passed on 23 November 2007.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to employees, directors
or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies
or associated companies of the Company which the Board
determines will be subject to the Scheme.

The total number of shares which may be issued under the
Scheme must not exceed 352,681,000 shares of the Company,
representing 10% of the total number of shares issued by the
Company as at 17 December 2007 (i.e. the listing date of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange). Unless approved
by shareholders of the Company in the manner as set out in the
Scheme, the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant of the
option.

The exercise price shall be the price determined by the Board
and notified to the option holder which shall not be less than
being the higher of: (a) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets; (b) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
of the shares on the date of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company. No amount will be payable for
the acceptance of an option.

During the Year and up to 31 December 2012, no share option has
been granted under the Scheme. The Scheme will remain in force
until 16 December 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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Report of the Directors

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at
the date of the annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible,
shall offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company.
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Facility Agreements dated 18 July 2012

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
27 July 2012 made in accordance with Rule 13.18 of the
Listing Rules, on 18 July 2012, the Company (as borrower)
entered into two facility agreements with two syndicates
of banks, respectively in respect to (i) a revolving facility
agreement for US$170 million (the “USD Agreement”) with the
drawn period of five years from the date of first drawdown
(or the expiry of six months from 18 July 2012 if the first
drawdown is not made within six months therefrom) and
(i) a revolving facility agreement for RMB1 billion (the “RMB
Agreement”, together with the USD Agreement, the “Facility
Agreements”) with the drawndown period of three years from
the date of first drawdown (or the expiry of six months from
18 July 2012 if the first drawdown is not made within six
months therefrom).

It is one of the conditions precedent to the drawdown under
the Facility Agreements that the controlling shareholder of
the company, Uni-President shall execute a letter of support
(“Letter of Support”) in which it shall undertake to the banks
that, among others, it shall, directly or indirectly, hold not less
than 51% of the issued share capital of the Company during
the continuance of the Facility Agreements. Under the Facility
Agreements, the Company has also undertaken to ensure
that Uni-President shall, directly or indirectly, hold not less
than 51% of the issued share capital of the Company during
the continuance of the Facility Agreements.

A breach of the undertakings in the Letter of Support or
any of the undertakings given by the Company under the
Facility Agreements may constitute an event of default of the
Facility Agreements and the lenders of each of the Facility
Agreements has the right to terminate the Facility Agreements
and all loans together with accrued interest and any other
amounts accrued under the Facility Agreements shall become
immediately due and payable.
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Report of the Directors

(i) Facility Agreement dated 15 August 2012

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 August 2012 made in accordance with Rule 13.18 of
the Listing Rules, on 15 August 2012, the Company (as
borrower) entered into a facility agreement (the “USD Facility
Agreement”) relating to a revolving facility in an aggregate
amount of US$30 million (the “Facility”) with a syndicate of
banks. The maturity date of the Facility is the date falling 365
days after the date of the USD Facility Agreement.

The Facility Agreement provides, among others, that a
change in control will occur if Uni-President ceases to own
at least 51% of the issued paid up capital of the Company
or maintain control of the Company. In the event of such
a change in control which will also constitute an event of
default, the lenders of the USD Facility Agreement have the
right to cancel the Facility and the loans together with all
accrued interest and all other amounts accrued under the
USD Facility Agreement will become immediately due and
payable.

On behalf of the Board
Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

Tainan, Taiwan
26 March 2013

* For identification purposes only
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Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (alias LO, Alex C.) (#£%55%), aged 56, is
our chairman and executive Director. Mr. Lo joined our Group
in September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of our Group. Except for Sichuan
Hongtong Commercial Trading Co., Ltd. (F9/ll5A @B ZEBRET
72x\]), he is currently a director of our PRC subsidiaries. He has
over 25 years of experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr.
Lo is a director of President Chain Store Corporation (4t — 8%
HBABRAT), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (Hi—E RN ARR A A]) and
ScinoPharm Taiwan., Ltd. (& /&+#[£ 15 AR A 7)), all of which are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation and a director
of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. (fEz2FTIRMHD AR A7),
which is listed on the Taiwan Gre Tai Securities Market. He is also
the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (45—
ERMDBRR AR and a director of 51 members of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation and its subsidiaries (the “Uni-President
Group”) (excluding our Group). Mr. Lo was awarded a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of California,
Los Angeles, U.S.A. in 1993. He is the son-in-law of Mr. Kao Chin-
Yen.

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung ({Z%[#), aged 48, was appointed as our
president and executive Director in September 2011. Mr. Hou
joined the Uni-President Group in February 1993 and has acted as
manager of a branch of Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp. (&
MEE—1%BBR A R]), deputy general manager and head of sales
department of Zhuhai Kirin President Brewery Co., Ltd. (¥ 4T
— 85 FR /A 7)), general manager of Beijing President Enterprises
Drinks Co., Ltd. GER#—KRmBR A7), and head of human
resources and general manager of the market planning office of
Uni-President Enterprises (China) Investments Ltd. (45— (Fh
Bl) & HFBR A F]). Mr. Hou has over 20 years of experience in the
food and beverage industry and has obtained a EMBA degree from
Tsinghua University in Beijing, China. Mr. Hou’s remuneration is
revised to RMB1,344,000 per annum in 2013.
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Directors’ Profile

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. KAO Chin-Yen (=)5/&), aged 85, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Kao joined our Group in August 2007. He joined
the Uni-President Group in July 1967. With over 45 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry, Mr. Kao is currently
the chairman of Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (55— 1> i%
AR /A7), President Chain Store Corporation (45— A
fRA7]), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (i —EBZRHABRAF]) and TTET
Union Corporation (K&t %5 AR AF), all of which are listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also a director of
13 members of the Uni-President Group (excluding our Group). He
obtained a doctorate in management with honours from National
Cheng Kung University in 2001. Mr. Kao Chin-Yen is the father-in-
law of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

Mr. LIN Chang-Sheng (#f&4), aged 70, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Lin joined our Group in December 1991. Mr. Lin joined
the Uni-President Group in January 1968 and is currently the CEO
of Uni-President Group and a director of 62 members of the Uni-
President Group (excluding our Group). He has over 40 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Lin is currently
a director of Tong Ren Corp. Limited (=& 2% {7 AR A 7)) and
each of our PRC subsidiaries. He is also a director of President
Chain Store Corporation (5t —#&rG %7 AR A 7l), Ton Yi Industrial
Corp. (Hi—EZERMBRRZAF]), TTET Union Corporation (K#tz:
AR A =) and Uni-President Enterprise Corporation (45—
PERMN BB AR), al of which are listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation. Mr. Lin graduated from National Cheng
Kung University with a bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering.

Mr. LIN Lung-Yi (#f[£3%), aged 69, is our non-executive Director.
Mr. Lin joined our Group in December 1991. He is currently a
director of Uni-President Enterprises (China) Investments Ltd. (&t
—{E(PER)IKEARAT), a subsidiary of the Company. He
joined the Uni-President Group in March 1971 and has over 41
years of experience in financial and accounting management. Mr.
Lin is currently the vice CEO of Uni-President Group and a director
of 29 members of the Uni-President Group (excluding our Group).
He is also a director of President Chain Store Corporation (4% —
BREM AR AR and Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (i — B %K H A
R 72 B]), both of which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation. Mr. Lin graduated from National Cheng Kung
University with a bachelor’s degree in accounting and statistics.
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Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (8f5=$4), aged 55, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Su joined our Group in August 2007. He joined
the Uni-President Group in August 2000, and is currently the
vice-president of Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (5t —1>%
%17 BBR /A R]) and a director of President Chain Store Corporation
(B—EBE D AR AR, both of which are listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation, Mr. Su is also a director of 22
members of the Uni-President Group (excluding our Group). Mr.
Su is currently . He has over 27 years of experience in banking and
financial management. Before joining the Uni-President Group, he
was the vice-president of the Taipei branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was
the financial specialist of Seibu Department Store in Tokyo, Japan
in 1988 and the senior specialist of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in
Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a master of business administration
degree from the University of lowa.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (PREE{E), aged 58, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in August 2007. He has over
28 years of experience in the banking and financial industry. He is
currently the advisor of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. and
the staff consultant of Pavilion Capital International Pte. Ltd. He
is also an independent director of China Electronics Corporation,
Nuvoton Technology Corp. and Lion Travel Services Co., Ltd.
Prior to that, Mr. Chen served as the president of North Asia and
Greater China, Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. between
2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust Financial Holdings
Co., Ltd. in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd.
between 2003 and 2005, the country officer and country head
of the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and
2003, and the regional head of financial markets in Asia Pacific of
Citigroup between 1998 and 2001. He gained extensive financial
management experience from various positions held with Citibank
and Citigroup and has acquired general knowledge about the
food and beverage industry through dealing with clients from
that industry. Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business
administration from University of Missouri and a bachelor’s degree
in political science from National Chengchi University.
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. FAN Ren Da, Anthony ((21-#), aged 52, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director in August 2007. Mr. Fan
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the United
States of America. He is the chairman and managing director of
Asialink Capital Limited. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Technovator International Limited (Stock Code: 1206),
Raymond Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 229), Shanghai Industrial
Urban Development Group Limited (Stock Code: 563), Renhe
Commercial Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu
Cayman Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources Limited
(Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296), China Development
Bank International Investment Limited (Stock Code: 1062) and
Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
2882), all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr Fan
has been the independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
WorldUnion Properties Consultancy Co Ltd. listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002285) (from September 2010 until
August 2012).

Mr. YANG Ing-Wuu (i53R), aged 68, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in November 2007. He
holds a bachelor’'s and a master’s degree in Law from National
Chengchi University. Mr. Yang is currently the secretary general of
Taiwan Vegetable Oil Manufacturers Association (& & &8 1)H &
T %R 2E) and the executive counsel of Guangda Cereals
Joint Stock Limited Company (Yt AR AERAF]). Prior to
this, Mr. Yang was the executive director of Taiwan Soya Bean
Importers Joint Committee (& /&EENHTEE TELZEE), the
chairman of the board of Huanguo International Trade Company
=B E 5 A7), the secretary general of General Chamber of
Commerce of Taiwan, the secretary general of China Food Industry
Competitiveness Enhancement Association (FER REEHRF IR
#E) and a part-time lecturer at Chihlee Institute of Technology and
Shih Hsin University. Mr. Yang has over 38 years of experience in
the food industry.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LO Peter (¥3z £), aged 57, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in November 2007. He is
currently a director of China Enterprise Capital Limited and the
chairman and a non-executive director of Sino Distillery Group
Limited (formerly known as Bio-Dynamic Group Limited ) and the
chairman and an executive director of China Outfitters Holdings
Limited, both of which are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director
of Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lo was the chief executive officer and an executive
director of Harbin Brewery Group Limited (a company engaging
in the production and distribution of beer) from 1998 to 2004.
Mr. Lo holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematical economics and
econometrics from the London School of Economics and Political
Science.
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Senior Management

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung (Z%%), aged 48, is our president and
executive Director. The day-to-day operations of the Group and
implementation of the strategy and direction set by the Board are
delegated to the management team of the Company which is led
by Mr. Hou. Mr. Hou’s biographical details are set out in the section
of the Directors’ profile in this annual report.

Mr. LIU Xin-Hua (237%), aged 43, joined our Group in July
1994. He acted as the head of food department of our Group in
August 2008. He has 19 years of experience in the food industry
and holds a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Electronic Science and Technology (& FRHE A ).

Mr. CHEN Chia-Heng (FR%2%7), aged 55, joined our Group
in June 2003. He was the head of our instant noodle products
business from June 2003 to September 2006 and has been the
head of the combined drink products business of our Group since
September 2006. He joined Uni-President Group in 1982 and has
over 30 years of experience in the food and beverage industry.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration from
National Cheng Kung University.
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Mr. LIU Chi-Tai (215 %&), aged 51, joined our Group in August
2008. He acted as the head of operation in southwestern China
from August 2008 to July 2009,
instant noodles and dairy drink businesses, and as the head of food

responsible for overseeing the

business in southern China from July 2009 to December 2010. He
was re-designated as general manager of the head office of the
juice business in our Shanghai headquarters in December 2010,
and has been the general manager of the head office of the tea
business since September 2011. He has more than 24 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. He graduated from

Chung Yuan Christian College of Science and Engineering.

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (f&1f %),
President Enterprises Corp. (& /M £ —
of our Group,

aged 41, joined Guangzhou
EBFRAQF), a subsidiary
in February 2009 and was responsible for the
management of marketing functions of Guangzhon President
Enterprises Corp. (BM %t — 3B R 2 F]) and Wuhan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (RE# —RmABR A F]), subsidiaries
of our group, prior to October 2011. She was re-designated as
the deputy general manager of the head office of our Group’s
tea business in October 2011. Before joining our Group, she has
engaged in marketing in various group of companies such as
Wyeth in the United States, Ting Hsin International Group (JE#T
B EEE) and YFY (KZ%£) and has 16 years of experience in
relation to the food and fast moving consumer goods industries.
In 2006, she started to work in Mainland China when she joined
Wei Chuan Foods Corporation ()& & m L2 7D B R A7)
of Ting Hsin International Group (TEFTEIEX££[E) and has since
gained 7 years of work experience in the mainland. Ms. Chen holds
a master’s degree in nutrition from Taipei Medical University in
Taiwan and has participated in various training programs in the field
of marketing at various levels during her career.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (f:5.%), aged 37, joined our Group in April
1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (EILG—1NERMAR AT
from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed as
the head of bottled water department of our Group since October
2006. He has more than 14 years of experience in the food and
beverage industry and holds a bachelor’'s degree in economics
from Shanghai Maritime University.
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Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (fRElE), aged 44, joined our Group in May
2011 and is currently the chief financial officer of our Group, the
supervisor of all our Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and a director
of Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Co., Ltd. (BEE/TA eI L FLER
HEBRAF). He joined Uni-President Group in 1997 and has over
16 years of experience in financial management. Mr. Chen holds
a master’s degree in business administration from University of
Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.

Company Secretary

Mr. PANG Ka-Fai Angus (&% ##), aged 43, is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Pang has 21 years of experience
in financial management and corporate secretarial work. He joined
the Company in February 2008. Mr. Pang holds a master degree of
Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accounting, and
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices and
procedures and appreciates that good corporate governance is
crucial to enhancing investors’ confidence in the Company. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
Company has complied with all code provisions of (i) the former
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective until 31 March
2012) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the period from 1
January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and (i) the revised and renamed
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the period from 1 April 2012
to 31 December 2012, except for the deviations as disclosed in this
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) consists of two executive
Directors, four non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 (the
“Year”) and up to the date of this annual report. The composition of
the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kao Chin-Yen
Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng
Mr. Lin Lung-Yi

Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu

Mr. Lo Peter
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The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 48 to 52 of
the annual report.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Board considers each of them to be independent under the
aforesaid Rule 3.13.

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive directors) is three years. In accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), at
each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Directors (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors’ remuneration are determined with reference to their
duties, responsibilities and experience, and to the prevailing market
conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term business
objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor and control the
operating, management and financial performance of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). There are currently
four committees established under the Board, being the audit
committee, the nomination committee, the remuneration committee
and the investment, strategy and development committee. Each
committee has its terms of reference and reports to the Board
regularly.

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the President. The roles of the Chairman
of the Board and President of the Company are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman of the Board is responsible
for ensuring that the Directors perform their duties properly and
ensuring discussions on material matters take place on a timely
basis. The power and authority to carry out day-to-day operations
and implementation of the strategy and direction set by the Board
are delegated to the management team of the Company (the
“Management”) which is led by the President. The Management
assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of the
Group.
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Member of the Board

During the Year, the Company held five Board meetings. The
attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings during
the Year is set out below:

HEEBAE ERHE
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

BITES Executive Directors
BESLE(EE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 4/5
RERIE ST A (R4 HE ) Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President) 5/5
FHITES Non-executive Directors
mBRLE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen 0/5
WEELE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng 5/5
T‘Mé%ﬁf‘ﬁi Mr. Lin Lung-Yi 5/5
BRERE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 5/5
BIERITES Independent non-executive Directors
lﬁ%?ﬁ?ﬁi Mr. Chen Sun-Te 5/5
BIERAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 5/5
TE' TR EE Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 5/5
BEEXE Mr. Lo Peter 5/5
RS ETA ZTFEMESIAL. 7T  EE€ Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
TRBEZVBFERBEHTEEZLEE FEIE  requires the Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least

PTES (REBYIFNTESR)E@M - AR
BEEOEREETRCENABRITES  BUK
N ) B 1R Bl U 15 37 @ B A ST RIS ST o
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FMEEE
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annually with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.
As Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, the Chairman of the Board,
executive Director, the Company has deviated from this code

is also an

provision as it is not applicable.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr.
Yang Ing-Wuu, who are both independent non-executive Directors,
and Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng, who is a non-executive Director. The
remuneration committee is chaired by Mr. Chen Sun-Te.
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Member of the
remuneration committee

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the remuneration committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The remuneration committee held two meetings during the Year. A
summary of work performed by the remuneration committee is set
out as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors; and

(i) reviewed the current level and remuneration structure/
package and approved the specific remuneration package of
the executive Directors.

The attendance record of each member at the remuneration
committee meetings in 2012 is set out below:

HESEBAE EEHE
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

PREEMES & (£ /%) Mr. Chen Sun-Te (Chairman) 2/2
% 0, T A Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 2/2
B ST E Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng 2/2

REEZES

REZBEEHMUBYIFRTEST B ER
HHEBERERER —NRATEFTELSREE
MR -ECERERREZEGIE -

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
and Mr. Lo Peter, who are both independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, who is an executive Director. The
nomination committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.
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Member of the
nomination committee

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members of the Board, assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to the Board, or select individual nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint of Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the nomination committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
and the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the
composition of the Board whenever the Company requires to
meet the business demand, opportunities and challenges and to
comply with the applicable laws and regulations. The nomination
procedure basically follows the Articles of Association, which
empowers the Board from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. The nomination committee will base on
criteria such as the qualification, ability, working experience,
leadership and professional ethics to identify and recommend the
proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment,
and where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, his/her independence will be
assessed in accordance with, among others, the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments
as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/
she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filing the office of
an independent non-executive Director with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the nomination committee held one meeting
to review the composition and structure of the Board and
recommended the Board to continue to retain the existing board
members of the Board. The attendance record of each member at
the nomination committee meeting during the Year is set out below:

HESERY SH8AE
Number of meeting attended/
number of meeting

SBIERE(FE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman) 1/1
BE25E Mr. Lo Peter 11
BEE A Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 1/1
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Member of the investment,
strategy and development committee

INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

The Board established an investment, strategy and development
committee on 13 October 2008 comprising Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, Mr.
Hou Jung-Lung who are executive Directors, Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng,
who is a non-executive Director, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Yang
Ing-Wuu and Mr. Lo Peter, who are independent non-executive
Directors. The investment, strategy and development committee is
chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The primary functions of the investment, strategy and development
committee are to review the investment and development plan
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the investment, strategy and development committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The investment, strategy and development committee held five
meetings during the Year. The attendance record of each member
at the investment, strategy and development committee meetings is
set out below:

HESERE SREA
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

BESREE(FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 4/5
EERESTE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung 5/5
mEEEE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng 3/5
PREEFESE A4 Mr. Chen Sun-Te 5/5
BRI A Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 4/5
KEELE Mr. Lo Peter 5/5
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr.
Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Lo Peter, who are independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. Lin Lung-Yi, who is a non-executive Director. The
audit committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditor, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the audit
committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The audit committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the annual and interim financial statements and the effectiveness
of the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of work
performed by the audit committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditor the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual and interim financial statements for the Year and
for the six-months ended 30 June 2012 respectively;

(i) met with the external auditor and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i)  reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

(iv) conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

(v) approved the audit plan for the year ended 31 December
2013; and

(vi)  reviewed the external auditor’s independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditor and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor.

—FEFHR
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ERENAEELEEREZE S5 2508 The attendance record of each member at the audit committee
;AT - meetings during the Year is set out below:

HEEBXRE g2¥E
EREEERE Number of meetings attended/
Member of the audit committee number of meetings
SBITESRE(FE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman) 3/3
PREEfE LA Mr. Chen Sun-Te 3/3
MER L E Mr. Lin Lung-Yi 3/3
BEELE Mr. Lo Peter 3/3
R zEBIIHEREEMS AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
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FRELME - RAFE  BRABIKEG
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AW EAZIN PR BE N EAIFEZERH
AR 75 & 357 B o

REMUNERATION

The audit committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditor to ensure objectively and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with the applicable
standard. Members of the audit committee were of the view
that the Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is independent and have recommended the Board to re-
appoint it as the external auditor of the Company subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM. During the Year,
PricewaterhouseCoopers has rendered audit services to the Group
and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is RMB5.3
million. No Significant remuneration was paid to the external auditor
for the provision of non-audit related service to the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices and the Corporate Governance
Code (as the case may be) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed
and they are also entitled to have full access to Board papers and
related materials so that they are able to make informed decisions
and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interest and business of
the Group and they have been updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed
by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance,
at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code effective on
1 April 2012 on directors’ training. During the Year or since the
effective date of the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials on the following topics
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a
record of training to the Company.
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Name of Directors

FBEEIER (Hit)
Topics on training covered (Note)

BEESLE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien a
REIESLE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung a, c
maREE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen a
WEESLE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng a
7PW§%5‘E$ Mr. Lin Lung-Yi a
Bk Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a

ﬁ%%%f‘ﬁi Mr. Chen Sun-Te a
BoELAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b, c
R LA Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu a
BREXE Mr. Lo Peter a, b, c
BaF: (a) ©EEREE Note: (a)  corporate governance/regulatory

b)) <@ (o)  finance

() HBETE (€)  industry-specific

ZHNBRESAD) ([HRESFR

ARADRA LRS- EZRET
A UREBEEFZEFRH - RARFMED

FRlE#@K 2BEFER  RERAFE
RBEAFHREHC2@ER “/‘i—rﬁ'JFﬁ%Z
ZIBEANEBERESE SRR S ZHET
U

ERRER

RAFBABRAEEER ETHRABET 2
BRETREMBERERER ARAXE
R TREEARRRRER : ()BRKE
BFERSRBFRNE MR R 2 RRE
AAg ((REFNRE]) (WE) - FARAF
BREKeREETSHEEBED  (MRBL™
BABRTEANEARART Z2AE - FW - PEWR
ER/RBRE(ER) FTER - URER
EEH 7 HHER  Ri)EBARTHILEG
REBZEHBE -

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transaction during the Year and
up to the date of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”"), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and, if appropriate, press releases
of the Company providing updated information of the Group;
and (i) the availability of latest information of the Group at the
Company’s website.
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of
the Company and the Board. During the Year, there were two
general meetings held (the AGM and an EGM both held on 17
May 2012). Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman of the Board, chairman
of the investment, strategy and development committee and
member of the nomination committee), Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, a
non-executive Director, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (chairman of
both audit committee and nomination committee), Mr. Yang Ing-
Wuu (member of the remuneration committee, the investment,
strategy and development committee) and Mr. Lo Peter (member
of the nomination committee, the audit committee and the
investment, strategy and development committee) were present
and available to answer any questions raised by the shareholders
of the Company. The EGM was held for approving, among others,
certain continuing connected transactions of the Company and
the estimated maximum aggregate annual transaction values
for the Year until the year ending 31 December 2014. The three
independent non-executive Directors present at the EGM were
available to answer any questions raised by the independent
shareholders of the Company. According to the code provision
A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of the Company. Mr. Kao Chin-Yen, Mr. Lin
Chang-Sheng and Mr. Lin Lung-Yi, each a non-executive Director,
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, an independent non-executive Director and Mr.
Hou Jung-Lung (an executive Director and the President) were
unable to attend the aforesaid general meetings of the Company
due to unexpected business engagement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong written requisition specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as at the
date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s) hold
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at a general meeting of the
Company.
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

(2) Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to
the Company Secretary by post to the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or by e-mail to angus@pec.com.cn
or by fax to +852 2893 1150.

(3) Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at the general meetings
under the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum?”)
and Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do
so, they may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above
and specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution has been passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM held on 17 May 2012 for the amendment of
the then existing Memorandum and the Articles of Association. The
effects of the amendments are primarily as follows:

()  to remove the 5% de minimis exemption on a Director’s right
to vote on an interested transaction;

(i) to require any proposal to appoint or remove an auditor
before the term of the office of the auditor to be approved by
shareholders of the Company at a general meeting;

(i) to require a physical board meeting to be held (in lieu
of written resolutions) where a Director or substantial
shareholder of the Company has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board, which the Board has
determined to be material; and

(iv) to allow a chairman at a general meeting to exempt certain
prescribed procedural and administrative matters from a vote
by poll.

A new set of Memorandum and Articles of Association,
which consolidates all of the amendments as approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the AGM, as the new
amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
in substitution for and to the exclusion of the then existing
Memorandum and Articles of Association has been adopted. A
copy of the amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association has been published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out on page 70
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound internal controls
to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investment as
well as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained,
appropriate legislation and regulations are complied with. During
the Year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system, including, among
others, financial, operational and compliance controls and risk

management functions.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board and the guidance of the audit committee.
The objectives of the internal audit plan are to achieve the four
major goals of the Company — strategy, operation, reporting and
compliance, by effectively minimising the exposures, enhancing
internal control and improving operating efficiency of the Company.

As at 31 December 2012, members of the audit unit of the
Company continued to perform their audit duties based on the
internal control mechanism for comprehensive risk management
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work comprised financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management, the audit on all group levels and functions of the
Group and the examination of the effectiveness for the labour cost
of the Company. Besides the audit and planning works based on
various degrees of risk exposures, the audit unit also carried out
computer-aided internal audits to ensure the quality of the audit
and the completion of the audit as scheduled.
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BRRRAKE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 184, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2012, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

BEEAKEBENERLA  BEFRAFAELN

-4

ABE : +852 2289 8888 + (ZE - +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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2012 2011
=3 AR®BT R AR¥T T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
b {55 A A Land use right 6 1,426,756 1,272,155
W - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 7 7,911,655 5,579,385
WA Investment properties 8 167,880 101,469
EmREE Intangible assets 9 6,937 8,054
REAREHEE R Interests in jointly controlled entities 11 189,300 158,941
N RN o Interests in associates 12 1,140,272 1,023,272
AHEEEREE Available-for-sale financial assets 13 586,272 511,207
RS EE Deferred income tax assets 14 173,070 156,479
H b fE Yz T8 — FEBNERER > Other receivables — non-current portion 18 20,418 309,410
11,622,560 9,120,372
REBEE Current assets
"E Inventories 16 1,284,940 1,274,163
B E FEER Trade receivables 17 512,579 513,305
FERRIE - Zek Prepayments, deposits and other
H A FE kI8 receivables 18 824,261 442,894
EEFIRITER Pledged bank deposits 19 4,664 17,608
RekBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 2,290,809 2,369,050
4,917,253 4,617,020
HWEE Total assets 16,539,813 13,737,392




R-Z——F+_=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2012

—E-C-F —E——%F
2012 2011
B 5 ARE TR ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
R EQUITY
AQTAEZIZEAELGESZR  Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
[N Share capital 21 34,047 34,047
%157 4 (8 Bk Share premium account 21 2,243,980 2,243,980
E A Other reserves 22
— ¥R B - Proposed dividends 34 171,178 93,582
—HAth — Others 5,221,863 4,439,286
WRER Total equity 7,671,068 6,810,895
aE LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
BEEMEMAERE Deferred income tax liability 14 161,111 165,181
BE Borrowings 25 3,562,321 1,511,915
E b e 3008 —JEBNERER 2 Other payables — non-current portion 24 197,130 162,822
3,920,562 1,839,918
REBAE Current liabilities
ERNESEFRRER Trade and bills payables 23 1,441,944 1,195,779
Hip et a8 kg &R Other payables and accruals 24 2,995,557 2,244,265
BE Borrowings 25 408,558 1,584,217
EHEHAaE Current income tax liabilities 102,124 62,318
4,948,183 5,086,579
wWEE Total liabilities 8,868,745 6,926,497
EaREEEH Total equity and liabilities 16,539,813 13,737,392
REBEEFE Net current liabilities (30,930) (469,559)
WEERARBERS Total assets less current liabilities 11,591,630 8,650,813
EEL R
LO Chih-Hsien HOU Jung-Lung
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
F8IE1848 v MR A GRE M IEHREK 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 184 are an integral part of these

e

consolidated financial statements.



R-ZE——F+=-F=+—H As at 31 December 2012

—E--F —E——%F
2012 2011
=3 AR®BT R AR¥T T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
R—KMBRF ZEE Investment in a subsidiary 10(a) 5,167,339 4,145,741
R—REERF) 2R Interest in an associate 1,436 1,436
AtHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 13 420,461 336,239
Y% - BER&E Property, plant and equipment 12 14
H b el 5kI8 — JEBNHAER % Other non-current receivables 18 10,307 8,325
B EE Intangible assets 2 5
5,599,557 4,491,760
REBEE Current assets
FENRIE Zek Prepayments, deposits and other
H A E U SR8 receivables 18 4,971 3,066
JE W BT |8~ R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 10(b) 585,200 218,401
BERTHERA Loans to subsidiaries 10(c) 2,051,896 1,181,679
ReMRESEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 96,109 20,194
2,738,176 1,423,340
HEE Total assets 8,337,733 5,915,100




R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2012

—E-C-F —E——%F
2012 2011
B 5 AR® T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
E EQUITY
f& AR Share capital 21 34,047 34,047
f& 19 ) B Share premium account 21 2,243,980 2,243,980
B At Other reserves 22
— R IS — Proposed dividends 34 171,178 93,582
—HAth — Others 2,109,595 2,186,227
wiES Total equity 4,558,800 4,557,836
=R LIABILITIES
eIl h=Ki Non-current liabilities
BE Borrowings 25 3,562,321 1,311,960
REBAE Current liabilities
HEmEmE Rk ETER Other payables and accruals 24 28,047 45,304
B Borrowings 25 188,565 =
216,612 45,304
FER=R Total liabilities 3,778,933 1,357,264
EzRaEBEE Total equity and liabilities 8,337,733 5,915,100
REBEEFE Net current assets 2,521,564 1,378,036
BWEEBRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 8,121,121 5,869,796
EEL R
LO Chih-Hsien HOU Jung-Lung
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
FB1E184B Y TR ARG RETR 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 184 are an integral part of these

B -

consolidated financial statements.



BHE_FT——F+=-A=1+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E--F —E——%F
2012 2011
B 5 AR®BT R ARETF T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
W &5 Revenue 5 21,405,723 16,931,929
5 6 B AR Cost of sales 28 (14,003,879)  (11,989,317)
EF Gross profit 7,401,844 4,942,612
H i F15 — %5 Other gains - net 26 118,664 69,173
R ON Other income 27 214,231 135,972
H 5 Other expenses 28 (87,276) (45,930)
HERMGHERS Selling and marketing expenses 28 (6,043,037) (4,292,431)
TR Administrative expenses 28 (722,909) (548,153)
&R Operating profit 881,517 261,243
A& WKA Finance income 116,701 126,206
b & B AR Finance costs (52,877) (31,144)
E WA —F5E Finance income — net 30 63,824 95,062
FEAEREIESIEBE & Share of results of jointly controlled
FENEI entities and associates 11,12 131,588 40,086
R FT 18 Bt B 2 R Profit before income tax 1,076,929 396,391
Fris®if X Income tax expense 31 (221,041) (84,451)
FERAQTEZ Profit for the year and attributable to
BB AEGEER equity holders of the Company 855,888 311,940
FERAAEZBEREA Earnings per share for profit
EEizeREF attributable to equity holders of
(AEBRARKETIE) the Company during the year
—EARREE (expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic and diluted 88 23.78% cents 8.677cents
B E Dividends 34 171,178 93,582

E184B MR AR A M B HRER 2 —

o

g

81
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The notes on pages 81 to 184 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.



HE—FT——F+=-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-C-F —E——%F
2012 2011
B &E AR¥ T ARBFIT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FERR Profit for the year 855,888 311,940
Hith 2w : Other comprehensive income:
REERTHEE Transfer of fair value gains previously
SEEEEALA taken to reserve to income
FFARECATE statement upon disposal of
MIFERERET available-for-sale financial assets 22 (14,039) (20,322)
At ESREES Fair value gains on available-for-sale
R EMEBRTFE financial assets, net of tax 98,981 15,452
R ESREE Transfer of fair value loss previously
VERIERE-SET NI taken to reserve to income
HEZ A EEE statement upon impairment of
EEE R available-for-sale financial assets,
—BREFRR net of tax 12,925 -
FEHMEZEKE Other comprehensive income for
—BREFEE the year, net of tax 97,867 (4,870)
FEREALAAEZBERTA Total comprehensive income for
EBiEzE2EREAE the year and attributable to equity
holders of the Company 953,755 307,070
F81E1848 v MR AR E M FHREK 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 184 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.



HEZ

T——F+ - =+—HI-4E For the year ended 31 December 2012

ANREREEAEN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
L& R EE L &t
Share Share Other
capital premium reserves Total
R-ZE——§-F—Hz&#H Balance at 1 January 2011 34,047 2,243,980 4,381,510 6,659,537
20 Llili‘ﬁ Comprehensive income
ERET Profit for the year - - 311,940 311,940
HAzEbs Other comprehensive income
RUETHHESBAER Transfer of fair value gain previously
BaaEt ANEE 2 D EE taken to reserve to income
HEBRENEER statement upon disposal of
o available-for-sale financial assets - - (20,322) (20,322)
AfHERHEEZATE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
ME-RUFR financial assets, net of tax - - 15,452 15,452
Htt2 AR EAE Total other comprehensive income - = (4,870) (4,870)
FEZEAKNGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 307,070 307,070
BREBARTZIRS Transaction with owners
BT -—TFEEMZKE Dividends relating to 2010 - - (155,712) (155,712)
R-E-—-%+-A=+-H Balance at 31 December 2011
i 34,047 2,243,980 4,532,868 6,810,895
R-B-——§-F-Hz&&H Balance at 1 January 2012 34,047 2,243,980 4,532,868 6,810,895
6 Comprehensive income
FERF Profit for the year - - 855,888 855,888
At2EWE Other comprehensive income
REETHHESHEER Transfer of fair value gain previously
BEAE ABE D TEE taken to reserve to income statement
FISERENER upon disposal of available-for-sale
o financial assets - - (14,039) (14,039)
AfHESREEZAYE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
FIG-BRBFE financial assets, net of tax - - 98,981 98,981
ReEHESREZERE Transfer of fair value loss previously
&% AR ARG 2 R F{E taken to reserve to income statement
BRERENER upon impairment of available-for-sale
-BEFE financial assets, net of tax - - 12,925 12,925
Hit2EKEEE Total other comprehensive income - - 97,867 97,867
FEZ2EKRAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 953,755 953,755
HBEBAETZRE Transaction with owners
H_Z——FHBIRE Dividends relating to 2011 - - (93,582) (93,582)
R-B-—£+-A=+—-H Balance at 31 December 2012
i 34,047 2,243,980 5,393,041 7,671,068

FIE1B4AZMEBR AR A BHRERZ—

D e

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 81 to 184 are an integral part of these



HE—T——F+=-A=1+—H 1% For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-C-F —E——%F
2012 2011
B &E AR¥ T ARBFIT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EETHZRERE Cash flows from operating
activities
BEEL RS Cash generated from operations 35 2,707,167 1,427,730
2 U ERF] B U A Interest income received 103,287 60,472
B ERX Interest expenses paid (56,383) (27,038)
EASFTISHL Income tax paid (213,091) (122,758)
BERHELECFRS Net cash generated from
operating activities 2,540,980 1,338,406
RETEZ2EERE Cash flows from investing activities
W RSB A R Acquisition of subsidiaries 38 - (519,666)
RERZEHIERE 2IRE Investments in jointly controlled
entities (16,720) (70,874)
REE QA ZIRE Investments in associates (12,250) (250,034)
ST RIS L HE A#EFKIE  Payment and prepayment for
land use right (183,252) (361,574)
BEME  BELXE Purchases of property, plant
and equipment (3,486,071) (3,050,512)
BEERFEE Purchases of intangible assets (2,286) (1,173)
BEREME Purchases of investment properties (887) =
LEME - BEME&E Proceeds from disposal of
2 B 5RIE property, plant and equipment 35 253,576 54,805
B RES E S Dividends received from jointly
2 B& B A controlled entities 10,000 5,000
PErMHLESMEE Proceeds from disposal of
Z P18 3RIA available-for-sale financial assets 21,933 39,975
B— X2 Na 2 EWA Dividends received from an
associate 3,199 2,239
BRftHESRMEE Dividends received from available-
2 & B A for-sales financial assets 7,509 7,762
KEEESFAZFRS Net cash used in investing activities (3,405,249) (4,144,052)




T——F+ - A=+—HI-¥E For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E--F —E——%F
2012 2011
=3 AR®BT R AR¥T T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
METH2HESRE Cash flows from financing
activities
RITEEMERIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 7,066,677 4,356,859
BEERTEE Repayments of bank borrowings (6,186,923) (1,451,618)
MARAERFEEA Dividends paid to equity holders
SRR E of the Company (93,582) (155,712)
BMEEBABCFERE Net cash received in financing
activities 786,172 2,749,529

BERBELEEY Net decrease in cash and cash
WD FEEE equivalents (78,097) (56,117)

FUz2HREeRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 2,369,050 2,427,362
RekReEEY Exchange losses on cash and
Z BN B R cash equivalents (144) (2,195)
FRZ2BESRBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 20 2,290,809 2,369,050

FBI1E1848 2 MR RE MRz 2 — The notes on pages 81 to 184 are an integral part of these
7m0 consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012 81
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2012:

° The Hong Kong Institute of Certificated Public
Accountant has amended HKAS 12, ‘Income
taxes’, to introduce an exception to the principle
for the measurement of deferred income tax
assets or liabilities arising on an investment
property measured at fair value. HKAS 12 requires
an entity to measure the deferred income tax
relating to an asset depending on whether the
entity expects to recover the carrying amount of
the asset through use or sale. The amendment
introduces a rebuttable presumption that an
investment property measured at fair value is
recovered entirely by sale. The amendment is
applicable retrospectively to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

The Group has adopted this amendment for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, however
it has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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(b) New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 and have not been
early adopted

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new
and amended standards is set out below.

° HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’ requires new disclosure
requirements which focus on quantitative
information about recognised financial instruments
that are offset in the statement of financial
position, as well as those recognised financial
instruments that are subject to master netting
or similar arrangements irrespective of whether
they are offset. Group is yet to assess HKFRS 7
(Amendment)’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) upon its effective date,
which is for the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.

° HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS
9 was issued in November 2009 and October
2010. It replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that
relate to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified into two measurement
categories: those measured as at fair value
and those measured at amortised cost. The
determination is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard
retains most of HKAS 39 requirements. The main
change is that, in cases where the fair value
option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a
fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk
is recorded in other comprehensive income rather
than the income statement, unless this creates an
accounting mismatch. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 9’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 9 upon its effective date, which is for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January
2015.
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New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 and have not been
early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’
builds on existing principles by identifying the
concept of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. HKFRS 10 will
be effective for accounting periods beginning
after 1 January 2013 and the Group assessed
that adoption of HKFRS 10 did not result in
any change in the consolidation status of its
subsidiaries, and would not have material impact
to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 11 is a more realistic reflection of joint
arrangements by focusing on the rights and
obligations of the arrangement rather than
its legal form. There are two types of joint
arrangement: joint operations and joint ventures.
Joint operations arise where a joint operator has
rights to the assets and obligations relating to the
arrangement and hence accounts for its interest
in assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint
ventures arise where the joint operator has rights
to the net assets of the arrangement and hence
equity accounts for its interest. Proportional
consolidation of joint ventures is no longer
allowed. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 11’s
full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 11 no
later than the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other
entities’ includes the disclosure requirements for
all forms of interests in other entities, including
joint arrangements, associates, special purpose
vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 12’s full impact
and intends to adopt HKFRS 12 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January
2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 and have not been
early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity by
providing a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs.
The requirements do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance on how
it should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other standards within
HKFRSs. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 13’s
full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 13 no
later than the accounting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ regarding OCI. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a requirement
for entities to group items presented in OCI on the
basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable
to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments). The amendments do not address
which items are presented in OCIl. The Group is
yet to assess full impact of the amendments and
intends to adopt the amendments no later than
the accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

HKAS 19 (Amendment) ‘Employee benefits’.
These amendments eliminate the corridor
approach and calculate finance costs on a net
funding basis. The Group is yet to assess full
impact of the amendments and intends to adopt
HKAS 19 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 and have not been
early adopted (continued)

HKAS 27 (revised 2011) includes the provisions
on separate financial statements that are left
after the control provisions of HKAS 27 (revised
2011) have been included in the new HKFRS 10.
The Group is yet to assess HKAS 27 (revised
2011)’s full impact and intends to adopt HKAS 27
(revised 2011) no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKAS 28 (revised 2011) includes the requirements
for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be
equity accounted following the issue of HKFRS
11. The Group is yet to assess HKAS 28 (revised
2011)’s full impact and intends to adopt HKAS 28
(revised 2011) no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKAS 32 (Amendment) clarifies the requirements
for offsetting financial instruments on the
statement of financial position: (i) the meaning of
‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’;
and (i) that some gross settlement systems may
be considered equivalents to net settlement. The
Group is yet to assess HKAS 32 (Amendment)’s
full impact and intends to adopt HKAS 32
(Amendment) no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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2.2.1 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@)  Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit

TS BB - A8 AERI KA or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
RETEEHTE  MEREES Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
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is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
fair value of non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Jointly controlled entities are entities which operate
under a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in jointly
controlled entities and associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in jointly controlled entities and associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities and
associates’ post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a
jointly controlled entity or an associate equal or exceed
its interest in the jointly controlled entity and associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly
controlled entity and associate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Jointly controlled entities and associates
(continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the jointly controlled entity and associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the joint controlled entity and associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘Share of results of jointly controlled entities and
associates’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
jointly controlled entity and associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent
of unrelated investor’s interests in the jointly controlled
entities and associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of jointly controlled entities and associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in jointly
controlled entities and associates are recognised in the
income statement.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

@iy All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, office equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
income statements. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in other reserves are transferred to
retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and useful
lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over Uni-
President China Holdings Limited’s interest in net
fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)
(a) Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Computer Software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivable and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purposes for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivable’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘pledged bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet (also refer to
Notes 2.14 and 2.15).

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.
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2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as ‘Other gains/(losses)-net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.
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(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
debt securities, the Group uses the criteria set out in
(a) above. In the case of equity investments classified
as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and
cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Borrowings
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs
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General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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(b) Deferred income tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

(a) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Profit-sharing and bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when
the risk and reward of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually at the date when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

(b) Consultation service income

Consultation service income is recognised in the period
when the services are rendered.

(c) Operating lease income (as a lessor)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use right and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.25 Operating leases
(a) The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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(b) The Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks on behalf of subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates to secure loans
and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The fee
income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is reported in the consolidated
income statement within other operating expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part
of the cost of the investment in the financial statements
of the Company.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Most of the group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the future borrowings from
overseas and recognised assets or liabilities, such as
cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) and borrowings
(Note 25), part of which are denominated in United
States dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

As at 31 December 2012, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been
approximately RMB142,731,000 higher/lower (2011:
RMB125,476,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD
and HKD denominated borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because certain investments held by the Group are
classified on the balance sheet as available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 13). The Group has not hedged
its price risk arising from investments in equity securities
financial assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with reference to
quoted market prices.
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(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Price risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, if the market prices of the
securities had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables held constant, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s publicly traded available-for-sale financial
assets would be approximately RMB42 million higher/
lower than the current value.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits (Note 20) and borrowings
(Note 25) with interest charges, the Group have no
other significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rate and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 20 and Note 25 respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB20,677,000 lower/higher (2011:
RMB8,646,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on borrowings which
would offset interest income on bank deposits.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables included in the consolidated financial
statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2012, these bank deposits and
cash at bank were deposited in reputable financial
institutions which are considered with low credit risk,
the table below shows bank deposits and cash at bank
balances by counterparties:

—E-—F —T——f
2012 2011
ARET R ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

RPH Counterparties
— PO KA R 1T - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 813,913 1,282,389
—4HNEERTT - Foreign owned banks 782,609 572,820
—HEMBE A EEIRIT — Other domestic commercial banks 698,782 531,449
2,295,304 2,386,658

* MAPEBEARTEETETH
RITBMBR AR - PEEZRR
TROABERRE - RERTHRAG
BRAR RHBEERRITRNAE
RAA -

BEAN - REE TR EIBEIER - T
MTRITREBEEBOER - E
RASEBERARNBEERERE
HEREA -

Bm—EPBEERAERAT —E——FFH
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Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.

There were also financial guarantees provided by the
Group, which were the guarantees given to the banks
and financial institutions to secure borrowings and
finance leases of an associate of the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements are as follows:

—E-CF —E——%F
2012 2011
AR T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BHEEEBRBRINEEHRN  Credit risk exposure relating
FERKRE to off-balance sheet items
ISR Financial guarantees 97,200 110,104
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 97,200 110,104

EEEYABHZERSTED
AT AL & 18 -

AEBABOHEDIBHEFNRE
BUREHAER 2 ZBEE - R
HEBRAREARIFEAREZ
ERZEP - AEECATZEE - A
R MR REZSRWE HIRN

(c) mBEZEE

BEEZRDECRAREEEREE
REHZAERREFEY &k
RERMIEAACERERE
MR SRES  MEEMSHE
TS AEBEZBBEHERT
MZEAREERERE - LR
AEBERERMEBEZEST
HEH -

TERAAKEZEBABEDN » &%
BERRNEEREANIIHAL
T B RF RN A 2 A R
NEE - KNFIRBESRA/SHR
BRRBRERE -
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Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.

Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in
bills provided by its customers on delivery of goods.
Credit sales are made only to selected customers with
good credit history. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a
timely basis.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

(c) mBEZmEE (&)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

PR-E -Z@E g % %%
Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years  2and 5 years 5 years
AREFTL AREFTL AREFTL AREFTL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZB-Z%+-FA=1-H Asat31 December 2012
BE Borrowings 408,558 - 3,562,321 -
BEENSHR Interest payments on borrowings 75,934 74,563 160,417 -
ENEZRZRENZEE  Tradeand bills payables 1,441,944 - - -
EfENFERESER  Other payables and accruals,
(TafEeRaR) (excluding non-financial
liabilities) 2,518,612 - - -
EtRHAE Other long term liability - 197,130 - -
4,445,048 271,693 3,722,738 -
IBERED Financial guarantee contracts 97,200 - - -
RZB--F+-A=1-H Asat31December 2011
EE Borrowings 1,584,217 1,336,960 136,305 38,650
EEFMEHHT Interest payments on borrowings 38,606 28,812 12,573 7,031
ERESEFRENZE  Trade and bills payables 1,195,779 = - -
EEMFEREGTER  Other payables and accruals,
(TafEEeREE) (excluding non-financial
liabilities) 1,923,560 - - -
EnRHER Other long term liability = 162,822 = =
4,742,162 1,528,594 148,878 45,681
HEERAY Financial guarantee contracts 110,104 = = =

EENBNRDIZEERANEER
AE WEERAREE - H7H
NEAEZMNEREZERE RN

FIREH o

Bm—EPBEERAERAT —E——FFH
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Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2012
and 2011 are as follows:

ABELERMAT :

—E-—F —T——%
2012 2011
AR®E T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BiEs (MzF2s5) Total borrowings (Note 25) 3,970,879 3,096,132

W BRERIBEEE Less: cash and cash equivalents
(MF5E20) (Note 20) (2,290,809) (2,369,050)
%Ia;gga Net debt 1,680,070 727,082
MR Total equity 7,671,068 6,810,895
BE R Total capital 9,351,138 7,537,977
BEARBELE Gearing ratio 17.97% 9.65%
RZZE——F+=A=+—H" ' & The increase of gearing ratio as at 31 December 2012

REFELREMIBER T — =
FARMNBEEARNAKEN
BARFIPTE »

was the result of the increase in total borrowings to
finance capital expenditures of the Group during 2012.

—EPERERBRAT —E-ZFFH

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012 115



OO sannsxmE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 BEBRERER(E)

3.3 AT EME

TRUAGEES MR A FEIE
ZERMTE - BEEREREMT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

e (HREEXBELIGRTS e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

HV¥RE CRETHEE) (F1E) -

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o BT EIRBFBENHREI o Inputs other than quoted prices included within

ZEERABZABRECH
f& A Al REE (ANfIn
B M (REER)

($2/8) o

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

. BENBEIWIFKRE B ] Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

M BB 2@ A (BB
ZHA) (£3E) °

TRBEFASESREER_-F
—ZFRZF—FTZA=t+—

on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31 December

AstE 2 A¥E - 2012 and 2011.
—B2--F —T——F
2012 2011
ARET R ARETF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AHHEEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets
%1 — Level 1 420,461 336,239
FEoE - Level 2 - =
E3E — Level 3 165,811 174,968
et Total 586,272 511,207

R—EFEERBRAR —F——FFK
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The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2011.

—E--F —E—%F

2012 2011

ARET T ARET T

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

BR W) 45 84 Opening balance 174,968 173,913
RNEE(BR) FE Fair value (losses)/gains (9,157) 1,055
B4R 45 4 Closing balance 165,811 174,968
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For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under this
methodology, fair value is determined by discounting
the projected cash flow of the investee company to
present worth based on profit and cash flows forecast
and other relevant information provided by the investee
company. The discount rate used for the investment
as at 31 December 2012 was 14.5% (2011: 14.5%)
per annum which was determined by the risk-free rate,
market return, estimated beta of the investee company
and firm specific risk factors. The market approach
adopts various sales/income multiples to assess the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under
this methodology, fair value is determined by multiplying
various sales/income of the investee company to
multipliers with regard to the risks and nature of the
business. In estimating the multiples, reference has
been made to the operating results of companies with
similar business nature, having their operating activities
in the PRC and whose ownership interests are publicly
traded. As at 31 December 2012, if the discount rate
and the multiples used was 10% (i.e. 14.5% from
13.05% to 15.95%) higher/lower from management’s
estimates, the carrying amounts of the available-
for-sale financial assets would be approximately
RMB11,942,000 lower/RMB15,144,000 higher than the
current value.
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reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a) Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as available-for-sale financial assets (Note
13) is determined by using valuation techniques (Note
3.3). The Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. The effect of the changes in one or more of
the inputs has been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b) Income taxes (continued)

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgement areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable
by 10% from management’s estimates, the group
would need to increase/(decrease) the tax assets by
RMB2,735,000 (2011: increase/(decrease) the tax
assets by RMB2,200,000).

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

(a) Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost; and the financial health of and short-term
business outlook for the investee company, including
factors such as industry and sector performance,
changes in technology and operational and financing
cash flow. As at 31 December 2012, according to the
management judgement, impairment of approximately
RMB16,786,000 was recognized in “Administrative
Expense” in the consolidated income statement for an
available-for-sale financial asset.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were
considered significant or prolonged, the Group would
suffer an loss of approximately RMB22,759,000 in its
2012 financial statements, being the transfer of the
accumulated fair value adjustments on the impaired
available-for-sale financial assets recognised in equity to
the income statement.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK e
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies (continued)

(b) Classification of borrowings

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 1 to
determine whether certain borrowings should be
classified as current or non-current liabilities. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates both its intention
and discretion. When the Group expects, and has the
full discretion, to roll over the borrowings for at least
twelve months after the reporting period under the
existing loan facility, the Group classifies the borrowings
as non-current, even if they would otherwise be due
within a shorter period.

If the Group is not able to roll over the borrowings
for at least twelve months after 31 December 2012,
the borrowings in the amount of approximately
RMB3,562,321,000 would be reclassified from non-
current liability to current liability in its 2012 financial
statements.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales and
business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a product
perspective, management assesses the performance of
beverages, instant noodles and others.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on segment profit or loss. Other information
provided, except as noted below, to the executive directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the financial
statements.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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The majority of the Group’s sales are retail sales and no
revenues from transactions with a single external customer

account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December
2012 and 2011 is as follows:

—B-CF
2012
B FEE Aty RAE rEE
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
ARBTR AR¥®TR AR%TR AR¥TR  AE¥T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
THEE Segment results
Wigs Revenue 13,913,636 7,269,580 222,507 - 21,405,723
AR/ (BE) Segment profit/{loss) 764,385 225,258 (3,430) (104,696) 881,517
BEKA-FE Finance income - net 63,824
BIEERZHEER Share of results of jointly
BENREE controlled entities and
associates 134,630 - - (3,042) 131,588
Br B B AR A Profit before income tax 1,076,929
R Income tax expense (221,041)
EERA Profit for the year 855,888
BEZRAFSIEMAIHEER  Other segment items
included in the income
statement
REREH Depreciation and amortisation 545,295 207,448 6,476 43,803 803,022
THEEREE Segment assets and
liabilities
BE Assets 8,337,870 2,903,484 134,662 3,834,225 15,210,241
REREHER 2 BR Interests in jointly controlled
entities 181,477 - - 7,823 189,300
REERR 2R Interests in associates 928,374 - - 211,808 1,140,272
BEE Total assets 16,539,813
B Liabilities 2,971,311 1,515,471 28,356 4,353,607 8,868,745
BaE Total liabilities 8,868,745
AL Capital expenditure 2,739,487 780,130 18,502 39,889 3,578,008
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WERDTHER (8) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
2%
2011
R pikid Hito RAE N
Instant
Beverages noodles Others Unallocated Group
ARETT ARBFR ARBTR AREFR ARET:
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
PHEE Segment results
W Revenue 10,688,584 5,036,314 307,031 - 16,931,929
Ak (B8) Segment profit/(loss) 228,765 165,089 (21,416) (111,195) 261,243
BEWA-FE Finance income - net 95,062
EIEEREHERR Share of results of jointly
BANREE controlled entities and
associates 43,429 - - (3,343) 40,086
BETEH AR A Profit before income tax 396,391
FERAX Income tax expense (84,451)
FEEEA Profit for the year 311,940
KEZRAMSIEMAHEE  Other segment items
included in the income
statement
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 341,775 155,060 6,572 26,856 530,263
FREERERE Segment assets
and liabilities
BE Assets 6,279,697 2,518,792 171,817 3,584,873 12,555,179
REREHEE Ea Interests in jointly
controlled entities 150,644 - - 8,297 158,941
N AN Interests in associates 817,275 = = 205,997 1,023,272
BEE Total assets 13,737,392
BfE Liabilities 2,208,944 1,209,764 30,655 3,477,134 6,926,497
BeRE Total liabilities 6,926,497
EXYH Capital expenditure 2,510,908 694,713 91,764 864,669 4,162,054

M—EEREEZERBRLR —F-ZFFK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, investment properties and affiliated land use
rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprised
primarily of deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax
liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use right,
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
intangible assets.

LAND USE RIGHT - GROUP

The Group’s interests in land use right represent prepaid
operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
book amounts are analysed as follows:

—EgE-—F ===
2012 2011
ARET T ARBEF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
n—A—H At 1 January 1,272,155 255,505
NE Additions 187,206 360,872
U B8 BT /B =) (Bff 5E38) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) - 676,616
# 5 (T 5E28) Amortisation (Note 28) (32,605) (20,838)
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,426,756 1,272,155
BN Cost 1,529,739 1,342,533
REH Accumulated amortisation (102,983) (70,378)
R F R Net book amount 1,426,756 1,272,155

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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LAND USE RIGHT - GROUP (CONTINUED)

All of the Group’s land use right are located in the PRC and
are with the lease periods as follows:

—E—C—F —E——%F
2012 2011
ARET AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
EREREAFES In the PRC, held on:
50F LA E 2 RFBEA Original lease period of over 50 years 11,206 11,430
106 2504 2 [RH 3 Original lease period of between
10 and 50 years 1,415,550 1,260,725
FREEFEEE Closing net book amount 1,426,756 1,272,155

AEBZ T EREBHC 55 K
RATHERA] R [ E AR s 0Bk

R-E——F+-_A=+—8 " TER
TEEAREB 2 £ it 3 4E (E K 48
(ZZF——%F : AR %444,938,0007T)
(PfzE25) o

R-TB——F+-_A=1+—H AR¥%¥
595,0007T & + b s F R 0 R R4S + b
ERAEE AEBREFAREZZEE -

- EEREERARAE —F-ZFFRK

Amortisation of the Group’s land use right has been charged
to ‘cost of sales’ and ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement.

As at 31 December 2012, no bank borrowings are secured
by land use right of the Group (2011: RMB444,938,000)
(Note 25).

As at 31 December 2012, land use right certificates for land
use right amounting to RMB595,000 have not been obtained
and the Group is in the progress of applying for these
certificates.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



BER  EHIA.
BT IERE BARBREE BExE HEIE CH
Vehicles,
Machinery office
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment  and fixtures improvements in progress Total
ARETR  ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RZB--% At 1 January 2011
-A-H
AR Cost 1,286,916 3,081,937 1,084,888 7,904 387,945 5,799,590
Zithe Accumulated depreciation (@77571)  (1,569,171) (624,835) (6,278) - (2,677,859)
2 REEE Accumulated impairment provision - (745) - = - (745)
REFE Net book amount 809,345 1,512,021 460,053 1,626 337,945 3,120,990
BE-Z--F  Yearended 31 December 2011
t=A=t-A
LEE
ENRRFE Opening net book amount 809,345 1,512,021 460,053 1,626 337,945 3,120,990
RE Additions 65,743 243,971 361,751 1,249 2,347,295 3,020,009
EREEA Transfer upon completion 228,379 786,287 113,220 - (1,127,886) =
irkS Disposals (3,279 (33,898) (8,015) - - (45,192)
& (firies) Depreciation (Note 28) (64,938) (241,946) (196,055) (747) - (503,686)
I GRZ) Write-off (Note 26) = (12,123) (630) = = (12,753)
BEB A (t5T28)  Reversal of provision (Note 28) - 17 - - = 17
EREEFE Closing net book amount 1,035,250 2,254,329 730,324 2,128 1,557,354 5,579,385
R-E-—-% At 31 December 2011
tZA=1-8
A Cost 1,574,888 3,977,072 1,498,459 9,153 1,557,354 8,616,926
23 E Accumulated depreciation (639,638) (1,722,015) (768,135) (7,025) - (3,036,813)
2 REEE Accumulated impairment provision - (728) - = - (728)
REFE Net book amount 1,035,250 2,254,329 730,324 2,128 1,557,354 5,579,385
BZ-Z--F  Year ended 31 December 2012
tZA=t-H
LEE
ENEREE Opening net book amount 1,035,250 2,254,329 730,324 2,128 1,557,354 5,579,385
RE Additions 117,189 331,729 494,135 - 2,444,576 3,387,629
TREEA Transfer upon completion 717,937 1,508,332 305,532 - (2,531,801) -
it & Disposals (123) (168,143) (54,862) - - (223,128)
ERERENE  Transfers to investment properties
(fir3k8) (Note ) (70,825) - - - - (70,825)
& (H:28) Depreciation (Note 28) (90,028) (350,421) (320,123) (1,141) - (761,713)
BEHME (F1:328)  Reversal of provision (Note 28) - 307 - - - 307
EREEFE Closing net book amount 1,709,400 3,576,133 1,155,006 987 1,470,129 7,911,655
R=B-ZF At 31 December 2012
TZA=t-H
A Cost 2,337,952 5,568,227 2,148,900 9,153 1,470,129 11,534,361
Zithe Accumulated depreciation (628,552) (1,991,673) (993,894) (8,166) - (3,622,285)
2 REEE Accumulated impairment provision - (421) - - - (421)
REFE Net book amount 1,709,400 3,576,133 1,155,006 987 1,470,129 7,911,655
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M¥E BMELESZHE-—XE 7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
(&) GROUP (CONTINUED)
WMEEREEGRAWERINBOT ¢ Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:
—g-=-f -T——%
2012 2011
ARBT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
55 PR AR Cost of sales 508,331 343,991
HERMIGHRERS Selling and marketing expenses 194,405 122,573
THRAX Administrative expenses 58,977 37,122
761,713 503,686
REB 7IEFMAAPEH - The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC.
N—_E——&FEFFE_FT——EF+_H There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
=+—BHWEEKBEEADE  BELESE 31 December 2012 and 2011.
=

REEFHEZHSRAHDARE
6,100,000 (Z & ——F : AR
5,500,0007T) Bt A e ez o [H
A (M 5E27)

FAN - AEBEEREEREENEERK
N AR #10,403,000c (T —— £ =
AR #3,199,0007T) AR E R - EEK
ROEE—REENINETLEE1.72%

ERPEERERAR —F—=

—HFFH

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB6.1million
(2011: RMB5.5 million) derived from lease of buildings
is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 27).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to RMB10,403,000 (2011: RMB3,199,000) on
qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 1.72%.

Un| President China Holdlngs Ltd. Annual Report 2012



—E--F —E——%

2012 2011

AR¥ T ARBFIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

®n—HA—H At 1 January 101,469 =

NE Additions 887 =
ERaME BELFZE Transfer from property, plant and

(FfF3E7) equipment (Note 7) 70,825 =

W EEHT B A7) (ffsE38) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) - 103,384

& (KsE28) Depreciation (Note 28) (5,301) (1,915)

R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 167,880 101,469

R+=—A=+—HKKAR Cost as at 31 December 176,156 103,384

ZEE Accumulated depreciation (8,276) (1,915)

R+ A=+—HHEREFE Net book amount as at 31 December 167,880 101,469

REDED R LB RTEE  WiE
R AA0FEMS0F A i F o

KEREMEZTECDT AGRARER
M EMFRX] -

BREMFE 2 EREER D FESHIIWT

The investment properties are located in Shanghai and
Jiangsu Province, respectively and erected on land with lease
periods of 40 and 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income

statements.

The carrying amounts and fair value of the investment
properties are set out as follows:

=B-=F —F——F

2012 2011

AR® T ARETT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

REE Carrying amount 167,880 101,469
AE Fair value 169,271 102,296

A% 2 AT AR E B R AR
B B 5 B 2 o BB A 3
it

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—08 - S ER
TERENZREMEEBR(-E——
& AR#59,867,0007 (Mf:E25)) o

REREWEZHSRADHDARE
39,100,000t (=T ——F : AR¥
19,900,0007T) E st Adralzm T [ E
A J (B 5E27)

The fair values of investment properties is estimated based on
replacement cost method approach using the current market
price and the newness rate at the respective balance sheet
dates.

As at 31 December 2012, no bank borrowings is secured by
investment properties (2011: RMB59,867,000) (Note 25).

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB 39.1million
(2011: RMB 19.9million) derived from investment properties
is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 27).



R B S et
Computer
Goodwill software Total
AREEF T ARBET T AREEF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R-Z2——F At 1 January 2011
—HA—H
DN Cost 11,941 21,288 33,229
gt 3| Accumulated amortisation = (10,583) (10,583)
ZEHRE Accumulated impairment (11,941) = (11,941)
R F Net book amount = 10,705 10,705
BE-Z2——F§ Year ended 31 December 2011
+=—B=+—H
IEEE
F YR FHE Opening net book amount = 10,705 10,705
B Additions = 1,173 1,173
55 (Ff5E28) Amortisation (Note 28) = (3,824) (3,824)
FAREEFH Closing net book amount = 8,054 8,054
R-ZE——F At 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H
BN Cost 11,941 22 461 34,402
g & Accumulated amortisation = (14,407) (14,407)
REHRE Accumulated impairment (11,941) = (11,941)
BRI FE Net book amount = 8,054 8,054
BE-ZE—=% Year ended 31 December 2012
+=A=+—H
ILEE
FYREFRE Opening net book amount - 8,054 8,054
NE Additions - 2,286 2,286
B 5H (fF3E28) Amortisation (Note 28) - (3,403) (3,403)
FARIREFRR Closing net book amount - 6,937 6,937
R-ZE—Z-F At 31 December 2012
+=BA=+—8H
DN Cost 11,941 24,749 36,690
g 3] Accumulated amortisation - (17,812) (17,812)
2EHRE Accumulated impairment (11,941) - (11,941)
R FER Net book amount - 6,937 6,937
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BB -

(a

BREE-—AX&5H (&) 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
HEHARE11,941,000T 3K 58 The goodwill of approximately RMB11,941,000 was derived
TFEEREMNBAR  YEERERE from the acquisitions of subsidiaries in previous years and had
been impaired and fully provided for.
BT 2BE >RBTTHAX] The amortisation of computer software has been charged
FIHERMBHEER | P X to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
2D R4 ARE2 910,000 & A expenses’ at the amount of approximately RMB2,910,000
R ¥493,000c (ZZE——F : AR and RMB493,000 (2011: RMB3,045,000 and RMB779,000),
3,045,0007T & A R#779,0007T) ° respectively.
KRB AT Z2ERZ —ZA2Q T 10 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY
REBREZRE (a) Investment in a subsidiary
—B-C—fF —T——F
2012 2011
AR TR ARETF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BERAFEZERE : Investment, at cost:
—FE LT H — Unlisted shares 5,167,339 4,145,741

(b)

RZE——F+-_A=+—H ' K
NElEBHBRRZBEHIR
B 3E40 o

FE W B8 A Bl E

FEY KB A R SRIR R EER - 28
NMEREIEERY - ZFRBRERIK
o8~ B RE R KR /B8 & B L
BADE BERIBEINZRK
H o ARBEBWIZERA ©
MY A R IR E R AT -
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The list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2012 is set out in Note 40.

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and without fixed terms of repayment. They
represent dividend receivable from a subsidiary and
amounts paid on behalf of subsidiaries for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment. The Company
has the intention to receive such amounts and the
subsidiaries should pay on demand.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK 129
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RHMEBAR 2% -2 27 10 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(&) (CONTINUED)
(c) EHBLRAEZER (c) Loans to subsidiaries
A B ARz B MK « L3k The loans to subsidiaries are unsecured, denominated
JoETE R AR+ =8 A "i%3.0% in USD and repayable within twelve months with the
FL0%Z MEEE REEBM interest rate ranged from 3.0% to 4.0%. The carrying
WBARERZEEEREQFE amounts of loans to subsidiaries approximate their fair
BEEE - values as at the balance sheet dates.
RNEREE4I SR EFE—2E 11 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES - GROUP
—E-——F —E——F
2012 2011
AR¥ T AREF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Hn—HA—H At 1 January 158,941 88,337
NE Additions 16,720 70,874
&A% Share of profits 23,639 4,730
B B Dividend received (10,000) (5,000)
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 189,300 158,941
B EREZERERAT —F——FFIHK
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



e R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o

11 HEE4IER IR A% 11 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

E/\‘\ 7\
(%) ENTITIES — GROUP (CONTINUED)
R-_ZE——F+-_A=+—H K& The particulars of the jointly controlled entities of the Group as
ZHEZEHEE (HIELT)EBOT at 31 December 2012, all of which are unlisted, are set out as
follows:
HRRLER/
AEER HERAH HRRA rEEELRE TEEH
Country/place Equity interest
and date of attributable
Company name incorporation Paid-up capital to the Group Principal activities
ZE-ZF 2%
2012 2011
FNIXERERAZREER B &M AR 1,000,000 50% 50% RAEBRERRS
BRAR([EREIZREER]) “ZENE RMB1,000,000 Investment management
(United Advisor Venture Management tA+NR and advisory services
Co., Ltd. *) Suzhou, PRC,
(“United Advisor Venture Management”) 18 July 2008
EaRFBHIEERAR hEZEA AR%100,000,0007C 50% 50%  REHH Bt FRHE
(MEagl) 3 RMB100,000,000 ZRMIREE
(Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries ~NANE OEM processing and
Co., Ltd. %) Yantai, PRC, sales of various types
(“Yantai Tongli") 9 June 2009 of beverages, fruit juice,
tea, etc.
ERERHRIRARAA LA 16,200,000% 7T 45% 45% EEREBRE BEAR.
(MEmER]) ZZTNE USD16,200,000 BE - FRB RS
(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Industries +tA=1HmE Production of various types
Co., Ltd. %) Guilin, PRC, of beverage including
(“Guilin Ziquan”) 24 July 2009 fruit, vegetable,
tea and coffee etc.
Greater China F&B Capital Partners Ltd. REHS 10,700% 7T 50% 50% REER
([ Greater China F&BJ) “EEN\E& USD10,700 Investment management
Greater China F&B Capital Partners MA+A
Ltd.(“Greater China F&B") Cayman Islands,
16 April 2008
REXIS—GCEERAF HERE AR %132,000,0007 50% 50% HEREEBEM
(IRERI]) =F==l RMB132,000,000 Production of various types
(Wuhan Ziiang President Enterprises tA-t+nH of plastic products
Co., Ltd.*) Wuhan, PRC,
(“Wuhan Zijiang") 29 July 2011
* ENEZBIAARRAEEBR NBE * The English name represents the best effort by management of

hXEBEN -

the Company in translating the Chinese name.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK
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INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES - GROUP (CONTINUED)

The additions to the interests in jointly controlled entities
during the year ended 31 December 2012 mainly included
RMB16,500,000 of further capital injection to Wuhan Zijiang,
a jointly controlled entity established by the Group and
Shanghai Zijiang Enterprise Group Co. Ltd.

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s share of

BB ERBENT : jointly controlled entities in aggregate is as follows:
—B--f —T——F
2012 2011
ARBT AREETF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BE Assets
ERBEE Non-current assets 128,651 106,590
MENEE Current assets 83,115 82,389
211,766 188,979
=R Liabilities
EmBBEE Non-current liabilities 11,250 13,500
mBBE Current liabilities 11,216 16,538
22,466 30,038
BEFE Net assets 189,300 158,941
U #5 Revenue 220,169 100,676
il =2 Expenses (190,281) (93,442)
BR P45 750 A g 1 Profit before income tax 29,888 7,234
FriS®if X Income tax expense (6,249) (2,504)
F 2 A Profit for the year 23,639 4,730

EEPEZERERNE —F—ZFFH
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12 REtE NIz ER—4AEE 12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP

REERNRIZERZZEHNT ¢ The movements in interests in associates are as follows:
—E—_F —E——%F
2012 2011
ARET R ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R—H—H At 1 January 1,023,272 740,121
NE (k@) Additions (Note (a)) 12,250 250,034
JE 1 4 Share of profits 95,103 35,356
HAigEBE N T EER Dilution gains arising in investment in
HEN G an associate 12,846 =
2R & Dividends received (3,199) (2,239)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,140,272 1,023,272
R-E——F+-_A=+—H Kx&H The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
ZHERBFRBIT c RERIL S RE December 2012 are set out as follows. Other than Yantai
MEABRDERAR ([REMRT]) North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. (“Andre Juice”), the other
Gh - B AR R £ associates are unlisted:
HRRIER/
AEER HERAH BREX/RK rEEELRE TEEH
Country/place Equity interest
and date of Paid-up Capital attributable
Company name incorporation /Share Capital to the Group Principal activities
—2--f %
2012 2011
ERRmAIXRECK (ERRR]) R AR 585,987,583 30.74%  39.74% REEE
(China F&B Venture Investments) ZEENE RMB585,987,583 Investment management
(“China F&B") mA+=H
Suzhou, PRC,
13 April 2009
Eal AR ENRTRABRAR PEER AR #408,988,0007 15.64% 15% REERT
(TZEHMRH)) g S RMBA408,988,000 BREDA  fHE
(Andre Juice) ~NAZTRE EmIEEREE
Yantai, PRC, The production and Sales of
26 June 2001 concentrated apple juice,

pear juice, apple essence,
forage etc. products.

—EREZERERAT —E——FFHK
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12 REEE LN TZ2EZ—AEE 12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP

(&) (CONTINUED)

HMBIER
NGES HHRAH BREXR/RA rEEELRE TEEH
Country/place Equity interest
and date of Paid-up Capital attributable
Company name incorporation /Share Capital to the Group Principal activities
“E--f —T——F
2012 2011
SESRRROERAA(SELRAD)  PELR AR¥991,833,7767C 47.83% 50% AEREEHH
(Jinmailang Beverage Corporate Limited) “ZTHE RMB991,833,776 Manufacturing and sale of
(“Jinmailang Corporate”) +A=+NB beverages
Beijing, PRC,
28 October 2005
FEREREREERERAT HE L8 880,000% T 40% 40% BEEERABBERSE
(TLBRE)) —2-Zf% USD880,000 Investment management and
(SMS Private Equity Fund Management NA=+-H related advisory service
Co., Ltd.")(“SMS") Shanghai, PRC,
31 August 2010

Bt 5 - Notes:

(@ REZE-_ZT——F ‘T‘ZH =t—HlL (@  The additions to the interests in an associate during the year
FERBEARER 2B NTERHE ended 31 December 2012 is the further capital injection to
MEBRMIE—FSHE - China F&B.

- RXABARNAFREEER N BE 2 The English name represents the best effort by management of

RXAREE -

AEBERGBE DR ZHBERBED

the Company in translating the Chinese name.

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s shares

™ of associates are as follows:
—E-——F —E——%F
+=ZA=+—-HB+=-A=+—H
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
AR T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BEE Total assets 2,044,300 1,992,645
mafE Total liabilities 904,028 969,373
FEE Net assets 1,140,272 1,023,272
Ik = Revenue 1,627,457 1,336,832
F % F Profit for the year 95,103 35,356

B—EREIERERAT —F——FFIHFK
134 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



e R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13

AHHESRMEE - 4A&EBEKR 13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
AT ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
rEH KATH
Group Company
—E--F —T——F =ZZB-=—F —T——%
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETRn ARETT AR®TR ARETRT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
n—H—H At 1 January 511,207 532,828 336,239 358,915
HE Disposals (7,894) (16,904) (7,894) (16,904)
sFAEMEE  Net fair value gains
gy O /NS =] previously taken into
1S 558 other comprehensive
(PffzF22) income (Note 22) (14,039) (20,322) (14,039) (20,322)
sFAEMETE  Net fair value changes
W2 ANF{E  taken to other
#E) - FHE comprehensive income
(Pff7F22) (Note 22) 96,998 15,605 106,155 14,550
»+=A At 31 December
ET—F 586,272 511,207 420,461 336,239

BHE-_ZT——F+-_H=1T—HLHF
E-AEELEETAHLEESHE
E RNPMARFEEEBEZERERZAF
B X158 A R#14,039,0007T (=T ——
F:RAFEMNB AR®20,322,000
L) (M sEe2) % 2 HBEARE
14,039,000t (ZE——F : AR¥
23,071,0007T) (MI5E26) °

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
disposed of certain available-for-sale financial assets and
realised a gain of RMB14,039,000 (2011: RMB23,071,000)
(Note 26), after incorporating a fair value gain of RMB
14,039,000 (2011: a fair value gain of RMB20,322,000) (Note
22) transferred from reserve recognised previously.

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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AHESREE -

~ A (%)

] REEK
IS

AEBZAHLESREEARTEA
Bk - WHEHIT

13

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are stated
at fair value and include the following:

rEH ¥ NN
Group Company
—®¥-—=-F —FT——% =R =-fF —F——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFTRT AR®FTt AR®Trx ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B EH&EHF Listed securities
AT AF Want Want 406,209 313,562 406,209 313,562
Efh Others 14,252 22,677 14,252 22,677
420,461 336,239 420,461 336,239
FELETESE Unlisted securities
SEEILFLE Wondersun Dairy 165,078 174,235 - =
Hftb Others 733 733 - =
165,811 174,968 - =
586,272 511,207 420,461 336,239

AEERLETES 2 RETEBRREENG
PEREEZERERAR (THRE]) 2%
B AR RTE-HARSHNMNT
RN EER  REBBMIMAERLE
e EMESZAFEREREER
mIZHEMEE °

o AEEFHAREIETEUIE
BOBRRR ([FELIAE]I% (=ZF
——%F 1 9%) 2w TEWUILERR/RK
EHFRBEBEARE  REEERKEEL
XEM- TEUIAERRETEREZQF
BE2EZRWANERTHZE (M5£3.3)
HESEHZMEMERE -

M—EEPEERARLAR —F—=

—FFH

The Group’s investments in listed securities mainly comprise
investments in shares of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(“Want Want”), one of the leading snack food and beverage
manufacturers in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair values of the listed
securities are determined based on the quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Group holds 9% (2011: 9%) equity interests
in BB A TEE L FLZER 5 B R A 7l (Heilongjiang Wondersun
Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd.*) (“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted
PRC domestic enterprise engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of dairy products. The fair value of the unlisted equity
interests in Wondersun Dairy is determined with reference to
a valuation based on a combination of income approach and
market approach (Note 3.3).
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14

AHEESMESE-—AEER 13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ARQTE (EF) ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

BUABITETEz & ES » EAib A Other than the listed securities which are denominated in

HESRMEEANUARKE -

HKD, the remaining available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in RMB.

* RANEZHIAARRAEEER NBE * The English name represents the best effort by management of

RXEREE -

EEFEH - AKH

the Company in translating the Chinese name.

14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

BELEHIBEERELEHBAES A The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
I is as follow:

—E——fF —F——%F

2012 2011
AR®TR ARETET
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

BEEFTEHEE

—tT-EARKEZ
BEEFRBHREE

— AT —EARKEZ
EEFTEHREE

BIEFTISTRAE

—+tZERARNKE 2
EEFSHAaE

—-BBET-_EA%RKEZ
BREASHAE

EEMSHEE,(BE)

R

Deferred income tax assets
— Deferred income tax assets to

be recovered within 12 months 168,343 150,660
— Deferred income tax assets to

be recovered after more than

12 months 4,727 5,819

173,070 156,479

Deferred income tax liabilities
— Deferred income tax liabilities to

be recovered within 12 months 21,435 21,435
— Deferred income tax liabilities to

be recovered after more than

12 months 139,676 143,746

161,111 165,181

Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities),
net 11,959 (8,702)

B EPEERERAR —F——FFHK
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14 EEMBH —XEBE (&) 14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

(CONTINUED)

EEFTSTHRE 2 BBEFHWNT ¢ The gross movements in the deferred income tax accounts

are as follows:

—E-—F —E——fF
2012 2011
ARET ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
®n—HA—H At 1 January (8,702) 112,896
T AGRE Wk (FTFE31) Credited to the consolidated
income statement (Note 31) 22,539 29,193
8 H M2 mE kN (iE22) Charged to other comprehensive
income (Note 22) (1,878) (153)
FBREBEETREEEZ Additions resulting from acquisition
wNE (K:E38) through business combination
(Note 38) - (150,638)
W+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 11,959 (8,702)

B—EPEZERERAR —F——FFHK
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14 BREFSBH—XK&EBE (E&) 14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
FRNELEMEBHEERBENES (K The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
T RE TR AR 2 HEE) AT during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
EIEFEMEE Deferred income tax assets
e
SHEE
EERERE REAE Eifix  ATENTE  BAFEAE it
Downward
adjustment in
Impairment fair value of
provision Depreciation Accrued available-for-sale Tax loss
of assets  of equipment expenses  financial assets henefit Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE--% At 1 January 2011
-A-A 24417 5,666 96,679 3,32 - 130,147
(na) /A (Chargec)/credlted to the
GAlER consolidated income statements (15,509) 163 19,840 = 2199 26,485
neip2Eks Charged to other comprehensive
income - - - (183) - (183)
Ro2-—-f At 31 December 2011
tZA=1-H 8,974 5819 116,519 3,112 21,995 156,479
itA/(1g) Credited/{charged) to the
Galsx consolidated income statements 2,081 (1,092) 8,262 3,861 5,357 18,469
Neit2EYs Charged to other comprehensive
income: - - - (1,878) - (1,878)
W_E-Zf At 31 December 2012
tZA=1-H 11,055 4721 124,781 5,155 21,352 173,070

—EFEZERERAR —E——FFK
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ENH AFEANE et
Withholding Fair value
tax gains Total
AREEF T AREFIT AREEF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RZE——%F At 1 January 2011
—H—H 17,251 - 17,251
FBEBFAOIETT  Additions resulting from acquisition
WEELEZAE through business combination
(Hf5E38) (Note 38) - 150,638 150,638
FFAERE W& Credited to the consolidated income
statements - (2,708) (2,708)
R_ZE——4F At 31 December 2011
+=-—A=+—H 17,251 147,930 165,181
ARG WK Credited to the consolidated income
statements - (4,070) (4,070)
R—E—= At 31 December 2012
—A= 17,251 143,860 161,111

BEEMSREERERITEEBAR
FE R T m I E IR B B T I8 A 25 B gt 4
HOMIBEE TIAER - NEEW R
—E——F+ - A=+—BAANREK
HHEREERIRAZHEBBEROAR
#007,529,000L (ZE——F : AR
207,988,0007T) & R K I FT 15 %Rﬁ?
4N R #51,882,000T (Z T ——£F ¢
A R #51,973,0007T) - DRI BEHAR
¥58,329,0007C * A R #37,096,000
7T+ AR #19,638,0007T * A R ¥
18,859,000t & A R#73,607,0007T 2
RIEEEENEEILTER -

BIEPEAREMBEDCEMSRE ([
TEMSHZE])  AEENPBEMNBA
Ta_??/\i B—BEL®HER -
ERIBREEEDRZ SR - AR
5%%0 R BN TEINTL o LR BIPLE A 7B
B FE AT R A] B 2R R 9 IR 2 S ) T &
S 2R EE% T B R FEH B R
BEMGHAEARARK17,251,0007T
—T——F: AR¥17,251,0007T) °

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB51,882,000 (2011: RMB51,973,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB207,529,000 (2011: RMB207,988,000) as at 31
December 2012 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB58,329,000, RMB37,096,000, RMB19,638,000,
RMB18,859,000 and RMB73,607,000 will expire in the
following five years, respectively.

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the profits of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January
2008 will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 5%
upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors.
Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB17,251,000 (2011:
RMB17,251,000) have been recognised for the withholding
tax at the tax rate of 5% that would be payable on the
earnings of PRC subsidiaries that are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
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15

EEFER —A&E (&)

AP EETHEB AR REARFMESL
NHBMRERNELCHEHREAESR
AR #113,000,00070 (ZZ——4F : A
R #70,726,0007T) - ZERBEL
BEXKABRE RZTE—=F+=A
=+—H ZEXEABFNEGEAAR
#2,259,991,000L (ZF——F : AR
#:1,414,516,0007T) °

RERHNEIHNEMIAE -XE
C RN

14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB113,000,000 (2011:
RMB70,726,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries in PRC. Such amounts have
been/will be permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings
totaled RMB2,259,991,000 (2011: RMB1,414,516,000) at 31
December 2012.

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
- GROUP AND COMPANY

(@ A~%H (@) Group
EhHE THUESHEE @it
Available-
for-sale
Receivables financial assets Total
GREERER Assets as per consolidated
FRMEE balance sheet
WZE—Z—F+-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2012
M HELRARE (513)  Available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 13) - 586,272 586,272
e E B (Ma7) Trade receivables (Note 17) 512,579 - 512,579
Re RAMEKE Deposits and other receivables 440,859 - 440,859
JEW R 7 3R Amounts due from related parties
(PI7E39(0)) (Note 39(0) 9,073 - 9,073
BEARIER (HH19) Pledged bank deposits (Note 19) 4,664 - 4,664
BLRBELEEM(MH20)  Cashand cash equivalents (Note 20) 2,290,809 - 2,290,809
@it Total 3,257,984 586,272 3,844,256
WZE——F+-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2011
HEESREE (7H13)  Avalable-for-sale financial assets
(Note 13) - 511,007 511,007
B S HER (MF7) Trade receivables (Note 17) 513,305 - 513,305
ReREMEKZIE Deposits and other receivables 475,913 = 475,913
JEUg AR 7 7B (F3E39(b))  Amounts due from related parties
(Note 39(b) 61,621 - 61,621
BHEBRTER (HH19) Pledged bank deposits (Note 19) 17,608 - 17,608
BeRREEEW (HI:20)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 2,369,050 - 2,369,050
@t Total 3,437,497 511,207 3,948,704

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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& 15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
— GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(@) Group (continued)

RBERAGTENERHAE

Financial

liabilities measured
at amortised cost

REEERERFTINAR

RZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

BAE SRR R ERE (M 3E23)

Huh e E R EE B
(TREFsHERE)

E& (KizE25)

H b & HAE A 3R (Fif E24)

#Et

R-E——F+-H=+—8H

e B 5 R R FIx (M 7£23)

Hit N RE R ESER
(TREFERAR)

t& & (Pt 5£25)

H A = HA R A 300R (B 7E24)

#Et

Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet

As at 31 December 2012

Trade and bills payable (Note 23)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 25)

Other long-term payables (Note 24)

Total

As at 31 December 2011

Trade and bills payable (Note 23)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 25)

Other long-term payables (Note 24)

Total

- EEREERARAE —F-ZFFRK

Uni-President China Holdings

Ltd. Annual Report 2012

1,441,944
2,518,612

3,970,879
197,130

8,128,565

1,195,779
1,923,560

3,096,132
162,822

6,378,293
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15 IRERIESMEM T A —Z&% 15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BEAQT (&) — GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) AL H (b) Company

ERFRE THEESHEE @t
Available-
for-sale
Receivables financial assets Total
EEERBRATNEE Assets as per balance sheet
WZE——F+-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2012
it HESBERE (F313)  Available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 13) - 420,461 420,461
BRFHEAR (HE10)  Loans to subsidiaries (Note 10(c)) 2,051,896 - 2,051,896
Ee REMEKFE Deposits and other receivables 4,97 - 4,97
e B2 A1 Z A (FiE10(b)  Due from subsidiaries (Note 10(0)) 585,200 - 585,200
B4 RHLEEM(M320)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 96,109 - 96,109
@t Total 2,738,176 420,461 3,158,637
WZE——F+-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2011
HEESREE (i7H13)  Avalable-for-sale financial assets
(Note 13) - 336,239 336,239
ERTHELE (H10c)  Loans to subsidiaries (Note 10(c)) 1,181,679 = 1,181,679
ke REMEKZIE Deposits and other receivables 3,066 = 3,066
TR B AR ZE (H100))  Due from subsidiaries (Note 10(o)) 218,401 = 218,401
BERASSEM(ME20)  Cashand cash equivalents (Note 20) 20,194 = 20,194
@it Total 1,423,340 336,239 1,759,579
RBHERATTENSRERS
Financial
liabilities measured
at amortised cost
EEBEXRFRNEE Liabilities as per balance sheet

R-_E——&F#+-_RA=+—H As at 31 December 2012

Hoh JE 5 50R (B aE24)
e & (Kf=25)

T

Other payables (Note 24)
Borrowings (Note 25)

Total

R-—E——E+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2011

H b & 1 5008 (MY 7E24)
EE (MsE25)

#wat

Other payables (Note 24)
Borrowings (Note 25)

Total

28,047
3,750,886

3,778,933

45,304
1,311,960

1,357,264

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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16 FE-—F&KH 16 INVENTORIES - GROUP
—E-—_F —T—%F
2012 2011
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
R A%} Raw materials 373,239 374,740
£ Working in progress 83,378 68,026
X & Finished goods 608,260 608,100
S W Consumables 220,063 203,297
1,284,940 1,274,163

BRAAZ WA AHERA - HMiAxZ
R H A 15— 58 ([5E26) < 7 &K
N#) B AR ¥14,060,000,0007T (=&
——%&F : AR¥12,021,000,0007T) ° RMB12,021million).
REBEZE_ZE——F+-_A=+—HIEF
ERMETEEENERFEMS © &
SEE D EELN AR ARK10,003,0007T
(ZZF——% : AR#¥6,305,0007T) (Ff
728) c ZEREEF AW SR Z[$HE
AR H o

17 BRESZRR-FKE

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included
in cost of sales, other expenses and other gains — net (Note
26) amounted to approximately RMB14,060million (2011:

The Group reversed a loss of approximately RMB10,003,000
(2011: RMB®6,305,000) (Note 28) for the year ended 31
December 2012, in respect of the write-down of inventories
to their net realisable values. These amounts have been
included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income statement.

—E-—F —E—%
2012 2011
ARET R ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

EUWBTE=FEBEZER Trade receivables from independent
third parties 508,693 517,606
ORI E R Less: provision for impairment (6,346) (9,115)

B E=FZEZEHR " FE Trade receivables from independent
third parties, net 502,347 508,491

FE U BEEE 5 2 5B X (M 3E39(b))  Trade receivables from related parties

(Note 39(b)) 10,232 4,814
EUWE SRR FE Trade receivables, net 512,579 513,305

m—EPBEERBRAR —E——FFH
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17 BEREZRF—XEBE (&) 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

AEBRFER FTEF60RXEIORZER
Hﬁ (ZEB——F : 60K290K) - EWE
BRMERE DT T ¢

(CONTINUED)

The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
usually 60 to 90 days (2011: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

—g--F —T——F

2012 2011
ARET T AREET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

JEWE FERR - % Trade receivables, gross
— 90K AR — Within 90 days 489,653 474,468
—91£&180K - 91-180 days 27,755 44,696
—181%365K - 181-365 days 1,250 3,120
——F U E - Over 1 year 267 136
518,925 522,420

SR L W 5 B 2 IR (A T3
S EHE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

—g-=5 -F——%

2012 2011
AR T AREF T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
JEWE FERR - % Trade receivables, gross

— AR - RMB 512,190 516,113
—%7T - UsD 5,437 4,669
— BT - HKD 1,298 1,638
518,925 522,420
REER BRESRFEEEEERD The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate

FEMREE - their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

EEPHRERBRAT —F-FFH
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NZE——FE+=-_A=+—8 "4
AR #73,500,0000 (=T — — & -
A R #81,400,0007T) 2 FEW B 5 B
RERE BRERGELEHAAR
#6,300,000C (ZE ——F : AR
9,100,0007T) ° SR 1E & ot ¥ @ 5 & Kk
REA 2 HEEEBT(G - 5 T saEEA
BIEERR BT RREEEFTE B
WERFAEHEMUEARBKRES - tE
FEUWBR M BRR DT T ¢

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of approximately
RMB73.5 million (2011: RMB81.4 million) are impaired and
the amount of the provision for impairment is approximately
RMB6.3 million (2011: RMB9.1 million). The impairment is
firstly assessed individually for individual significant or long
ageing balances, and the remaining balances are grouped for
collective assessment according to their ageing and historical
default rates as these customers are of similar credit risk
characteristics. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

=F-=F %
2012 2011
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

FEUE SRR Trade receivables, gross
—90K LA — Within 90 days 44,262 34,642
—912180K - 91-180 days 27,755 43,880
—181E365K - 181-365 days 1,250 2,754
——FLE — Over 1 year 267 104
73,534 81,380

REFERRZ R Z [TTHHES ] A RER
I 5 8RR 7 BB B o ﬁ@%ﬁz '''''''
g

The Group recognises provision for impairment of trade
receivables in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
statements. The movements in provision for impairment are
as follows:

—F-=F —F——F

2012 2011

ARETR ARETT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

n—H—H At 1 January 9,115 9,049

HEH A AT U [B] 2 R AR R Receivables written off as uncollectible - (613)
JEUWE 5 BRFORE (B &R )~ (Reverse of)/provision for impairment of

B4 (M 7E28) trade receivables (Note 28) (2,769) 679

W+=ZRAR=+—8H At 31 December 6,346 9,115

RBERY AEEAAZZEERR
PAtn EFfrat 2 IR E B ER R BREE &
ER - AEEERE TERRIER
PR -

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.
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18 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

19

rE KAF
Group Company
—®-=f -~ —% Z=ZB-=fF —T —
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETRn ARETT AR®TR ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
REZERIEZE Guarantee deposits for
purchases 338,685 338,685 - -
AT ER & Prepaid value added tax
H fth 1538 and other taxes 299,721 181,993 - =
FE UL BB 5 28 Amounts due from related
(BF7E39(b)) parties (Note 39(b)) 9,073 61,621 - =
AN RIE TR Prepayments — advance
T ER payments to suppliers 60,440 41,223 - =
ZRIE
JE Wt N A Insurance claim receivable
REEAER from a fire accident
(KFsE26) (Note 26) - 16,332 - -
HEMIEFIE KX Other prepayments and
FE WK TE receivables 136,760 112,450 15,278 11,391
844,679 752,304 15,278 11,391
- JEBNEAELS  Less: non-current portion (20,418) (309,410) (10,307) (8,325)
BVER &R 7 Current portion 824,261 442,894 4,971 3,066

REZERRZEERATELIE(E
®’ERE  URBR_-Z—ZF+—HF]
V2 ERBEEEUIEEEZDY o
ERESERBERLEEZ2HHERN
—E-=FoHEER-

REER e REMRKRKORE
FRREENFEMESE -

EEFRTER-—FXRH

RZE—=ZFR=ZZT——F+=A
=+t HZEEHRITEREAEER
EHIEABTERERZE ZERDIR
TR -

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012

The guarantee deposits for purchases represent deposits to
Wondersun Diary to secure the purchases of the milk powder
produced by Wondersun Diary pursuant to an agreement
entered into in November 2010. The guarantee deposits
are repayable by instalments during 2013 according to a

predetermined timetable.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

19 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS - GROUP

The pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 represented deposits at banks pledged as security for
the issue of letter of credit facilities and bills of the Group.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK
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Group Company
KEH KA F]
—g2-—_—F —FT——% =B —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTR AREFTT ARETR AREBTR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRIRITR Cash at bank and on hand
FHEZES 2,148,415 2,257,087 96,109 20,194
EEISRITIE R Short-term bank deposits 142,394 111,963 - =
2,290,809 2,369,050 96,109 20,194

R-ZF—ZF+ZA=+—0 " A5HE
RARTERNERNETAFEANERR
1.04% (ZF——F : 3.00%) - ZETF
KEHEE A B42B (ZF——F : 91
H) - BEAJBERF4RER - DR H -

R-EBE——F+_A=+—H BEK
BEEBYUANTEEEE :

As at 31 December 2012, the effective weighted average rate
of the short-term bank deposits of the Group was 1.04%
(2011: 3.00%) per annum. These deposits have an average
maturity of 42 days (2011: 91 days) but could be withdrawn
anytime without restriction.

As at 31 December 2012, cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEHE KA F]

Group Company
—g2-——-—F —ET——% B —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTR AREFTT AR¥ETR AREBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
—AR¥ - RMB 2,111,927 2,293,868 93,251 =
— %7 - Usb 172,113 58,840 2,328 8,553
-7t - HKD 2,778 12,870 530 11,641
—HAb — Others 3,991 3,472 - =
2,290,809 2,369,050 96,109 20,194

ARBEMLIFSBERMSA BB L%
B - AR EINEZ 5180 K h B
ARBEFBX D BERERMGZINEE
48 A1) K2 48 B 6l 49

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are
subject to the rules and regulations of exchange controls
promulgated by the PRC authorities.



(@

(b)

BARK G 7ER (a) Share capital and share premium account
EE
Authorised
ZERYAE (&N BA&HTE
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares  Share capital equivalent to
TER ARBT R
HKD’ 000 RMB’ 000
RZE——F At 1 January 2011 till
—HA—H=E 31 December 2012
—E-—_F
+-A=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
ERITRABRE
Issued and fully paid
RGEE %N REFE ROBER it
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent account Total
TExr AR%Trn AR¥Trn AR¥Tx
HKD’000 to RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
RZE——F At 1 January 2011 i
—A—H% 31 December 2012
—E--F
+ZRA=+—H 3,599,445,000 35,994 34,047 2,243,980 2,278,027
EELBRBEAETR0VETT The total authorised number of ordinary shares is HKD0.01
(ZZE——F : HF0.01ET) ° per share (2011: HKDO.01 per share).
BREE (b) Share option scheme

KABRMPBIE S F+—
AZ+=ZHBZERRBEFMBB
2B ERT 8 ([T El]) - R
FZETEIA FEROTZBRDBETE
B 1B352,681,0008% * BIZA R A A
—EE+E+-A++H(BAA
AR R RFT ETE B) i
A 4B 4910% ° ZEHEITE B %
CERE, —BREBHAELH
HRBEFTEEBIE20%  BRES
HARI A BRI BE IR B B A
PIMELR—FERTEBBTF - %
BB EARNEE ST —tF
+=ZA+7<B-

BEE-T——HF+=-A=+—8H"
WEE AR ZT &R -

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution passed on
23 November 2007. The total number of shares which
may be issued under the Scheme must not exceed
352,681,000 shares, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of shares issued by the Company
as at 17 December 2007 (ie. the listing Date of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange). The
general vesting period for the options granted under the
Scheme is limited to 20% at each anniversary of grant
date and should be a period to commence not less than
one year and not to exceed 10 years from the date of
the grate of the option. The Scheme will remain in force
until 16 December 2017.

Up to 31 December 2012, no share options have been
granted under the Scheme.
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22 BE@E—AEBRA DT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND

150

COMPANY
NEH Group
BEAfifE DTERE EERRE BREEF &5t
Capital Fair value Statutory Retained
reserves reserves reserves earnings Total
ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETxR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-Z-——-% Balance at 1 January 2011
-A-Br# 1,817,581 168,315 465464 1,930,200 4,381,510
FREM Profit for the year - - - 311,940 311,940
R E & Transfer of fair value gains
SREERS previously taken to reserve to
FRIFAREZ income statement upon disposal
ATEFBEREE  of available-for-sale financial
gk (H5E13) assets (Note 13) - (20,322) - = (20,322)
AEHMESBEEZ  Fairvalue gains on
ATEFE avallable-for-sale financial assets
— @5 (M13) - gross (Note 13) - 15,605 - - 15,605
— B (FsE14) — tax (Note 14) - (153) - - (153)
BAEATRE Appropriation to statutory reserves = = 47,184 (47,184) =
YNHZZE-FF2  Dividends relating to 2010, paid
e - - - (155712 (155,712)
R=ZZE——%+=H Balance at 31 December 2011
St-Hz&H 1,817,531 163,445 512,648 2,039,244 4,532,868
EREN Profit for the year - - - 855,888 855,888
REEAHIEE Transfer of fair value gains
SREERE previously taken to reserve to
SR AREL income statement upon disposal
AFEFGEEE  of available-for-sale financial
Wk (Fi3E13) assets (Note 13) - (14,039) - - (14,039)
AN ESRMEEY  Fair value gains on
AYERSE available-for-sale financial assets
— 8% (f17113) - gross (Note 13) - 96,998 - - 96,998
— B (ME14) - tax (Note 14) - 1,083 - - 1,983
AEHESHEE  Transfer of fair value loss previously
HEBE LA taken to reserve to income
B2 ATESE  statement upon impairment of
EREYEER available-for-sale financial assets,
—BEEE net of tax
— &% (Fiztes) - gross (Note 28) - 16,786 - - 16,786
—HE (MzE14) - tax (Note 14) - (3,861) - - (3,861)
BABEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 94,995 (94,995) -
FRH=F——F2  Dividends relating to 2011, paid
idS) (93,582) - - - (93,582)
R=ZF—Z-%+=H Balance at 31 December 2012
=t-HZ&R 1,723,949 261,312 607,643 2,800,137 5,393,041

m—EPBEERBRAR —E——FFH
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20 HihE-—AEBRAAT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND

(&) COMPANY (CONTINUED)
¥ /N Company
BB DY ERE BREN &t
Contributed Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
ARETT ARETTL AREFT AREFTL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RZB-—-F Balance at 1 January 2011
-A-R2&H 2,054,310 179,837 41,453 2,275,600
EEEF Profit for the year - - 165,693 165,693
REEAHEESREE  Transfer of fair value gain previously
BB ERTGT AR taken to reserve to income statement
AFEFRERZE upon disposal of available-for-sale
g & financial assets - (20,322) - (20,322)
MHLEeREEY Fair value gains on available-for-sale
AFEHNEG (Fi513) financial assets (Note 13) - 14,550 = 14,550
IH=F-FFZKE  Dividends relating to 2010, paid = = (155,712) (155,712)
RZB--%+Z5h Balance at 31 December 2011
St-Bz&4% 2,054,310 174,065 51,434 2,279,809
ERAET Profit for the year - - 2,430 2,430
REEAHREE Transfer of fair value gain previously
CREERHLE taken to reserve to income statement
SAAREBEZATE upon disposal of available-for-sale
MEERENER financial assets - (14,039) - (14,039)
NfHEeHEEL Fair value gains on available-for-sale
DNEEFE (FrE13) financial assets (Note 13) - 106,155 - 106,155
IH=F——F2KE  Diidends relating to 2011, paid (93,582) - - (93,582)
RZB--£+ZA Balance at 31 December 2012
St-He&H 1,960,728 266,181 53,864 2,280,773
(@) BARER (a) Contribution surplus
ARABHHMABRBREEZERARQA Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
O EMZAARBIEZREEA the net balance of contributions from and distributions
BEM EH 2 EHAZEE AR to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
LD IRE RS o listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the

reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

RRASHSEAEEER 25 According to the law and regulation of Cayman Island,
AZBRA DR T AR AW HE S such contribution surplus is distributable to the equity
BA holders of the Company.

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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22 SO G- KBRA AT
Fr}

152

(b)

(c)

AT EHE

AEEAFEFEEERAIHKLE
ERMEEATEHEH 2 HERDE
EAHEEZRHE -

EERE

R BA R BA R B SRAE R B EE MR
AR - EHESRA AENBED
FE AT & B B9 OX TE 9 7% 3K P R
HEFENE (EEE T AEFER
RETERR) PRE—EMNEER
o A AERBIIBLE B VM

3% -

ERIBBELCENANELEE
MRZNPERBAT  EETE
FREBBREBEN DR - BARAE
A FEE 2 10% BIERE BB AR
T BEERRABEREIRFLZ
FMEARE0%IA L - RIBABE—
B - IS MEBEFE LR
1BH - WERT A —E LI
B 0 18 g A BB T4 A K 2R B
ESREBRREE - FRTIGE
RECEFTMARZO T EMNER
Al REEEFSCHIEE - AN
& BOATE BR B 1K s M B — E B
Bl B BAKTE RS

AERBATEEREANBMEA
AIMEE BARRNEERLE S
EMABER -

22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value reserves
Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of changes
in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets and
reserves arising from business combinations.

(c) Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as Sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the

capital of the companies.

m—EPBEERBRAR —E——FFH
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23 ENESEZRERE —AEEH 23 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES - GROUP

—E——fF —F——%F

2012 2011
AR® T ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FERTE SRR Trade payables
—BYE=H - to independent third parties 1,202,767 1,108,368
— a8 75 (M9 7E39(b)) — to related parties (Note 39(b)) 239,177 85,526
1,441,944 1,193,894
FET R Bills payable
—BYE=F - to independent third parties - 1,885
1,441,944 1,195,779
HERKEFTAEE 28BS B30 The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
RELSK - BN E FERAZER TN 30 to 45 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as
o follows:
—E——fF —E——%F
2012 2011
ARE TR ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
JERE SRR Trade payables
—180 KA — Within 180 days 1,423,589 1,180,331
—181%E 365K - 181 to 365 days 10,275 5,473
——FpE — Over 1 year 8,080 8,090
1,441,944 1,193,894
RHEDENESFERANEEUAREST Majority of the trade and bills payables are denominated in
B BEZEOENEEHBRENTE RMB. Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values as
BE o at the balance sheet dates.

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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HiEAZERESTER -4 24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS -

EEEAAD T GROUP AND COMPANY
Group Company
AL HE P NN
—g--% -—T 4% =-B--f -T %
2012 2011 2012 2011

ARBTRE ARBTIT AR®TR ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’ 000

EFEEMR Advance receipts from
customers 476,861 507,578 - -
HEFS A Quality guarantee deposits
BERFR from suppliers
RES 355,240 220,300 - =
i R ES R  Accruals for promotion and
METE R advertising expenses 1,030,731 706,427 - =
Tmﬁ% 5 88 e 1~ Payables for purchase of
EE equipment 552,429 327,593 24,710 42,484
FEN TEK4EF  Salary and welfare payables 333,040 279,790 1,655 1,341
H b JE T 508 Other payables and
K&t & % accruals 444,386 365,399 1,682 1,479
3,192,687 2,407,087 28,047 45,304
- JEBNHEAEE D Less: non-current portion (197,130) (162,822) - =
BUER &R 5 Current portion 2,995,557 2,244,265 28,047 45,304
Y = N=p 1 ENZRERESERZ The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
FEHEAEATFEES - approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

CEREZERERAR —F——FFH
Un| President China Holdlngs Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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25 BE-FXEERAERQT

25 BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

Group Company
KEH AT
—E--F —T——F =ZB-=—F —ZT——%F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFTFR ARETT AREFTRT ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
EEH Non-current
IRITIEE Bank borrowings,
B secured - 65,000 - =
RITREE - Bank borrowings,
AR unsecured 3,562,321 1,446,915 3,562,321 1,311,960
3,562,321 1,511,915 3,562,321 1,311,960
B Current
FEMEIRTT Current portion of
EER B non-current bank
5 borrowings
— B - secured - 4,000 - =
— IR — unsecured - 5,350 - =
- 9,350 - -
MHEIRTTEE  Short-term bank borrowings
— AR — unsecured 408,558 1,574,867 188,565 =
408,558 1,584,217 188,565 -
BEEHE Total borrowings 3,970,879 3,096,132 3,750,886 1,311,960

R-ZEBE——F+_-_A=+—HIEIK
BEMETEE R ——F+=
A=+—HBOBERERDRITEE
AR #69,000,000708 RHISRITER -
TUAEEAFEAFAEHNARE
504,805,0007T ¥ &= if 55 FA #& (Bt 356 )
N ¥ & W 2 (M 5E8) My HR (R R o

No bank borrowing was secured as at 31 December
2012. The non-current bank borrowings, secured as at 31
December 2011 of RMB69,000,000 represented long term
bank loans secured by the pledge of land use right (Note 6)
and investment properties (Note 8) of the Group with total net
book value of approximately RMB504,805,000.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK
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R-E——F+-_A=+—HHEEKR
EREIRITEE A R3,562,321,000
T (ZE——F : AR¥1,452,265,000
T)BRRBEREBEAAREEFEBTTZ
BBRAERMEAHE ((BEHBE]D
< B H9420,000,000F & (4 & R
AR #2642 321,0007T) & A R
920,000,000 ciEITEH - BIEME
W ARRER=-ZEHLBED B E
250,000,0003 7T * 170,000,000% 7T &
A R #1,000,000,0007T ) 1 F H B &
BE - ARFBHEELTSHBERER
EHEE T A=+ HNEETHZE
LERRRLT @R MBEENE
BIERBIRITEE -

AREBERARTUEE ZERBWT :

The non-current bank borrowings, unsecured as at
31 December 2012 of RMB3,562,321,000 (2011:
RMB1,452,265,000) included bank loans amounting
to USD420,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,642,321,000) and RMB920,000,000 that were drawn
down under several joint loans facility agreements (“Facility
Agreements”) entered into by the Company and a syndicate
of banks. Pursuant to the Facility Agreements, the Company
was granted three five years term loan facilities amounting to
USD250,000,000, USD170,000,000 and RMB1,000,000,000.
The Group expects it has the intention and discretion to roll
over the borrowings as at 31 December for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date under the Facility
Agreements and accordingly classified the borrowings as
non-current bank borrowings.

The Group’s and the Company’s borrowings were repayable
as follows:

Group Company
A K LN

—E-——-F =ZFT— —E-—F —ZT——4F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTR AR®TT AR®BTRT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
—FUAN Less than 1 year 408,558 1,684,217 188,565 -
—EMWE Between 1 and 2 years - 1,336,960 - 1,311,960
2= F Between 2 and 5 years 3,562,321 136,305 3,562,321 -
AELE Over 5 years - 38,650 - -
fEEARE Total borrowings 3,970,879 3,096,132 3,750,886 1,311,960

REER  EEZREEEEQFER

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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(CONTINUED)

25 BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s

WS - borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
& /N
—E——-F —ZT——F =ZB-—-—Hf —ZT——=F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBFTR ARKTT AR%®FTR ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR RMB 920,806 164,000 920,806 -
EPv uUsD 3,050,073 2,932,132 2,829,989 1,311,960
3,970,879 3,096,132 3,750,795 1,311,960

BEHEBZERMEF SR R0

The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective

T balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
Group Company
rEE P NN
—E——-F - ZET——F =ZEBE-—-—f —_ZT——=H
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTRT ARBTT AR%¥TR AR%®TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RITEE Bank borrowings,
B secured
—AR% - RMB 6.72% 6.72% - -
RITEE Bank borrowing,
fmH R unsecured
—AR% - RMB 4.84% 6.65% 4.65% -
—%7T - UsD 1.40% 1.48% 1.22% 1.34%

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012 157



D 2

25 BE-AKERAEARQT

— i

AEBERARBHEE TIIRERZRT

e B RS AR MY A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(CONTINUED)

25 BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group and Company have the following undrawn bank

BEHE borrowing facilities:
Group Company
rEE P NN
=B-=F _—ZT——F =ZB-=Ff _—IT——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTR ARBTT AR®BTR AR%Tx
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
RIFEH XK - At floating rate:
—FRNEH — Expiring within one year 5,605,894 4,650,911 1,716,262 1,134,162
—F A R — Expiring beyond one year 80,000 802,319 80,000 264,638
5,685,894 5,453,230 1,796,262 1,398,800
26 HA X5 — = 26 OTHER GAINS - NET
—E—=F —F——F
2012 2011
AR¥ T ARBT T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B 8 Bh (Bt X (a)) Government grant (Note(a)) 96,723 57,050
HENHRLEESREENS Gain on disposal of available-for-sales
(F5E13) financial assets (Note 13) 14,039 23,071
NEE MBI (K FE(D)) Loss from a fire accident (Note(b)) - (12,753)
HEWZE - WEREZHEEE - Losses on disposal of property,
i) plant and equipment, net (5,475) (385)
Hth Others 13,377 2,190
118,664 69,173
Bt 5E - Notes:
() BRAT M BHUL A FE P W ER BB P B % @ (@ The income from government grants represented

TR H AR B R (R
5% (B P a8 1 ) 1 P A M [ A T
?é‘)%fﬁ&dﬁfitﬁ’]@i& % & B 18 BY
EARME - RN B R R E R A
E&EEAﬁ?GH&m%&ﬁE BAYA -

immediate financial support subsidy received from various
local governments in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s
subsidiaries for their contributions to the economy and
development of the regions in which the subsidiaries are
located. Such government grants were unconditional and with
no future commitment to be fulfilled. Accordingly, they were
recognised as income in the consolidated income statements.

M—EEREEZERARLIR —F—ZFFH
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27

HibR G- F8E (&)

BeE : ()

26 OTHER GAINS - NET (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

b)) RZBE——F+—F XAEE K (b)  In November 2011, a fire accident occurred in a wholly-owned
2EMBAREENEEN EF subsidiary of the Group and certain inventories and property,
FEUNRDE BERRXREBRNE plant and equipment with book value of RMB16,332,000 and
FEZ SPEREEESAAREK RMB53,305,000, respectively, were damaged. Taking into
16,332,0007t & A R #53,305,000 account of the damaged property, plant and equipment that
T REERAFBHEMBWEHE B can be recovered through repair, the Directors estimated a
BYME BERSZHE EFHHR loss due to the fire accident on property, plant and equipment
—E——F+-A=+—BRA%4E amounting to RMB12,753,000 as at 31 December 2011. In
NEZEZBIINBEHME BEEILEDN December 2012, the subsidiary entered into an agreement
B8 B AR #12,753,0000C e R =& with the insurance company to set a total insurance claim
——F+ A MBAFAHERKRERAA amounted to RMB34,100,000 including claim for the damaged
vtz RTERBERARE inventories and property, plant and equipment and received all
34,100,000t ' BIECERXREFEENLY the insurance claim in the year ended 31 December 2012. The
¥ BELKRENRE WEREZE Group recognized the insurance claim income and additional
—E-——H#+-RA=+—HILEEK losses in disposal of damaged property, plant and equipment
BAAERBRER - AEBIRFHEESE on a net basis in the consolidated income statements.

Réra Az FBARRBEREA R
HEDEBRWE  BE R&EZFEH
=Ei=
Hg A 27 OTHER INCOME
—E-C=F —E——F
2012 2011
ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

CEON Subsidy income 40,394 28,611

85 & R K Sales of raw materials 105,822 67,444

HEME  WFERFRHENAR Rental income from lease of property,

WEME 2B WA plant and equipment and
investment properties 45,261 25,379
7B AR WA (HT3E39(a)) Consultation service income (Note 39(a)) 4,011 2,062
AHEEeMEECRKRE Dividend income from available-for-sales
LN financial assets 7,509 7,762
H Al Others 11,234 4,714
214,231 135,972

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK T



@?ﬁéﬁﬁ%)ﬂ%zﬁ CSHE R TG R R
X TTHRAXEEMAE ZER TN

Expenses included in cost of sales, seling and marketing
expenses, administrative expenses and other expense are

T analysed as follows:
—E-C—F —EF—%F
2012 2011
ARET R AR¥T T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrARERME - &M - Raw materials, packaging materials,
5 Fm &Eﬁ B W& m consumables and purchased
commodity used 12,243,362 10,501,388
X o 1r & 2 &) Changes in inventories of finished
goods 1,422 69,346
INBEERE Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 184,914 233,579
RENMESER Promotion and advertising expenses 2,790,366 1,698,700
BIRMAY  BEEEHH Employee benefit expenses, including
(F$5E29) directors’ emoluments (Note 29) 2,503,129 1,877,393
EHEBER Transportation expenses 980,069 832,853
TP AR 4R (FY5E6) Amortisation of land use right (Note 6) 32,605 20,838
WE  WENMREITE (H7£7)  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 7) 761,713 503,686
‘EYEIE (K 8) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 8) 5,301 1,915
A B (MTET9) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 3,403 3,824
BFLEHE Operating lease in respect of buildings 171,663 153,689
W RN MER KR City construction tax, property tax
H A i 7% & A and other tax surcharges 212,517 131,762
BEME - BERERERE Reversal of provision for impairment of
B (MeE7) property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) (307) (17)
EWE SRR ZRE (Reversal of)/provision for impairment
(BERE) BE(EE17) of trade receivables (Note 17) (2,769) 679
AHEESREE CRE Provision for impairment of an
B (M 7k22) available-for-sale financial asset
(Note 22) 16,786 -
M FEE 2B FEEE Reversal of provision of inventories to
B e (faE16) net realisable value (Note 16) (10,003) (6,305)
% ERAD B Auditors’ remunerations 7,018 6,230
H 1t Others 955,912 846,271
st Total 20,857,101 16,875,831




29

ETRAEX  BEEEHEH 29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

e R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

—B-=F —E——%F

2012 2011

AR T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

TERF S Wages and salaries 2,006,059 1,491,896
BRE REMEERF Pension and other social welfare

(ERERETED (defined contribution plan) 250,399 198,223

BETIEEREERH Staff quarters and housing benefit 69,513 53,206

H i w Other benefit 177,158 134,068

2,503,129 1,877,393

(@) ESHM

REEZZ——FR-_FT——F
+—A=+—HLEFE AAAE

(a) Directors’ emoluments

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011,
the remuneration of directors of the Company is as

EE2MemT follows:
BEsps e FeREA EHRER k]
Salary and Travelling
Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance Total
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R ARET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-CF 2012
WITES Executive directors
BEERE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (%% %) 50 1,896 6 1,952
EEERE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (%)
(P (b)) (Note (b)) 44 2,796 6 2,846
FHITES Non-executive directors
BEREE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (58 &) 82 - - 82
MEERE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (#52& ) 69 - 6 75
MEREE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (¥R %) 83 - 6 89
BRESREE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (&% 5= $%) 38 - - 38
B IEHIT Independent Non-executive
£ directors
PREE{E S A& Mr. Chen Sun-Te (FRE2 %) 226 - - 226
BLERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (2= ) 226 - - 226
5 I L& Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (15 % &) 189 - - 189
BRELE Mr. Peter Lo (%5 £) 226 - - 226
1,233 4,692 24 5,949

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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29 ETENBEX  BFEEEEFHM 29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

162

(48

(a)

e B RS AR MY A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EEFHM (F) (@)

ESHA

Name of Director

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

we FeRita = HROERL B
Salary and Travelling
Fees bonuses allowance Total

AR®TT AR®TT ARETT ARETR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
—E——% 2011
HITES Executive directors
BRELTE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (& & %t) 50 762 5 817
M B kL Mr. Lin Wu-Chung (PR & &)
(M 3%(a) (Note (a)) 30 1,195 5 1,230
EEE AL Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (58 )
GE) (Note (b)) 14 243 = 257
FRITES Non-executive directors
2EREE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (58 &) 82 = = 82
MEERE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (#52& ) 69 = 5 74
HEELE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (#K[2 %) 83 - 5 88
BRERSRE L Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (&% 5= $%) 38 - - 38
B IEBIT Independent Non-executive
EE directors
PREE B S & Mr. Chen Sun-Te (FREE1%) 227 = = 227
BLEELE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (&1 &) 227 - = 207
5 E L& Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (15 % &) 189 - - 189
REELE Mr. Peter Lo (B % &) 227 = = 227
1,236 2,200 20 3,456
B 3 Note

(@ WN-T——FNALRRKEE

£

b) R-ZE——FLANBEZE-

FRALEEERELZHRENXA
EHREEAME

VTENEEEZETAHRTETE
ERRIFH -

B—EPEZERERAR —F——FFHK
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012

(@) Resigned on 7 September 2011 upon retirement.

(b)  Appointed on 8 September 2011.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

There were no special emoluments to the directors for
their appointments or resignation.
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30

nﬁ

(b) EEERSHFMAL
BE_T——_F+t-_A=+—H
TEEZAEBRRERRFMA

ITEEME(CE——F :WmA)
B HFMER EXMENZSD
e iR - RERB N TESF=

e R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 include two
(2011: two) directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining three (2011: three) individuals during the year are

H(ZE——F: =ZR) &5 M as follows:
AT Z2HMET 0T
—E—C_F —E——%F
2012 2011
EXFHe (EHEEM - Basic salaries, housing allowances,
E2e R EYF = other allowances and benefits
(ANR®ETT) in kind (RMB’ 000) 5,466 3,220
#HE - In the band of:
= %1,000,000% 7T (FEE Nil to HKD1,000,000 (equivalent to
REZE= AR®S810,8007T) Nil to RMB810,800) - 1
1,000,001/ 7t £2,000,000 HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000
BT (HERARE (equivalent to RMB810,800 to
810,800t & AR ¥ RMB1,621,600)
1,621,6007T) 1 2
2,000,001/ 7T £3,000,000 HKD2,000,001 to HKD3,000,000
BT (HERARK (equivalent to RMB1,621,600 to
1,621,600 & AR RMB 2,432,400)
2,432,4007T) 2 =
AEWA - 30 FINANCE INCOME - NET
—E-——F —F——F
2012 2011
AR TR ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BREKA-BEREEE Finance income — interest income
B2 F B WA on cash and cash equivalents 102,710 61,164
PE X Uk &= % 58 Net foreign exchange gains 13,991 65,042
116,701 126,206
TEEZMNERX Interest expenses on bank borrowings (52,877) (31,144)
EE WA —FEE Finance income — net 63,824 95,062
—ERBIERERAT —E——FFHK
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2012 2011

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

& BT R Current income tax

—ERAFE Rz & BHIE — Current tax on profit for the year 243,580 113,644
EIEFTSHE (B7E14) Deferred income tax (Note 14) (22,539) (29,193)
221,041 84,451

ARBRBERSHEREEREEHS
AR SERRERAR - Bt - &
NEAEHRLHANFEHERER

—EENF-A—HiEE R EEM
R B ARARER _TTLF=H
TREBZ2BEARIENHNEEMEDE
EBBRER_FTLF+-A/NBHE
M EEMBHEERAR ([E AT
Al BB EMER - RIEFEEME
BOERERMAR - BANREIMRERZE
ZHEHREE_TEENF-—A—HESR
—/325% ° BN FT I R BRI A MRl
PR WEBBBGHEAR TREERE
FIEHREIHRBEENEEMS @ ik
EREREFER_TZENF-—A—HE
AARFANAEERRESIEEE25% °
BREREEHRAZEREMSH XA
IR EEATEEZEEANGE
BC-EEEWEBREMASL - -ERAER
AERRAEEFABHEERRRMND
X EEBRBRAR_ZTN\EFRN
FEMREATKESS -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Company
Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC are subject to Corporate Income
Tax (“CIT”) in accordance with the New CIT Law as approved
by the National People’s congress on 16 March 2007 and
the Detailed Implementations Regulations of the New CIT
Law (the “DIR”) as approved by the State Council on 6
December 2007. According to the New CIT Law and DIR, the
income tax rates for both domestic and foreign investment
enterprises would be unified at 25% effective from 1 January
2008. For enterprises which were established before the
publication of the New CIT Law and entitled to preferential
treatments of reduced CIT rates granted by relevant tax
authorities, the new CIT rate will be gradually increased from
the preferential rates to 25% within 5 years after 1 January
2008. Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemptions
or reductions from the standard income tax rate for a fixed
term may continue to enjoy such treatment until the fixed term
expires. For enterprises that have not yet benefited from such
preferential policies due to their accumulated loss positions,
the preferential policies shall be deemed to commence from
the 2008 tax year to kick-start the grandfathering period.
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31

Frig®im < ()

REBEFELEMEVOL - FEMNBARR
—EENF-A-HUREENMASEE
MR 2R T I 3 B SR TR
B - BER 5% e

BEREBEMACIHNE AR AR
EHIRITRHE D B B25%K16.5% (=
T——4:25%K16.5%) BN FTEH °

ZRER BRR AT S A s A B2 4% 7 BB A R
AEAHERENEERER25% (=
T——F :25%) s EZERRAER

31

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

According to the New CIT Law, the profits of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 5% upon the
distribution of such profits to foreign investors.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 25% and
16.5% (2011: 25% and 16.5%) respectively.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2011: 25%) applicable

LI

to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

—E-C=F —E——F
2012 2011
AR¥ T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B P15 250 Al 4 A Profit before income tax 1,076,929 396,391
BHRBEEMEE 2 1B Tax calculated at the statutory tax
rate in the PRC 269,232 99,098
Ty EE BB L : Tax effects of:
BEETHEB QR &F Preferential tax rates on the profits of
ZIBEBE certain subsidiaries (24,135) (13,463)
£ A S Bl R B AR 2 T T B 18 Utilisation of previously unrecognized
tax losses (10,987) -
AERBELETIEEE Tax losses for which no deferred tax
Z HIEEE asset was recognised 17,850 7,444
FEAG S EE 5 B B M B Share of the results of jointly controlled
NAZHEE entities and associates (32,897) (10,021)
A HIFE R 2 Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 1,978 1,393
S Income tax expense 221,041 84,451
B EPEIZERERAT —F——FFIHK
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31 FEBMAX (&) 31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
FHEEMEEKRELD 2 HMEBEZ B W The tax charge relating to components of other
T comprehensive income is as follows:
8- “E—F
2012 2011
HEgs/
BB (X4) BE# IR AT HEX k3
Tax credit/
Before tax (charge) After tax Before tax Tax charge After tax

ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HETHEESE  Transfer of fair value gain,
BEBEEM  netof tax, previously taken to
NEBZDTE  reserve to income statement
& (BHFSE)  upon disposal of

B EY available-for-sale
financial assets (14,039) - (14,039) (20,322) - (20,322
AEHESREE  Net falr value gains from
AR available-for-sale
financial assets 96,998 1,983 98,981 15,605 (158) 15,452
RA@RHESE  Transfer of fair value loss previously
EERERBLLA  taken to reserve to income
SAEEZATE  statement upon impairment of
BREKZWAR  avalable-for-sale financial assets 16,786 (3,861) 12,925 = = =
EthzAls Other comprehensive income 99,745 (1,878) 97,867 (4717 (153) (4,870)
ETLFEH (KFH14) Deferred income tax (Note 14) (1,878) (153)
32 ANTERBBZEAEMZEF 32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
FARRBPTEREAOARR A RS The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
B AELEF &H A R%2430,000 dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
T(ZE——F : BEEHEANGAEARK extent of a profit of approximately RMB 2,430,000 (2011: a

165,693,0007T) (Mis¥22) ° profit of approximately RMB165,693,000) (Note 22).

B—EPEZERERAR —F——FFHK
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BEREABMNEFEARRREFHA
ARIESEMER D BT ERRINETFHH
At

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

=F-=F —F—F
2012 2011
RARERFFHE AEL Profit attributable to equity holders of
wA (AR T T) the Company (RMB’000) 855,888 311,940
B EBITEEARME T HE Weighted average number of
(i) ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 3,599,445 3,599,445
BREAXRABF (FRARES) Basic earnings per share
(RMB per share) 23.78 cents 8.67 cents

2]

R AR A3 B 358 E R

B - i
BEERNEGRENRN—B -

RZE—ZFR_FT——F AN

/ﬁmﬂ“ﬁ"ﬂuﬁ]/\&%%%zooo
T (BlRARE26000) N AR
155,712,0007T (FRAR%4.326% ) °

HE-_T——F+_A=t+—HILFE
2B ERAREL 7569 (Kt ABAR
#171,178,0007T) MR =ZF—=FH A
er AROZBRRBAFRE LRE - I
EUHEMRABRIBUEENGRE -

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.

The dividends paid by the Company in 2012 and 2011
amounted to RMB93,582,000 (RMB2.600 cents per
share) and RMB155,712,000 (RMB4.326 cents per share)
respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012
of RMB4.756 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB171,178,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 14 May 2013. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

—E-—-F —E——%F
2012 2011
ARET R ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BRI RERE RS R Proposed final dividend of
AR 47565 RMB4.756 cents
—T——%F: AR¥2.600%) (2011: RMB2.600) per ordinary share 171,178 93,582

171,178 93,682




—F--F —T——F
2012 2011
AR®B T AR¥EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR P15 35 AiA A Profit before income tax 1,076,929 396,391
FRFSIEEDL 2 A Adjustments for:
—EEERZEREE R — Share of results of jointly controlled
i N ¥ entities and associates (131,588) (40,086)
—HERHLESREE — Gains on disposal of
15 (T 7E26) available-for-sales financial
assets (Note 26) (14,039) (23,071)
— b AR 8N (P EE6) — Amortisation of land use right
(Note 6) 32,605 20,838
—M¥E BEREEBETE — Depreciation of property, plant
(M 5E7) and equipment (Note 7) 761,713 503,686
— B ENE (K:E8) — Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 8) 5,301 1,915
—mEEESHE (M) - Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 3,403 3,824
— NZEBIME K (M 5E26) — Loss from a fire accident (Note 26) - 12,753
—HEWE - BEREE — Losses on disposal of property,
# &5 18 (FF7526) plant and equipment (Note 26) 5,475 385
— BB - HE REERE — Reversal of provision for impairment
B (B EET) of property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) (307) (17)
—GFEMRZ#IRFEE — Reversal of inventories to net
B El (MsE16) realisable value (Note 16) (10,003) (6,305)
—REIWE SERFBE (B - (Reversal)/Provision for impairment
) B (HE17) of trade receivables (Note 17) (2,769) 679
—AHEESREERE — Provision for impairment of
B (fF7E28) available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 28) 16,786 -
— 7 B A (HF5E30) — Interest income (Note 30) (102,710) (61,164)
—F B3z i (F4sE30) — Interest expenses (Note 30) 52,877 31,144
— [ 5 Wezm (M9 7E30) — Foreign exchange gains (Note 30) (13,991) (65,042)
—A i EEHEE - Dividend income from
Z R B WA (M sE27) available-for-sales financial
assets (Note 27) (7,509) (7,762)
1,672,173 768,168
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EEEX 2RSS (B) 35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
—E-C=F —T——F
2012 2011
AR¥ T ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
HEEET: Changes in working capital:
—BRFBITERRL — Decrease/(increase) in pledged
(3 1) bank deposits 12,944 (12,935)
—EWRE ZRFTR L, (M) — Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables 3,496 (112,989)
—TAfNFIE - me R EAMERK - (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
RIE () R deposits and other receivables (372,626) 13,303
—H b IE BN R B U IE R A — Decrease/(increase) in other
(38 hn) non-current receivables 285,038 (8,325)
—FEEM - Increase in inventories (773) (145,043)
—ENE SRR EZEEN — Increase in trade and bills payables 246,165 162,057
— H {th JE 1 5RIE K FE & - Increase in other payables and
& F 12 11 accruals 826,442 600,672
— H 4th 3 B AR FE A SR IE L A0 — Increase in other non-current
payables 34,308 162,822
BEEL RS Cash generated from operations 2,707,167 1,427,730

RBEREXRT  HEWE  BFE LR

In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

BZRERIBEBARE property, plant and equipment comprise:
—E——F —ZET——F
2012 2011
AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BREDF(E (M &E7) Net book amount (Note 7) 223,128 45,192
HEME - MEREE Losses on disposal of property,
&5 18 (fi3E26) plant and equipment (Note 26) (5,475) (385)
IWEE 7 RIS E R & M Value added tax and other tax
T IR N surcharges charged to buyer 35,923 9,998
HEME - BE K& HE Proceeds from disposal of property,
Z FT1S30IR plant and equipment 253,576 54,805

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK
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EEELXCRE (E) 35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
FRERS Non-cash transactions
N E——FRNTEIFRETFTIEES The principal non-cash transaction in 2012 is the acquisition
EEE BB E A R 224,836,000 of non-current assets by assuming directly related liabilities
TTWEIERB B E - with amount of RMB224,836,000.
BBEREHL 36 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
—E—C—F —E——%F
2012 2011
AR T AREFIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
REE T BT 2 R Guarantees to a related party 97,200 110,104

AEBGBREBENRSERBRM ZRIT
BERBERSREER R-2F—=
F+-A=+—8 SEBRHZBE
ZRERREBRRTEERIIVRERE -
#8585 N R#97,200,000T (ZE——
£ AR#110,104,0007T) °

HRAKRERRMBEREONQTFE
YAERX WA ERERA M HERERER
ZERAK -

The Group provides guarantees for the bank borrowings and
finance leases of Jinmailang Corporate, an associate of the
Group. As at 31 December 2012, Jinmailang Corporate has
drawn down bank borrowings and entered into finance leases
under such guarantee with total amount of RMB97,200,000
(2011: RMB110,104,000)

The financial guarantee contract had not been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group
considered that the fair value of the guarantee contract was
insignificant.

A IE 37 COMMITMENTS
(@) BEAEE (@) Capital commitments
REBFBEME  BEMEENE The Group’s capital commitments in respect of
RAEAERT : property, plant and equipment are as follows:
—E-——F —F——%
2012 2011
AR TR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BRI AR B Contracted but not provided for 307,862 254,701
N-ZEBE——F+-_A=+—H & There is no capital commitment of the Company as at 31
N BN T (A & AN AHE o December 2012.
H—EEPEZERERAR —E——FFFK
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37 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Operating lease commitments
The Group is the lessee:

The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum
lease payments under these non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

—E—_F —E——F
2012 2011
ARET R ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TR —F Not later than 1 year 27,714 23,499
HBiE—FETBBRT Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 39,121 35,286
HBiBhF Later than 5 years 122,280 131,108
189,115 189,893
REFEAHTFA - The Group is the lessor:

AEEETAHENEEHE R
THHEREME - BEM&EE - %
FHEMNETRNFH R ERE - £
THRENEEHEBAETASE
BRREKRNSEESEBEWT

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

—F-—=-F Z—T——F

2012 2011

AR TR ARETT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

TR —F Not later than 1 year 41,860 28,859
HBiE—FETBART Later than 1 year and not later

than 5 years 87,316 61,872

#A38 1 F Later than 5 years 38,815 24,330

167,991 115,061

H—ERBEERERAR —F——FFHK
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172

(c)

RE&E

N-ZE——F+-_A=+—H =K
SEREECEALE 2 EKRNK
EMT

i)y WER-_ZE—ZF+—A
RN 2 REWE - BE LT
¥ BAERERERES
ZBAZREL G REBEIN
BH -R=ZZT—=—F+=A
=+—H AEBEERTE
WL EBEIINEFEHDARYE
51,665,0007T * 18 & 1K50%
EAENRBERA - & &

ZER 5B 4 A R #51,665,000

TER_-_ZE—=Z%1+ A8

—+—HATX e

I

i) RZEZTNFWHA K&
B 8 E 1% & 5 R B
MHHNE ELE & R ) E TR
R UWIEERPEKESE
RmMBREEBH QR A
RIZE®W AXEBEBDRE
REEERMA H£39.74%
ZHAMER BREBERA
R #245,000,0007T > I? —
T——_F+-H=+—8H
LEEXRGEVBHREE
#EZH  AEBBHELE
KFE AR 232,750,000
T B TIIREEEBARE
12,250,0007T * B REE
EETENR -_Z—MEMA
ST e

M—EEREEZERARLIR —F—ZFFH

(c)

Investment commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has following
significant commitments in respect of capital
contribution to investments:

(i) Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered
into in November 2010, the existing shareholders
of Wondersun Dairy agreed to subscribe for
additional shares in proportion of their respective
equity interests. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group has made additional capital contribution
of approximately RMB51,665,000 to Wondersun
Dairy, representing 50% of the committed new
subscription of share capital. The remaining
commitment of investment of approximately
RMB51,665,000 is payable no later than 31
October 2013.

(i) In April 2009, the Group together with other
investors set up a Sino-foreign joint venture
company in the PRC, China F&B, for the purpose
of investments in companies engaging in food
and beverage business in the PRC. The Group
has agreed to subscribe, in aggregate, 39.74%
of the registered capital of China F&B at a total
subscription price of RMB245,000,000. As at 31
December 2012 and up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group has made capital injection of
RMB232,750,000, with the remaining investment
commitment of RMB12,250,000, which has been
committed to be paid no later than April 2014.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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W-_ZT——FFH A AEEWELER
HREAEERR AR ESMER A
ERAR (W[ RELRAAF]) RAHE
= BREDN AR ARMS20,798,0007T
(BB IIEEIE]) - RERARHEE —
BAIRAFE BB 2B s Em M E
b AR -

R R BRI EERFIAEREZRF
BELBEHOT

ReRREEFED

=+ 3 A (B aE6)
BEWE (M3E8)
&Y 5K IR

F& 4 3R IR

fBE
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Al BRI B E AR

WEXBZRER
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ENRERE
EEMBARRS
KRB EEEY

WEERZEERH

BEBL XS

AEBREERERRR/R—EER
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I E B8 Ko Bt B R4 1 R B

* RXEABHEARRERERNEZ
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In May 2011, the Group acquired the equity interest of
Shanghai Cartelo Crocodile Industries Co., Ltd. and Shanghai
Ruxin Leather Co., Ltd. (collectively “Cartelo Companies”)
at a total consideration of approximately RMB 520,798,000
(collectively refers to the “Acquisition”). The Cartelo
Companies own an investment property located in Shanghai,
the PRC, together with the underlying land use right.

The amounts of the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,132
Land use right (Note 6) 676,616
Investment properties (Note 8) 103,384
Receivables 882
Payables (13,738)
Borrowings (96,840)
Deferred income tax liability (Note 14) (150,638)
Total identifiable net assets 520,798
The outflow of cash to acquire business,

net of cash acquired, comprised of
Cash consideration paid 520,798
Cash and cash equivalents in the

subsidiaries acquired (1,132)
Cash outflow on the Acquisition 519,666

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate parent company of the Group is #— 1M
DA R 2 F)(Uni-President Enterprises Corporation*) (“Uni-
President”), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
The directors of the Company are of the view that the
subsidiaries of Uni-President, the jointly controlled entities and
associates of the Group are regarded as related parties.

* The English name represents the best effort by management of
the Company in translating the Chinese name.

m—EEBEERARAE —FE-ZFFRK o



The following transactions are carried out with related

AR ETHR SN parties:
—E—= —E——%F
) 2012 2011
B 7 AR¥ TR AREET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B iH & Sales of goods: ()
m—1E2ZHEBAR  Subsidiaries of Uni-President 85,508 72,220
RNEB 2 HEEH Jointly controlled entities
i of the Group 2,455 4,757
AEBE 2B E R T An associate of the Group 8,426 10,375
96,389 87,352
R B n #R B Purchase of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
m—1E2ZHEBAR  Subsidiaries of Uni-President 921,769 815,243
? —{XZBE QT An associate of Uni-President 352,769 =
2&%@2#@@ il Jointly controlled entities 312,620 162,198
g6 of the Group
NEBE 2B & QA Associates of the Group 21,356 30,561
1,608,514 1,008,002
YRS BT Logistics service expense: (i)
H—1EZHEARRF  Subsidiaries of Uni-President 8,954 =
HERM# - Sales of new materials: (ii)
ﬁt*m%Z@ﬁ%/& A]  Subsidiaries of Uni-President 1,218 =
—1EZBZNF  An associate of Uni-President 24,322 =
25,540 -
HEYDE  BFE Sales of Property, plant and
KRG equipment (ifi)
m—{EZEZNF  An associate of Uni-President 215,635 —
AEBZBERNT An associate of the Group - 45,078
215,635 45,078
fr n@ﬂﬁf@/ﬁ? A Consultation service income: (iv)
m—1E KB AR Subsidiaries of Uni-President 2,501 1,181
,%)’Tf—m%z %4 /A7F]  An associate of Uni-President 343 =
N [ 2 (R4 Jointly controlled entities
T3 of the Group 455 265
NEBE 2B &N A An associate of the Group 712 616
4,011 2,062
HABHA - Rental income: (v)
m—1E KB AR Subsidiaries of Uni-President 5,981 5,886
HL—EZEZNAE  An associate of Uni-President 6,579 —
12,560 5,886
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(a)

BEEAERS

B

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

(%)

EiEE - BERYIRRE IR
1R AR R ol IR TT ©

8565 VT 9 5 M B R B
R AR 2 b
17 -

RZTE——F=A " ARAzZE
BB AR ([EH]) BFHE—1
¥2BERR (BRI
B BAREMEALE
HEREHE(EEAREEHRE
£ B E M EANPETERRE) -
B1& A AR ®215,635,0007T
BIEIGER N E A M T IE o

KBRS WA RRE (EEE
HARY - EARREET R
B THEIIRS) WA - THiRIEE
77 B SR 16 ok R SR RN

HeEREYR 2B - RIRE
FIHITT P R] S ek 2 (R ARET & ©

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Notes:

)

(v)

B—
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Transactions with related parties: (continued)

The above sales, purchases and logistics service
are carried out in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements.

Sales of raw materials represent sales of raw materials
and scrap and are carried out in accordance with the
terms of agreements made between the parties.

In March 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“the Vendor”) entered into the an Agreement
with an associate with Uni-President (the Purchaser),
pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to sell to the
Purchaser machinery and equipment which mainly used
in the manufacture of PET performs and bottles for the
products of the Group at amount of RMB215,635,000,
including value added tax and other tax surcharges.

Consulting service income from related parties
represents management consulting services, IT system
maintenance support and staff training service and is
charged in accordance with the terms of agreements
made between the parties.

Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.

EPEZEREBRAR —F-—FFK T
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39 E%ngﬁx%(mﬁ)

(b) EZBRESETT ARER

RZE2E——F+-_A=+—H ' ' &K
EEEAEBB S BA AT EAL

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(o) Balances with related parties:

The Group has the following significant balances with its
related parties as at 31 December 2012:

R
—EB-=F —E——F
2012 2011
AR®B TR AR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
JE W B Bk 77 AR Balances due from related parties:
FEW B Z B (Kat17) - Trade receivables (Note 17):
m—rEZHEAA Subsidiaries of Uni-President 10,232 4,814
JENRE L EMERIKIE  Prepayments and other receivables
(H1:£18) - (Note 18):
%F—ﬁ\%z g PNG] Subsidiaries of Uni-President 2,130 4,862
—EZEE QA Associates of Uni-President 5,915 =
$ - E i X /NE Associates of the Group 131 55,985
REEz HEZEHIEL Jointly controlled entities of the Group 897 774
9,073 61,621
et Total 19,305 66,435
JE < BB Bk 77 R %R Balances due to related parties:
FE1T B Z 83 (K1:t23) - Trade payables (Note 23):
Mm—EZHEAA Subsidiaries of Uni-President 114,059 77,517
H—EIBENT Associates of Uni-President 112,724 =
AEB 2 HREHER Jointly controlled entities of
the Group 12,205 8,009
AEBE 2B ERT An associate of the Group 189 =
FE Total 239,177 85,526

R&EHEH - JEHSZ&JEH% k77 2 REEREY

EEEEEQFERS

The carrying amounts of balances due from and due to

related parties approximate their fair value as at balance

sheet dates.

TERHEZERERAT —E——FFH
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39 EHMLE RS (&)

(c) EEEBAEFHMH :

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Key management compensation:

—E—_-F —_F—
2012 2011
ARE T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Fa o EANREMS Salaries, bonus and other welfares 12,906 7,234

40 MR A

TXHERZE—=—F+=—_A=+—H

40 SUBSIDIARIES

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

ZEENBAF : of the Company as at 31 December 2012.
EMALER/
AEER BHRAH BREARBERA Frishg TEER/BEnY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB--f 2%
2012 2011
HEEE Directly owned
G-oMERERAA Res 472,820,000 7T 100% 100% BEER/FEHS
ZEEXE5AZTNA
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD472,820,000 100% 100%  Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman islands
BEEE Indirectly owned
S (PE)REERAA M g
—“MWANE=ZATH 713,670,000% T 100% 100% ®EER/HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD713,670,000 100% 100% Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.") 10 March 1998
MES-CERMERAA HESBAE 37,500,000% T 100% 100% AERBEESH Bm
—hAZE-A+=A RAGEH,/ hE
(Xinjiang President Enterprises Urumai, PRC. USD37,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and
instant noodles/PRC
IRE-RAERAA RELR 23,400,000% 7T 100% 100% 4ERHEHFEE/PE
—“ANZEMAZH
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD23,400,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd. %) 2 April 1992 instant noodles/PRC

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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40 BB (&)

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HMRIER/
NRER BHERAS BRARBRERAE s g TEEK/BERY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf -“T-—F
2012 2011
RBE-—C¥RRBRAR GEE 65,000,000% 7 100% 100% EERHEHKH
—AA=FMATMA BrEE/ P E
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 April 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ElSi—t5RmARAR EE L 96,000,000% 7 100% 100% EERHEERHR
—“hWAZFRATMA HEE/ T8
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RER-PXRRARAA PE R E 59,600,000% 0 100% 100% EERBEHHR
—“AN=FtAtH HEE/ P E
(Wuhan President Enterprises Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd. %) 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMG—XBRAR M 75,000,000% 100% 100% EERHERHR
—AAEETZARA HEE/ P E
(Guangzhou President Enterprises Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Corp.’) 5 December 1994 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EHR—CEERAT hEER 39,900,000% ¢ 100% 100% EERHEKHR
—ANEFRATRA HEE/ R
(Shenyang President Enterprises Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
AREG—REARAR G 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERHERHR
—“AANEZA=1=A piRid VaLE
(Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.) 23 February 1998 beverages and instant

noodles/PRC

M—EEREEZERBRLR —F-ZFFK

178 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2012



e R AR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 B TF (&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HMRIER/
NEER WHRAS BREARBRRA Firis R i TEEK/RERS
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf 2%
2012 2011
REBER—CEERAT nEREE 25,000,000% ¢ 100% 100% EERBEERHR
—MANEZRZ+/~A yikid VAl
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD25,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 26 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IRB-RRERAR RELR 29,500,000% 7T 100% 100% EERHEERH/H
—ZT-f£_A_1H
(Beijing President Enterprises Drinks  Beijing, PRC. USD29,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
HES-LXARAR hEES 31,000,000% ¢ 100% 100% HERHERHR
ZEE-FRATNH yikid VAl
(Nanchang President Enterprises Nanchang, PRC. USD31,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMG— R EXARAR mEEM 20,000,000 T 100% 100% 4AERHERKR
“2T-FtATNE FEE/ 8
(Fuzhou President Enterprises Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
NGt XERAR hEE M 37,000,000% 7 100% 100% HERHEERHR
“ZZ-F,A-+hA pikid VAL
(Zhengzhou President Enterprises Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.) 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G- (LB)HEERAA hE L 8,600,000% 7 100% 100% ## - AEERRM
ZEZRE+ATLA B5/18
(President (Shanghai) Trading Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 100% 100%  Trading of beverages,
Co., Ltd.") 17 October 2005 instant noodles and
food products/PRC

Bm—ERBEERARAR —E——FFH
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40 BB (&)

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HMRIER/
NRER BHERAS BRARBRERAE s g TEEK/BERY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf -“T-—F
2012 2011
REEERAERAA =) 1,000,000%7 & % 100% 100% ANERER/A%E
ZEERETZAZTNH
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 100% 100%  Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
BRG-CE¥REERAA HEEH 30,000,000% 100% 100% HERBEHHR
2R+ ET-ANA pikid VAL
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
SZEABERAT Bk 11,640,000 7 100% 100% REER/FS
—ZE\FXALA
(Champ Green Capital Limited.”) Hong Kong HKD11,640,000 100% 100%  Investment holding/
5 June 2008 Hong Kong
BEG-tEERAT PEES 4,150,000% T 100% 100% EERHERH/HE
ZREAFZAZTH
(Bama President Enterprises Co., Ltd.") Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
G-CXEARRBRAA B 2,003,077,600% T 100% 100% REERRES
“EENEMAZTH
(Uni-President HongKong Hong Kong HKD2,003,077,600 100% 100%  Investment holding and
Holdings Ltd.") 30 April 2009 trading
SECREERA(LE)BRR hE g 150,000% 7 100% 100%  EE#A
“EENELATCA
(Champ Green (Shanghai) Consulting  Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 100% 100%  Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.") 12 May 2009
BEG—CXAmARAHA PEEER 1,000,000% T 100% 100% AERHERH/HE
ZZ-Z2E=ANA
(Zixi President Enterprises Drinks Zixi, PRC. USD1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 9 March 2010 beverages/PRC

Bm—EPBEERAERAT —E——FFH
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Mg A =] (4&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HMRIER/
NEER WHRAS BREARBRRA Firis R i TEEK/RERS
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf 2%
2012 2011
DG EARRA SRy 17,000,000% T 100% 100% EERBEERHR
“Z-ZFNA-H HEE/ P E
(Changsha President Enterprises Changsha, PRC. USD17,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RAG-—DESERERRR  REKS A& 1,000,000 100% 100%  BHEE/ FE
ZZ-ZFN\AZTEA
(Chengdu unifies the skillful noodle Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Catering services/PRC
restaurant dining culture limited 24 August 2010
Company?)
RIR-EXBRAR hEET 12,000,000% T 100% 100% EERHERHR
ZE2-ZETAZTNH HEE/ R B
(Zhanjiang President Enterprises Zhanjiang, PRC. USD12,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.*) 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
HER-REXARARF hEEE 17,000,000% 7T 100% 100% AERHERHR
ZE2-ZE+t-A+5H pikid VAL
(Nanning President Enterprises Nanning, PRC. USD17,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.) 16 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RER—CEARAT PERE 20,000,000% 7 100% 100% HEBRAR
“Z-ZE+-A-H FERE/HE
(Changchun President enterprise Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of mineral
Co.,Ltd.") 01 December 2010 water and instant food
projects/PRC
MrRgE -t EERAT B ] 12,000,000% 5 100% 100% S REHHE/DE
“Z-Z4+-At+HhA
(Akesu President enterprise Akesu, PRC. USD12,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of forage
Co.,Ltd.") 15 December 2010 and fertilizer/PRC
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HMRIER/
NAER BHERAH BRARBERE s g TEER/BERY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
Z8-Zf “T——F
2012 2011
MG - ERRAT S 30,000,000% T 100% 100% AERBEEHHR
“E—%-A=+N\R HERE/ HE
(Taizhou President enterprise Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd.") 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERG-CXERAT hHEE 33,600,000% 7 100% 100% BeXRRRIAZER
ZE——4ZA+KR HERTE/HE
(Chongaing President enterprise Chongaing, PRC USD33,600,000 100% 100%  Wholesale and retail of
Co.,Ltd.) 16 February 2011 pre-packaged food and
dairy products/PRC
BRA—REARAF B AR 12,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBEERHR
—F——%#-f-1@EA HEE/ PR
(Baiyin President enterprise Baiyin, PRC. USD12,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd) 24 February 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
HER-EERREEERAA hE LS A5 160,000,007 100% 100% HEEE/+E
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly “EE=E)\f—-H
Century Co., Ltd. %) Shanghai, PRC. RMBG60,000,000 100% 100%  Leasing business/PRC
1 August 2003
ER-CRERHKARRAA R AR #20,000,0007C 100% 100% REZR/HE
(A LBNEREARAR) ZEZ=FE+ATN\A
(Uni-President Shanghai Management ~ Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding/PRC
Consutting Co.,Ltd. *) 18 July 2003
(formerty known as (Shanghai Ruxin
Leather Products Co., Ltd.")
BEA-CEERAR TEEE 14,000,000% 7 100% 100% SERHERH/HE
—Z-—%=H=H
(Hainan President enterprise Chengmai, PRC. USD14,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,L td.") 3 March 2011 beverages/PRC
REFEG—hEERAT REARE 25,000,000 7T 100% 100% 4ERHERKR
—2——%t-AtIA FEE/ w8
(Shijiezhuang President enterprise Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD25,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd.") 15 November 2011 beverages and instant

Bm—EPBEERAERAT —E——FFH
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Mg A =] (4&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HMRIER/
NEER WHRAS BREARBRRA Firis R i TEEK/RERS
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZB-Zf 2%
2012 2011
BEG—CEARAF PEER 18,000,000% 100% 100% EERBEERHR
“2-——FMATNA HEE/ P E
(Jinan President enterprise Jinan, PRC. USD18,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd.") 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EGS—REARAR GE 12,000,000 T 100% 100% EERBEEHHR
2%+ AKxE HEE/ PR
(Guiyang President enterprise Guiyang, PRC. USD12,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd.") 6 July 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RS- XBFKERAT GETRYN 4,800,000% 7T 100% 100% £EBRK/HE
“Z——FtARA
(Wuxue Uni Mineral Water Co.,Ltd.") ~ Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing mineral
6 July 2011 water/PRC
LERERRBABRAT ER: 950,000% 7T 100% 100% HBEEERmRIAZER
ZE-——FxAZTNA &/ hE
(President (Shanghai) Private Label Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of pre-packaged
Marketing & Trading Co., Ltd.") 28 June 2011 food and dairy
products/PRC
MG —CEERAT GEL 30,000,000% 7 100% 100% EERHERH/
“E-—fxA=t-H
(Hangzhou President enterprise Hangzhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd.") 21 June 2011 beverages/PRC
BHE—EBRAR BRI 30,000,000% T 100% 100% HERBEHHR
“E-—fAAZH FEE/ R
(Xuzhou President enterprise Xuzhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd.) 2 September 2011 beverages and instant
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40 M AT (&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HMRIER/
NRER BHERAS BRARBRERAE s g TEEK/BERY
Country/place
and date of Issued and Principal activities/
Company name incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
ZE--f —FT--F
2012 2011
f-mE(RIL)ARAA HEEL 2,000,000% 7 100% - BRERRHE/TE
“T-"#=A-1/R
(President (Kunshan) Trading Kunshan, PRC USD2,000,000 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.) 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
ARR—tEARAA REAR 20,500,000% 100% - BRERRHE/TE
“Z-_£=ANR
(Henan President enterprise Henan,PRC USD20,500,000 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co.,Ltd.") 9 March 2012 food products/PRC
BRG—¥ARAT REZER 1,700,000% 7T 100% - BERRGRIFER
“T-—FRA=1A #E/hE
(Wuyuan President enterprise Wuyuan, PRC USD1,700,000 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co.,L td.") 30 May 2012 food and dairy
products/PRC
REG-CEERAT R 18,250,000% 7T 100% - EERBEHHR
5%+ AKA yikid VAl
(Shaanxi President enterprise Shaanxi, PRC USD18,250,000 100% - Manufacturing and sale of
Co.,Ltd.") 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IHA—CEERAA HEER 3,000,000% 7 100% - BeEARHE/+E
“T-_4+-A1H
(Jiangsu President enterprise Nanjing, PRC USD3,000,000 100% - Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co.,Ltd.") 5 November 2012 food products/PRC
FIEGRHE - BEREBNNERF All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong
ERERETER NHASHBEMMK are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in
M —ERBAR T ERRE ZBREE Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.
N o
* RNEBDHARRERERNBE e The English name represents the best effort by management of
MXEHEEE - the Company in translating the Chinese name.
Bm—EPBEERAERAT —E——FFH
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UNI-PRESIDENT ENTERPRISES CORP.
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UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(—RRHASHSEMRINERQH)
(Stock Code BR134R5%: 220)
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